

# SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD OF EDUCATION

Agenda Item#\_ 8.1a

Meeting Date: April 18, 2013				
Subject: Grants, Entitlements, and Other Income Agreements Ratification of Other Agreements Approval of Bid Awards Approval of Declared Surplus Materials and Equipment Change Notices Notices of Completion				
□ Information Item Only   ☑ Approval on Consent Agenda   □ Conference (for discussion only)   □ Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated:)   □ Conference/Action   □ Action   □ Public Hearing				
<u>Division</u> : Administrative Services				
Recommendation: Recommend approval of items submitted.				
Background/Rationale:				
Financial Considerations: See attached.				
Documents Attached:				
<ol> <li>Other Agreements</li> <li>Approval of Declared Surplus Materials and Equipment</li> </ol>				

Estimated Time: N/A

Submitted by: Daniel M. Sanchez, Manager II, Purchasing Services

Kimberly Teague, Contract Specialist

Approved by: Ken A. Forrest, Chief Business Officer

#### **EXPENDITURE AND OTHER AGREEMENTS**

Contractor Description Amount

#### **CAPITAL ASSET MANAGEMENT SERVICES**

SA13-00477 HMC Architects 5/1/13 – Completion of Services: Architectural and Engineering Services for design and construction documents for the replacement of the existing track at John F. Kennedy High School (Increment 1).

<u>Strategic Plan</u>: Aligns with Priority III, Organizational Transformation, by improving the facilities in which we teach and learn.

SA13-00478 HMC Architects 5/1/13 – Completion of Services: Architectural and Engineering Services for design and construction documents for the replacement of the existing track at Rosemont High School.

<u>Strategic Plan</u>: Aligns with Priority III, Organizational Transformation, by improving the facilities in which we teach and learn.

SA13-00565 HMR Architects 5/1/13 – Completion of Services: Architectural and Engineering Services for design and construction documents for the modernization of the gym building at Hiram Johnson High School.

<u>Strategic Plan</u>: Aligns with Priority III, Organizational Transformation, by improving the facilities in which we teach and learn.

#### **NUTRITION SERVICES**

SA13-00518 Harris School Solutions

Upgrade and implementation of 5/1/13 - 9/30/13: computer software for school eTrition accountability, online and paper meal eligibility application processing, and online prepayment systems for meals. Nutrition software has not been upgraded for over a decade. Upgraded software has ability to track students from school to school (K-12) without a change in their meal identification number. It also can track meal prepayments and negative credit balances and retain them with the students as they move around the district, automatically, and not manually, as with the older software. Upgraded software will track and account for negative credit balances, and provide swifter customer service and communication to households about their students' meal eligibility, prepayment and negative credit balances. Training is also included, if needed.

<u>Strategic Plan:</u> Aligns with Priority III, Organizational Transformation, by improving the facilities in which we teach and learn.

\$94,047 Child Nutrition – School Program Funds

\$154,000

\$99.500

\$230,120

**Bond Funds** 

**Bond Funds** 

**Bond Funds** 

2 April 18, 2013

### **APPROVAL OF DECLARED SURPLUS MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT**

ITEM SITE/DEPARTMENT TOTAL VALUE DISPOSAL METHOD

Office Equipment A. Warren McClaskey Adult None Recycle Education

3 April 18, 2013



# **AGREEMENT**

For

# **ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES**

For

# TRACK AND FIELD REPLACEMENT AT JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCOOL (INCREMENT 1)

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

DEFINITIONS	2
RETENTION OF ARCHITECT: STANDARD OF CARE	3
DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT	3
COMPENSATION	4
BASIC SERVICES TO BE RENDERED BY ARCHITECT	6
ADDITIONAL SERVICES TO BE RENDERED BY ARCHITECT	17
RESPONSIBILITIES OF DISTRICT	19
PUBLIC LIABILITY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE INSURANCE	19
WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE	20
PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE	21
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS	22
TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT	22
ARCHITECT AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	23
STANDARDIZED MANUFACTURED ITEMS	23
OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS	24
LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY	24
ACCOUNTING RECORDS OF ARCHITECT	25
INDEMNITY	25
TIME SCHEDULE	26
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	26

#### AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES

This Agreement for Architectural Services ("Agreement") is made and entered into by and between the Sacramento City Unified School District, a school district duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (the "District"), and HMC Architects (the "Architect"), with respect to the following recitals:

- A. District proposes to undertake the construction of improvement projects which require the services of a duly qualified and licensed architect.
- B. Architect represents that Architect is licensed to provide architectural/engineering services in the State of California and is specially qualified to provide the services required by the District, specifically the design and construction oversight of public school(s).
- C. The parties have negotiated the terms pursuant to which Architect will provide such services and reduce such terms to writing by this Agreement.

In consideration of the covenants and conditions contained in this Agreement, the parties agree as follows:

#### **ARTICLE 1**

#### **DEFINITIONS**

- 1.1 <u>Additional Services</u>. "Additional Services" shall mean those services in addition to the Basic Services that are provided by Architect and authorized in writing by the District, and as further defined in Article 6 herein.
  - 1.2 **Agreement**. "Agreement" shall mean this Agreement for Architectural Services.
- 1.3 **Architect**. "Architect" shall mean HMC Architects, and its officers, shareholders, owners, partners, employees, agents and authorized representatives.
- 1.4 <u>Basic Services</u>. Architect's Basic Services consist of the design services, including landscaping architectural services and landscape irrigation design, civil, structural, mechanical, and electrical engineering services, normally required to complete the Project, as further defined in Article 5.
- 1.5 <u>Contract Documents</u>. "Contract Documents" shall mean those documents which are required for the actual construction of the Project, including but not limited to the Agreement between Owner and Contractor, complete working drawings and specifications setting forth in detail sufficient for construction the work to be done and the materials, workmanship, finishes and equipment required for the architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical system and utility-service-connected equipment and site work.
- 1.6 <u>Contractor</u>. "Contractor" shall mean one or more contractors ultimately selected to perform work on the Project or any replacement.
- 1.7 <u>District</u>. "District" shall mean the Sacramento City Unified School District, and its governing board members, employees, agents and authorized representatives.

- 1.8 **Project**. "Project" shall mean the work of improvement described in Article 3 and the construction thereof, including the Architect's services thereon, as described in this Agreement.
- 1.9 **Project Construction Cost**. "Project Construction Cost" shall mean the estimate of total construction costs to the District as initially submitted by the Architect pursuant to this Agreement and accepted by the District, and as subsequently revised in these manners: (a) Revised by changes to the Project Construction Cost under Article 5 of this Agreement; (b) revised at the time the District enters a construction contract, to equal the construction contract amount, (c) increased by the dollar amounts of all approved additive contract change order items, with the exception of (i) items resulting from Wrongful Acts or Omissions on the part of the Architect, including but not limited to those items covered by Section 5.7.19.2, below, (ii) payments to Architect or consultants for costs of inspections, surveys, tests and sites and landscaping not included in the Project, and (iii) items where Architect and District agreed to compensate the Architect for its services on an hourly basis, pursuant to Section 5.7.19.1, below; and (d) decreased by the dollar amounts of all approved deductive contract change order items.
- 1.10 <u>Wrongful Acts or Omissions</u>. "Wrongful Acts or Omissions" shall mean Architect's acts or omissions in breach of this Agreement, the applicable standard of care, or law.

#### **ARTICLE 2**

#### **RETENTION OF ARCHITECT: STANDARD OF CARE**

District retains Architect to perform, and Architect agrees to provide to District, for the consideration and upon the terms and conditions set forth below, the architectural and engineering services specified in this Agreement and related incidental services. The Architect agrees to perform such services as expeditiously as is consistent with professional skill and care and the orderly progress of the Project. All services performed by the Architect under and required by this Agreement shall be performed (a) in compliance with this Agreement and (b) in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by architects in the same discipline, on similar projects in California with similar complexity and with similar agreements, who are specially qualified to provide the services required by the District; and all such services shall be conducted in conformance to, and compliance with, all applicable Federal, State and local laws, including but not limited to statutes, decisions, regulations, building or other codes, ordinances, charters, and the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA"). Architect shall be responsible for the completeness and accuracy of the plans and specifications.

#### **ARTICLE 3**

#### **DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT**

The Project concerning which such architectural services shall be provided is described as:

Track and Field Renovations at John F. Kennedy High School, (Increment 1) per Scope of Work attached as Exhibit A

The project is not intended to be split into multiple prime contracts.

#### **ARTICLE 4**

#### **COMPENSATION**

#### 4.1 **Basic Services**

4.1.1 For all "Basic Services" satisfactorily performed as defined in Articles 1 and 5 of this Agreement, the total compensation paid to the Architect for the Project shall be no more than One Hundred Forty Four Thousand Dollars (\$144,000). This compensation shall be paid pursuant to the following schedule:

Initial Payment	0%
Upon Completion of:	
Schematic Design	10%
Design Development Phase	10% / 10%
Contract Documents Phase	10% / 10%
DSA Back Check	10%
Bidding Phase	10%
Construction Phase	25%
Close Out Phase	5%
TOTAL BASIC COMPENSATION	100%

Upon any adjustment (increase or decrease) to the Project Construction Cost as contemplated by Article 1.9, including but not limited to any adjustment made at such time as bids are received, the Architect's total compensation for Basic Services for the Project shall also be increased or decreased, including retroactively for Basic Services already performed and payments already made. Such adjustments may be effected by the District by either (a) adjusting any future payment due under the payment schedule immediately above, or (b) issuing a revision notice to Architect that either tenders any additional payment owed or demands reimbursement from the Architect of any overpayment to date.

#### 4.2 Additional Services

- 4.2.1 For all "Additional Services," as defined in Articles 1 and 6 of this Agreement, compensation shall be a fee to be agreed upon by the parties in writing prior to performance of such services by Architect. Unless expressly stated in the written authorization to proceed with the additional services, the fee for such additional services shall be an amount computed by multiplying the hours to be worked by Architect's staff or Architect's consultants by their standard billing rates as attached in Exhibit "A," or as otherwise specifically approved in writing in advance by District.
- 4.2.2 Architect shall keep complete records showing all hours worked and all costs and charges applicable to work not covered by the basic fee. Architect will be responsible for Architect's consultants keeping similar records. District shall be given reasonable access to those records for audit purposes.

#### 4.3 **Reimbursable Expenses**

Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to the Compensation for Basic and Additional Services and include actual expenditures made by the Architect and the Architect's employees and consultants in the interest of the Project for the expenses listed below:

- 4.3.1 Expense of transportation in connection with the Project; living expenses in connection with out-of-town travel; and long distance communications.
- 4.3.2 Expense of reproductions; fax, postage and messenger for transmission of drawings, specifications and other documents (excluding reproductions for the office use of the Architect and the Architect's consultants).
- 4.3.3 Expense of data processing and photographic production techniques when used in connection with Additional Services.
- 4.3.4 If authorized in advance by the District, expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates.
- 4.3.5 Expense of renderings, models and mock-ups requested by the District; expense of publishing pursuant to section 5.6.5.

Reimbursable Expenses do not include indirect costs, such as general overhead (for example, home office overhead [including technology hardware and software] or insurance premiums), for which Architect must pay out of its compensation for services under Section 4.1, above; nor do they include expenses incurred in connection with Basic or Additional Services that result from Wrongful Acts or Omissions. Architect may not charge a mark-up on Reimbursable Expenses. Payment for all Reimbursable Expenses incurred in connection with either Basic or Additional Services shall be made on a monthly basis. Invoices, receipts or other documentation to establish the validity of all reimbursable expenses shall be a prerequisite to District payment of such expenses. Architect's total reimbursement for Reimbursable Expenses shall not exceed \$10,000 which is Architect's estimate of the maximum total cost of Reimbursable Expenses on the Project.

- 4.4 Each payment to Architect for Basic and Additional Services satisfactorily performed, and Reimbursable Expenses reasonably incurred, shall be made in the usual course of District business after presentation by Architect of a properly documented and submitted monthly invoice approved by District's authorized representative designating the services performed, or Reimbursable Expenses incurred, the method of computation of the amount payable, and the amount payable. District shall pay approved invoices within sixty (60) days after proper submission by Architect, and Architect otherwise waives all rights and remedies under law related to receipt of payment. To be properly submitted, an invoice shall be timely, be accompanied by all necessary documentation, list all activities performed and specify to which phase of the Architect's work listed in Section 4.1.1 it relates, and for each activity performed list the person performing it and the person's rate of compensation. Architect's invoice shall be submitted within ten (10) days of the end of the monthly billing period. If District disputes a portion of a properly submitted invoice, it shall notify Architect of the dispute and, upon Architect's written request, arrange for a meeting to confer about, and potentially resolve the dispute. Prior to this meeting, Architect shall provide all documentation requested to support disputed portions of properly submitted invoice. Regardless of any such dispute about an invoice or payment, Architect shall continue to provide all services required by this Agreement and law until the end of the Project, even if District and Architect cannot resolve all such disputes.
- 4.5 The Architect's compensation shall be paid at the time and in the amount noted, where the amount due to the Architect is not disputed, notwithstanding a Contractor-caused delay in completion of the project or reduction of final construction cost by reason of penalties, liquidated damages, or other amounts withheld from the Contractor. However, District may withhold from payments to Architect to the extent that (i) Basic and Additional Services remain to be performed, including but not limited to

those required for project closeout and payments to Contractor; and (ii) Wrongful Acts or Omissions caused District to incur damages, losses, liabilities or costs, including but not limited to withholding any amounts for which Architect is responsible under Section 5.7.20.

- 4.6 Should District cancel the Project pursuant to section 12.1 of this Agreement at any time during the performance of this Agreement, Architect shall, upon notice of such cancellation, immediately cease all work under this Agreement. In such event, Architect's total fee for all services performed shall be computed as set forth in Section 12.1.
- 4.7 Architect shall not accept compensation or other benefits from other persons related to the Project, including payments from manufacturers of construction materials that are specified in the design.

#### **ARTICLE 5**

#### BASIC SERVICES TO BE RENDERED BY ARCHITECT

#### 5.1 **General**

- 5.1.1 Architect's Basic Services consist of the design services, including landscaping architectural services and landscape irrigation design, civil, structural, mechanical, and electrical engineering services, normally required to complete the Project. The Basic Services also include the services described in this Article 5, below, including but not limited to bid package preparation, bid handling, preparation and processing of change orders, requests for information, and other contract administration duties. The District shall have the right to add or delete from the Architect's scope of services as it may determine is necessary for the best interests of the Project and/or the District. Architect shall expeditiously and diligently perform all of its work and obligations under this Agreement. Architect may not cease, delay or reduce, or threaten to cease, delay or reduce, its performance based on a payment dispute with District under Section 4.4, above. The Architect acknowledges that its priority is to complete the Project and the Architect's services, and that any payment disputes with the District under Section 4.4, if not resolved during the Project, must wait for resolution after the Project.
- 5.1.2 The Architect shall review the estimate described more fully hereinafter at each phase of Architect's services, also as defined hereinafter. If such estimates are in excess of the project budget, the Architect shall revise the type or quality of construction to come within the budgeted limit.
- 5.1.3 Whenever the Architect's services include the presentation to the District of Project Construction Cost, the Architect shall include a reasonable amount for contingency costs arising from, among other things, higher bids than anticipated, future increase in construction costs, and change orders based on unforeseen site conditions. However, any such contingency for change orders shall not affect Architect's compensation.
- 5.1.4 The Architect shall notify the District if there are any indicated adjustments in previously provided Project Construction Cost arising from market fluctuations or approved changes in scope or requirements based upon a mutually agreed upon index. Any such adjustments shall not affect Architect's compensation until bids are received and accepted.
- 5.1.5 At the District's request, the Architect and Architect's consultants shall cooperate with District and the District's consultants in verifying that Architect's plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents relating to the Project are constructible and otherwise comply

with the Contract Documents. If there are project meetings during the design and construction phases, Architect shall attend those meetings.

- 5.1.6 The Architect shall investigate existing conditions of facilities and thoroughly account for and list in the construction documents any pertinent conditions of such facilities, all in a manner that satisfies the standard of care and level of performance required by this Agreement. Architect's investigation required by this provision shall be limited to non-destructive evaluation.
- 5.1.7 Architect shall provide a list of employees who will be dedicated to delivering the project on time and within budget. All personnel provided by Architect shall be qualified to perform the services for which they are provided. Architect shall obtain District's approval of each employee of Architect who provides services under this Agreement, and approval of each change of employees who are providing such services. District may, upon 24 hours written notice, cause Architect to remove a person from the Project if he/she has failed to perform to District's satisfaction. Should additional employees be required to timely perform all of the services required under this Agreement and/or to avoid delay, Architect shall provide them immediately.
- 5.1.8 Architect is an agent of District and shall reasonably represent the District at all times in relation to the Project.
- 5.1.9 Architect shall be fully licensed as required by law at all times when providing services under this Agreement.

#### 5.2 Consultants

- 5.2.1 Architect's Consultants. The Architect shall employ or retain at Architect's own expense, engineers and other consultants necessary to Architect's performance of this Agreement and licensed to practice in their respective professions in the State of California. Engineers and consultants employed by Architect for this Project shall be approved by District prior to their commencement of work. The Architect's consultants shall be employed to provide assistance during all aspects of the Project and will include, in addition to design services: review of schedules, shop drawings, samples, submittals, and requests for information. The Architect's Consultants shall also conduct periodic inspections of the site to determine conformance with the Project design and specifications and shall participate in the final inspections and development of any "punch list" items. Architect must disclose to District all such consultants retained, and the compensation paid to them.
- 5.2.2 <u>District's Consultants.</u> Architect shall confer and cooperate with consultants retained by District as may be requested by District or as reasonably necessary. District may retain a construction manager to assist District in performance of District's duties for the Project.
- 5.2.3 The Architect shall procure a certified survey of the site if required, including grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, adjoining properties and structures; adjacent drainage; rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries and contours of the building site, locations, dimensions and floor elevations of existing buildings, other improvements and trees; and full information as to available utility services and lines, both public and private above and below grade, including inverts and depths. All the information on the survey customarily referenced to a project benchmark shall be referenced to a Project benchmark. The cost of any such survey shall be borne by the District, and the District shall own and, upon termination of this Agreement or completion of the Project, shall have returned to it by Architect any designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents prepared as part of the survey.

- 5.2.4 Architect shall procure chemical, mechanical or other tests required for proper design. Tests for hazardous materials and borings or test pits necessary for determining subsoil conditions will be the responsibility of the District, and the District shall own and, upon termination of this Agreement or completion of the Project, shall have returned to it by Architect any designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents prepared as part of the testing.
- 5.2.5 Architect shall assist the District and its consultants to apply for funding for the Project from the State Allocation Board. Architect shall be responsible for all submittals required of the Architect by the Division of the State Architect ("DSA"), Office of Public School Construction ("OPSC") and California Department of Education in connection therewith, including but not limited to: New Construction Program, Modernization Program, Career Technical Education, Critically Overcrowded Schools, Emergency Repair Program, Facility Hardship Program, High Performance Incentive, Joint-Use Program, Overcrowding Relief Grant and the Seismic Mitigation Program.

#### 5.3 Schematic Design Phase

- 5.3.1 The Architect shall review all information concerning the Project delivered or communicated by the District to the Architect to ascertain the requirements of the Project and shall arrive at a mutual understanding of such requirements with the District.
- 5.3.2 The Architect shall provide a preliminary evaluation of the District's Project, schedule and construction budget requirements, each in terms of the other.
- 5.3.3 The Architect shall review with the District alternative approaches to the design and construction of the Project, and shall include alternatives that may reduce the cost of the Project.
- 5.3.4 Based on a mutual understanding of the District's budget and scope of work requirements, the Architect shall prepare for the District's written approval, schematic design documents, which include but are not limited to, schematic design studies, site utilization plans, a description of the Project showing, among other things, the scale and relationship of the components of the Project, preparation of a written estimated statement of Project Construction Cost and a written time schedule for the performance of the work that itemizes constraints and critical path issues. The schematic design documents shall represent a 15% complete design. The Project Construction Cost shall be based on current area, volume and other unit costs, shall conform to District's total construction cost budget, and shall include reasonable contingencies for all construction and construction management work. The written schedule shall conform to District's milestone and completion deadline requirements. Nevertheless, Architect is encouraged to make recommendations to District regarding additional benefits that could be realized by increasing the District's total construction cost budget, or by altering the District's completion deadlines. If District incorporates any recommended changes, then Architect shall revise the schematic design documents, including but not limited to the written statement of Project Construction Cost and written schedule for the performance of work, as necessary until the District approves them in writing. If requested by the District, Architect shall attend, and present at, as many meetings of the District's governing board as may be necessary to obtain written approval of the schematic design documents.
- 5.3.5 The Architect shall submit to the District a preliminary Project Construction Cost based on current area, volume and other unit costs.

#### 5.4 **Design Development Phase**

- 5.4.1 Following District's written approval of the schematic design documents, including the estimate of Project Construction Cost and schedule, Architect shall provide all necessary architectural and engineering services to prepare design development documents for the District's written approval, which fix and describe the size and character of the project and which shall include, but are not limited to, site and floor plans, elevations and other approved drawings and shall outline the specifications of the entire Project as to kind and quality of materials, categories of proposed work such as architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical systems, types of structures and all such other work as may be required. During the design development phase, Architect will keep the Project within all budget and scope constraints set by the District. The design development documents shall represent a 50% complete design. The design development documents shall include a revised Project Construction Cost, and a revised construction schedule. The revised Project Construction Cost shall be based on current area, volume and other unit costs. The revised Project Construction Cost shall conform to District's total construction cost budget and shall include reasonable contingencies for all construction and construction management work, and the revised construction schedule shall conform to District's milestone and completion deadline requirements. Nevertheless, Architect is encouraged to make recommendations to District regarding additional benefits that could be realized by altering the District's total construction cost budget or completion deadlines. If District incorporates any recommended changes or otherwise does not approve the submitted design development documents, then Architect shall revise the design development documents, including but not limited to the written statement of Project Construction Cost and written schedule for the performance of work, as necessary until District approves them in writing. If requested by the District, Architect shall attend, and present at, as many meetings of the District's governing board as may be necessary to obtain written approval of the design development documents.
- 5.4.2 The Architect shall assist the District and its consultants in the preparation and/or modification of the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan if any such plan is required for this Project.
- 5.4.3 Architect shall prepare necessary documents for and oversee the processing of District's application for and obtaining of required approvals from the DSA, the OPSC (if applicable), the California Department of Education, the State Fire Marshall and other agencies exercising jurisdiction over the Project. Architect shall also be responsible for the preparation and submission of any required applications, notices or certificates to public agencies as required by law. Architect shall provide a copy of all such documents to the District.
- 5.4.4 The Architect shall advise the District of any adjustments to the preliminary Project Construction Cost.
- 5.4.5 Architect shall identify areas of construction for which unit pricing shall be required as part of the Contractor's bid.
- 5.4.6 Architect shall provide at no expense to the District one complete set of preliminary plans for the review and written approval of the District and one set for each public agency having approval authority over such plans for their review and approval at no expense to the District.

#### 5.5 Contract Documents Phase

5.5.1 Following the District's written approval of the design development documents, including the Project Construction Cost and construction schedule, the Architect shall prepare Contract Documents consisting of 100% complete working drawings and specifications setting forth the work to

be done in detail sufficient for construction, including but not limited to the materials, workmanship, finishes and equipment required for the architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical system and utility-service-connected equipment and site work. Architect shall ensure that the drawings and specifications are, among other things, complete, accurate, and coordinated so as to eliminate errors, omissions and conflicts, especially between the work of a subconsultant and other subconsultants or the Architect; and Architect may not shift its responsibility for completeness, accuracy and coordination to the Contractor, except on a clearly designated design-build project. Architect shall also update the construction schedule and the Project Construction Cost for District approval. The Contract Documents shall conform to, comply with, and satisfy all applicable Federal, State and local laws, including but not limited to statutes, decisions, regulations, building or other codes, ordinances, charters, and the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA"). As part of the Contract Documents, Architect shall prepare an accurate set of drawings indicating dimensions and locations of existing buried utility lines, which shall be included in the bid packages. If the project is intended to be split into multiple prime contracts, then the Contract Documents shall be structured in order to maximize the ability to create multiple prime bid packages for the Project, and shall identify the bid packages to be created.

- 5.5.2 Architect shall consult with and involve the District in development of the bid documents and bid package, and shall forward them to the District for written approval prior to their use. If the District is using a multiple prime delivery method for the Project with multiple bid packages, then Architect shall consult with and involve the District in identification and development of the bid documents and bid packages, and shall forward them to the District for written approval prior to their use.
- 5.5.3 Prior to submission of the Contract Documents to DSA for plan check, the Architect shall submit the Contract Documents to the District for an opportunity to review them for various issues, including but not limited to constructability, scheduling, general completeness, clarity, consistency, coordination, cost-effectiveness, value engineering, identification of possible add/delete bid alternatives, time of construction, and suitability for separation of the Project design, plans and specifications into bid packages for various categories and/or portions of the work. However, such review by District is not required. In addition, and prior to submission of the Contract Documents to DSA for plan check, Architect shall advise the District of all elements of the design applicable to the Project or lawfully imposed upon the Project by the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA").
- 5.5.4 After approval by the District and any constructability review, the Architect shall submit the Contract Documents to DSA for plan check, and make the necessary corrections to secure DSA approval.
- 5.5.5 The Architect shall give the District, at the time of DSA approval of the final form of the Contract Documents, Architect's final estimate of Project Construction Cost and construction schedule, which shall be given final written approval by the District along with the Contract Documents. The revised Project Construction Cost shall be based on current area, volume and other unit costs, and on a mutually acceptable recognized building cost index, and shall include a reasonable contingency. In preparing the revised estimate of Project Construction cost and construction schedule for the Contract Documents, the Architect shall consult with and involve the District in the process to maximize accuracy and completeness. If the District is intending to enter multiple prime contracts, the Project Construction Cost shall include separate bid estimates for each bid package, plus a reasonable contingency; and the construction schedule shall reflect the fact that

multiple contractors will be performing separate bid packages, including a general conditions bid package. The revised Project Construction Cost estimate shall conform to District's total Project budget, and the revised construction schedule shall conform to District's milestone and completion deadline requirements. If requested by the District, Architect shall attend, and present at, as many meetings of the District's governing board as may be necessary to obtain written approval of the Contract Documents.

#### 5.6 **Bidding and Negotiations Phase**

- 5.6.1 Following DSA's and District's written approval of Contract Documents and the District's written acceptance of Architect's final estimate of Project Construction Cost and Construction schedule, Architect shall continue to work with the District in finalizing the bid documents and bid package, as described in Section 5.5.2, above. Architect shall reproduce the bid documents as requested by the District and shall assist the District in evaluating contract proposals or bids, as well as substitutions proposed by contractors, and in awarding the bids. All sets of Contract Documents requested by the District, which does not include those for the use of the Architect or its consultants, shall be reproduced at District's expense.
- 5.6.2 Architect's estimate of Project Construction Cost at the time of DSA approval of the Contract Documents shall be current as of that date. Should bids be received more than ninety (90) days after the date of that Project Construction Cost, the Architect's total construction cost shall be escalated by the cost-of-construction in the then current mutually agreed upon recognized building cost index.
- 5.6.3 Should the lowest responsible and responsive bid received on a bid package exceed Architect's most recent approved estimate of Project Construction Cost for that bid package (or amount adjusted according to the then current mutually agreed upon recognized building cost index) as accepted by District by more than ten percent (10%), Architect shall, on request by District and as part of Architect's Basic Services, make such changes in the plans and specifications as shall be necessary to bring new bids within ten percent (10%) of such Project Construction Cost. In making such changes, Architect will exercise Architect's best judgment in determining the balance between the size of the Project, the type of construction, and the quality of the construction to achieve a satisfactory project within ten percent (10%) of Architect's Project Construction Cost. To avoid the potential for bids to exceed the estimate by more than 10% at bid opening, the Architect may, as an alternative, include in the Contract Documents one or more deductive alternatives so that Architect and District may evaluate different means to achieve a satisfactory project within ten percent (10%) of the Architect's Project Construction Cost.
- 5.6.4 If requested by the District, Architect shall assist in the review of the qualifications of all bidders for the construction of the Project, and shall make recommendations to the District as to whether, in the Architect's professional opinion, a bidder meets the minimum requirements.
- 5.6.5 If, in the District's discretion, the District will seek total or partial State funding for this Project, the Architect shall also prepare and submit the appropriate documentation to the OPSC.

#### 5.7 **Construction Phase**

- 5.7.1 The construction phase shall begin on the date stated in the official Notice to Proceed and, solely for purposes of payment of the Architect, shall be deemed complete upon District's written approval of Architect's final certificate for payment to Contractor, provided that such certification and payment shall not constitute an admission by Architect or District that the Project has been completed in accordance with Contract Documents or in conformance with this Agreement.
- 5.7.2 All instructions to the Contractor shall be forwarded through the Architect unless otherwise directed by the District. The Architect shall advise and consult with the District in the general administration of the Project. The Architect will have authority to act on behalf of the District only to the extent provided in the Contract Documents, unless the District grants additional authority in writing.
- 5.7.3 The Architect shall timely provide District with copies of all of its correspondence with the Contractors.
- 5.7.4 The Architect shall provide prompt and timely direction to the District's Project inspectors and/or contractors as to the interpretation of Contract Documents. Architect shall respond to all requests for information ("RFI's") from a Contractor within fourteen (14) calendar days of receipt, unless the subject of the RFI is impacting, or may impact, the critical path of the project and is causing, or may cause, delay, in which case the Architect shall respond as soon as reasonably possible, if not immediately. If the Architect is not able to take action within the time required due to reasons beyond Architect's control, the Architect may take action within a reasonable period of time under the circumstances; however, the Architect shall make such determination within seven (7) calendar days of receipt of the RFI, and shall notify the District and Contractor immediately after such determination with an explanation as to why the Architect cannot take action within the time required, what the Architect is doing to expedite its response, when the Architect expects to be able to issue a response, and what action, if any, should be taken by District or Contractor in the meantime to mitigate delays and/or costs.
- 5.7.5 Based on information provided by the Contractor and Architect's own knowledge of the Project (including documents in Architect's possession or reasonably available to it), Architect shall prepare an accurate set of as-built record drawings indicating dimensions and locations of all work, including but not limited to buried utility lines and mechanical, electrical and plumbing layouts, which shall be forwarded to the District upon completion of the Project in both DWG and PDF formats. Architect will also provide the District with revised "1A's" as part of the Close Out Phase.

While Architect cannot guarantee precise accuracy of such drawings, Architect shall exercise reasonable care in reviewing such drawings to determine their general compliance with the Contract Documents. Architect shall have no responsibility for their conformity to field conditions. Except that in the event that the Architect, consistent with standards of due care, becomes aware of non-conformity with field conditions, Architect shall have a duty immediately to notify the District in writing. Architect shall also assemble and deliver to District all written guarantees, instruction books, operation and maintenance manuals, diagrams, charts and other documents required of Contractors.

5.7.6 The Architect shall be responsible for the preparation and submission of any notifications regarding excavation in areas which are known or suspected to contain subsurface

installations pursuant to Government Code section 4216, *et seq*. The Architect may delegate this responsibility to a Contractor if such power to delegate was included in the Contract Documents and bid package, but Architect shall remain responsible for supervising such Contractor to ensure performance of this task. Architect shall provide a copy of all such notifications to the District.

- 5.7.7 The Architect shall, at all times, have access to the Project wherever it is in preparation and progress. To the extent reasonably possible given Contractor's work in progress, the District shall provide such access so that the Architect may perform its functions under the Agreement and Contract Documents.
- 5.7.8 In the discharge of its duties of observation and interpretation, the Architect shall require Contractors to comply with the Contract Documents, and shall guard the District against defects and deficiencies in the work of the Contractor. The Architect shall advise and consult with the District and inspectors concerning the Contractor's compliance with the Contract Documents and shall assist the District and inspectors in securing the Contractor's compliance.
- 5.7.9 The Architect shall visit the site enough times to adequately perform its professional duties (both as the Architect deems necessary and as requested by the District), but under no circumstances less than one time per week, unless fewer visits are authorized by District, to maintain familiarity with the quality and progress of the Project, to determine that the Contractor's work substantially complies with all documents, drawings, plans and specifications and that the Project is progressing in substantial accordance with the Contract Documents. Such observations are to be distinguished from the continuous inspection provided by the Project Inspector unless Architect has agreed in writing to serve as the District's Project Inspector.
- 5.7.10 The Architect shall notify the District promptly of any significant defect in materials, equipment or workmanship, and of any default by any Contractor in the orderly and timely prosecution of the Project. Architect will exercise reasonable care in the discharge of Architect's obligation to discover significant defects and faults.
- 5.7.11 The Architect shall review and approve, take exception to, or take other appropriate action upon all schedules, shop drawings, samples and other submissions of the Contractor to determine general conformance with the Project design and specifications as set forth in the Contract Documents. All such action shall be taken within fourteen (14) days of receipt of the submittals, unless the critical path of the Project is impacted in which case Architect shall take such action as soon as possible. If Architect is not able to take such action within the required time due to reasons beyond Architect's control, the Architect may take action within a reasonable period of time under the circumstances; however, the Architect shall make such determination within four (4) calendar days of receipt of the submission, and shall notify the District and Contractor immediately after such determination with an explanation as to why the Architect cannot take action within the time required, what the Architect is doing to expedite its response, when the Architect expects to be able to issue a response, and what action, if any, should be taken by District or Contractor in the meantime to mitigate delays and/or costs. The Architect will have the authority to reject work and materials which do not conform to the Contract Documents. The Architect's approval of a specific item shall not be an approval of an assembly of which the item is a component. Whenever, in the Architect's reasonable judgment, it is considered necessary or advisable for the implementation of the intent of the Contract Documents, the Architect will have authority to require special inspection or testing of the work or materials in accordance with the Contract Documents whether or not such work or materials be then

fabricated, installed or completed. The Architect will also recommend substitution of materials or equipment when, in the Architect's reasonable judgment, such action is necessary to the accomplishment of the intent and purpose of the Contract Documents. Such actions as are described in this paragraph shall be taken with reasonable promptness.

- 5.7.12 Architect shall assist the District in requiring Contractor to provide assistance in the utilization of any equipment or system such as initial start-up or testing, adjusting and balancing, preparation of operation and maintenance manuals and training personnel for operation and maintenance.
- 5.7.13 The Architect shall not be responsible for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions or programs in connection with the work. The Architect shall not be responsible for acts or omissions of the Contractor, subcontractors, or their agents or employees or of any other persons performing portions of the Project not employed or retained by Architect, unless due to Wrongful Acts or Omissions.
- 5.7.14 The Architect shall make such regular reports as shall be required by agencies having jurisdiction over the Project and keep the District informed in writing of the progress of the Project.
- 5.7.15 The Architect will, consistent with standards of due care, make reasonable professional efforts to exclude hazardous materials from new construction. In the event the District or Architect is or becomes aware of the presence of, or exposure of persons to, asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) or any other toxic or hazardous contaminants, materials, air pollutants or water pollutants at the Project site ("Hazardous Substances"), or the substantial risk thereof, each shall have a duty immediately to notify the other in writing. The parties recognize, however, that neither Architect nor the District is trained or licensed in the recognition or remediation of Hazardous Substances. When construction is properly completed, Architect shall provide such certification as to Hazardous Substances as is required of architects for such projects by the OPSC.
- 5.7.16 Based on the Architect's observations, and an evaluation of each Project Application for Payment, the Architect will estimate the amount of work completed by Contractor, and assist the District in (a) determining the amount owing to the Contractor, and (b) issuing Project Certificates for Payment incorporating such amount, all in accordance with the Contract Documents. The Architect's estimation of the amount of work completed by Contractor shall constitute representations by the Architect to the District that the quality of the completed work is in accordance with the Contract Documents based upon Architect's observations of the completed work and that the Contractor is entitled to payment for the completed work.
- 5.7.17 Notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement, as a part of its Basic Services, the Architect shall assist the District in evaluating and responding to claims, disputes and other matters in question between the Contractor and the District, including but not limited to claims made against the District as a result of alleged or claimed Wrongful Acts or Omissions, and shall in all instances provide such truthful testimonial assistance as may be required by the District at no cost to the District. Architect agrees to toll all statutory periods of limitations for District's claims, lawsuits or other proceedings against Architect which arise out of, or related to, any claims by Contractors against District until Contractors' claims are fully and finally resolved. This tolling period commences upon a Contractor's initial submission of a notice of claim, change order request or claim. At any time,

District may terminate the tolling period effective ten (10) days after written notice to Architect, and after such termination, District may pursue claims, lawsuits or other proceedings against Architect.

- 5.7.18 The Architect will provide construction advice to the District on apparent deficiencies in construction, both during construction and after acceptance of the Project.
- 5.7.19 The Architect shall recommend, prepare and process the necessary change orders. Payment of fees to the Architect as a result of change orders shall be handled as follows:
- 5.7.19.1 <u>District-initiated change orders</u>. If a change order is initiated by the District, the Architect's fee for such change order shall be calculated on a percentage or hourly basis as agreed in writing by the District and the Architect prior to commencement of work on the change order. If a change order is solicited by the District but not subsequently authorized by the District, the Architect shall be paid for time spent on the proposed change order as an Additional Service.
- 5.7.19.2 <u>Change orders due to Architect</u>. When a change order is necessitated as a result of Wrongful Acts or Omissions, the Architect's fees shall not be calculated by reference to the cost of any change order work which would not have been necessary in the absence of such Wrongful Acts or Omissions.
- 5.7.19.3 <u>Change orders beyond District or Architect control</u>. If a change order is necessitated as a result of changes in law, in-field changes required by governing agencies after document approval, unknown, unforeseeable or hidden conditions, or actual conditions inconsistent with available drawings of existing conditions, such change orders shall be handled in the same manner as District-initiated change orders.
- 5.7.20 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in the event a change order is caused by, or necessitated as a result of Wrongful Acts or Omissions, or the District otherwise incurs costs or damages as a result of Wrongful Acts or Omissions, the Architect shall be responsible for the cost of the following:
- 5.7.20.1 In the event of such a change order, Architect shall be responsible for the difference between (a) what the contractor would have added to its original bid for the Project if the Wrongful Act or Omission had not occurred (i.e., the "added value" portion of the change order), and (b) what the contractor charges the District in the change order. The amount of added value of any change order work shall be based on the circumstances of the Architect's Wrongful Act or Omission and the change order work necessitated by the Wrongful Act or Omission. It is the parties' intent that the District should pay no more than what the District would have paid if the Wrongful Act or Omission had not occurred.
- 5.7.20.2 In addition, Architect shall be responsible for any other costs or damages which the District incurs as a result of Wrongful Acts or Omissions including but not limited to any delay damages the District pays to, or cannot collect from, Contractor or any third party.

The District may backcharge, and withhold payment from the Architect for these costs and damages, and may seek reimbursement for any amount which exceeds any retention of the contract amount at the time of collection. When District so backcharges and withholds, upon Architect's request, District and Architect shall meet and confer in good faith in an effort to reach agreement on (a)

whether a Wrongful Act or Omission occurred, (b) whether it caused the change order expense, (c) what damages have been incurred by District, and (d) what portion of the damages are attributable to Architect as described above. If District and Architect do not reach agreement on all four of these items when meeting and conferring, then District and Architect shall use mediation in good faith to resolve the dispute. If mediation fails, then either District or Architect can initiate a court action to resolve the dispute.

- 5.7.21 The Architect shall provide a color schedule of all finish materials in the Project for the District's review and approval.
- 5.7.22 The Architect shall assist the District in determining the date of final completion and make a final detailed on-site review of the job with representatives of the District and the Contractor. Architect shall also perform a warranty review with District 30-60 days before expiration of the specified warranty on the Project.
- 5.7.23 The Architect shall assist the District in issuing the final certificate for payment and any other documents required to be recorded by law or generally accepted architectural or construction contract practice upon compliance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, provided that such certification shall not constitute an admission that the Project has been completed in accordance with Contract Documents or in conformance with this Agreement.
- 5.7.24 Architect shall ensure that the finished project complies with all standards imposed by the Americans with Disabilities Act, section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, disability access requirements of the State Building Code and any other laws applicable to disability access. The Architect's final detailed on-site review of the finished project conducted pursuant to Section 5.7.22 shall include a field inspection to ensure compliance with such requirements. If a court, administrative agency or other trier of fact later determines that Architect has violated any of the above-referenced laws, or District, because of Wrongful Acts or Omissions, has violated any of the above-referenced laws, Architect shall remedy the violation at its own cost. Architect shall indemnify, defend and hold the District harmless pursuant to Article 18.1 of this Agreement for any breach of this paragraph due to Architect's negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct. The Architect shall not be responsible for acts or omissions of the Contractor or of any other persons performing portions of the Project not employed or retained by Architect, nor shall Architect be responsible for any subsequent changes in the law or any regulation applicable to disabled access or any subsequent differing interpretation of the laws or regulations applicable at the time Architect's design is reviewed by DSA. In the event that the Architect is or becomes aware of possible noncompliance with the foregoing standards, Architect shall have a duty immediately to notify the District in writing of the possible non-compliance.

#### 5.8 Close Out Phase

5.8.1 Architect will assist the District with securing all documents necessary to achieve DSA certification or formal close out of project.

#### 5.9 Use of Previously Prepared Materials

In the event that there exist previously prepared designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents, or any other works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of

expression, including but not limited to physical drawings, data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer disks, or other writings, that were prepared by design professionals other than Architect, whether supplied by District or by Architect, which are relied upon, altered or otherwise utilized by Architect, Architect shall be responsible for giving appropriate recognition to such other design professionals in any materials prepared by Architect pursuant to this Agreement.

#### **ARTICLE 6**

#### ADDITIONAL SERVICES TO BE RENDERED BY ARCHITECT

- 6.1 "Additional Services" shall be provided by Architect if authorized in writing by District. No additional compensation shall be paid to Architect for performing these Additional Services unless the District and the Architect agree in writing as to the amount of compensation for such services prior to such services being rendered. Such compensation shall be computed as set forth in Article 4.2.1 and as otherwise set forth in this Agreement. Any work performed by Architect without written authorization OR without written agreement on compensation shall be presumed to be Basic Services.
- 6.2 The following list of services are not included in the Basic Services to be provided under this Agreement, and they will be performed only in accordance with Article 6.1, above:
  - 6.2.1 Providing financial feasibility or other special studies;
- 6.2.2 Providing services relative to future facilities, systems and equipment which are not intended to be constructed during the Construction Phase;
- 6.2.3 Providing coordination of Project performed by separate contractors or by the District's own forces;
- 6.2.4 Providing analyses of owning and operating costs, or detailed quantity surveys or inventories of material, equipment and labor;
- 6.2.5 Making revisions in drawings, specifications or other documents when such revisions are inconsistent with written approvals or instructions previously given, are required by the enactment or revision of codes, laws or regulations subsequent to the District's approval of Contract Documents or are due to other causes not within the control of the Architect;
- 6.2.6 Providing consultation concerning replacement of any work damaged by fire or other cause during construction of the Project, and furnishing services as may be required in connection with the replacement of such work;
  - 6.2.7 Providing services made necessary by the default of the Contractor;
- 6.2.8 Preparing to serve or serving as an expert witness in connection with any public hearing, arbitration proceeding or legal proceeding, other than when resulting from Architect's or its consultants' alleged Wrongful Acts or Omissions;
- 6.2.9 Providing services of consultants for other than the normal architectural, civil, soils, structural, mechanical and electrical engineering services for the Project;

- 6.2.10 At the District's request, selecting moveable furniture, equipment or articles which are not included in the Contract Documents;
- 6.2.11 Providing services related to change orders requested by the District but which are not subsequently authorized (see the second sentence of Section 5.7.19.1, above); and
- 6.2.12 Providing any other services not otherwise included in the Agreement and not customarily furnished in accordance with generally accepted architectural practice.

#### **ARTICLE 7**

#### RESPONSIBILITIES OF DISTRICT

It shall be the duty of District to:

- 7.1 Pay all fees required by any reviewing or licensing agency;
- 7.2 Designate a representative authorized to act as a liaison between the Architect and the District in the administration of this Agreement and the Contract Documents;
  - 7.3 Furnish, at the District's expense, the services of a Project Inspector;
- 7.4 Review all documents submitted by the Architect and advise the Architect of decisions thereon within a reasonable time after submission;
  - 7.5 Issue appropriate orders to Contractors through the Architect;
- 7.6 Furnish existing soil investigation or geological hazard reports, which the District shall own and, upon termination of this Agreement or completion of the Project, shall have returned to it by Architect;
- 7.7 Furnish the services of a hydrologist or other consultants not routinely provided by the Architect when such services are reasonably required by the scope of the Project and are requested by the Architect;
- 7.8 Provide asbestos review and abatement, identifying materials which may qualify for same;
- 7.9 Furnish available as-built drawings for buildings and utilities systems related to the Project, which the District shall own and, upon termination of this Agreement or completion of the Project, shall have returned to it by the Architect. The District will also provide information regarding programmatic needs and specific equipment selection data;
- 7.10 Furnish structural, mechanical, chemical and other laboratory tests, inspections and reports as required by law or the Contract Documents, which the District shall own and, upon termination of this Agreement or completion of the Project, shall have returned to it by the Architect; and

7.11 Furnish prompt notice of any fault or defects in the Project or nonconformance with the Contract Documents of which the District becomes aware (however, the District's failure to do so shall not relieve the Architect of Architect's responsibilities under Title 21, Title 24, and the Field Act for this Project and under this agreement).

#### **ARTICLE 8**

#### PUBLIC LIABILITY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE INSURANCE

- 8.1 Prior to the commencement of services under this Agreement, the Architect shall furnish to the District a certificate of insurance, Additional Insured Endorsement and Declarations Page for the period covered by this Agreement, for public liability and property damage with an insurance carrier satisfactory to the District, under forms satisfactory to the District, to protect the Architect and District against loss from liability imposed for damages (1) on account of bodily or personal injuries, including death, disease and sickness, accidentally suffered or alleged to have been suffered by any person or persons that may be caused directly or indirectly by the performance of this Agreement, and (2) on account of injury to or destruction of property, including the resultant loss of use of the Project or other District facilities or equipment, resulting from acts of commission or omission by the Architect, or otherwise resulting directly or indirectly from the Architect's operations in the performance of this Agreement. The District shall be named as an additional insured on all such policies.
- 8.2 The following insurance shall be maintained by the Architect in full force and effect during the entire period of performance of this Agreement, including any extensions, and shall be written on an "occurrence" basis: Commercial general liability insurance, excluding coverage for motor vehicles, shall be in amounts not less than Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) on an annual aggregate basis. Such insurance or liability coverage shall at least include "broad form" commercial general liability, errors and omissions (exclusive of design professional liability), and automobile liability (owned, non-owned, and hired) coverages. Each party, and their respective directors, officers and employees, shall be listed as "additional insureds" under such coverages, as evidenced by an Additional Insured Endorsement.
- 8.3 The Architect's insurance policies shall contain a provision for thirty (30) days written notice to the District of cancellation or reduction of coverage. The Architect shall name, on any policy of insurance required, the District as an additional insured. The Additional Insured Endorsement included on all such insurance policies shall state that coverage is afforded the additional insured with respect to claims arising out of operations performed by or on behalf of the insured. If the additional insureds have other insurance which is applicable to the loss, such other insurance shall be on an excess or contingent basis. The amount of the insurer's liability shall not be reduced by the existence of such other insurance. Architect shall not commence work under this Agreement until all required insurance certificates, declarations pages and additional insured endorsements have been obtained and delivered in duplicate to the District for approval subject to the following requirements. Thereafter Architect shall produce a certified copy of any insurance policy required under this section upon written request of the District.
- 8.4 At the time of making application for any extension of time, Architect shall submit evidence that insurance policies will be in effect during the requested additional period of time.

- 8.5 If the Architect fails to maintain such insurance, the District may, but shall not be required to, take out such insurance to cover any damages of the above-mentioned classes for which the District might be held liable on account of the Architect's failure to pay such damages, and deduct and retain the amount of the premiums from any sums due the Architect under this Agreement.
- 8.6 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as limiting, in any way, the extent to which the Architect may be held responsible for the payment of damages resulting from the Architect's operations.
- 8.7 Each of Architect's consultants shall comply with this Article, and Architect shall include such provisions in its contracts with them.

#### **ARTICLE 9**

#### **WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE**

Prior to the commencement of services under this Agreement, the Architect shall furnish to the District satisfactory proof that the Architect and all engineers, experts, consultants and subcontractors the Architect intends to employ have taken out, for the period covered by this Agreement, workers' compensation insurance with an insurance carrier satisfactory to the District for all persons whom they may employ in carrying out the work contemplated under this Agreement in accordance with the Workers' Compensation Laws of the State of California.

If the Architect employs any engineer, expert, consultant or subcontractor which it did not intend to employ prior to commencement of services, it must furnish such proof of workers' compensation insurance to the District immediately upon employment. Such insurance shall be maintained in full force and effect during the period covered by this Agreement including any extensions of time. If the Architect is self-insured, the Architect shall furnish a Certificate of Permission to Self-Insure and a Certificate of Self-Insurance satisfactory to the District.

Prior to the commencement of services under this Agreement, the Architect shall furnish to the District satisfactory proof that the Architect and all engineers, experts, consultants and subcontractors the Architect intends to employ have taken out employer's liability insurance with an insurance carrier satisfactory to the District. During the course of Architect's services, if Architect ever intends to employ additional or different engineers, experts, consultants or subcontractors, before so employing them Architect shall furnish such satisfactory proof of insurance to the District. Such insurance shall be maintained in full force and effect during the period covered by this Agreement including any extensions of time. If the Architect is self-insured, the Architect shall furnish a Certificate of Permission to Self-Insure and a Certificate of Self-Insurance satisfactory to the District.

#### **ARTICLE 10**

#### PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

10.1 Prior to the commencement of services under this Agreement, the Architect shall furnish to the District satisfactory proof that the Architect has purchased professional liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, extending protection to Architect in an amount no less than Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) per claim, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) in the annual aggregate,

with a deductible of no more than Seventy Five Thousand Dollars (\$75,000). Such coverage shall be in effect, as evidenced by a valid Certificate of Insurance, no later than (i) the date any plans and specifications for a specific project are submitted to any required regulatory agency for review and approval, and/or (ii) the date the Architect agrees that the plans may be submitted for bid or bid consideration to any general contractor or group of contractors. Coverage for alleged wrongful acts, errors or omissions will remain in effect until three (3) years after the Notice of Completion has been filed and the project has been accepted by the District. At all other times, the Architect shall purchase professional liability insurance of no less than One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per claim and One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) in the aggregate.

10.2 Each of Architect's professional sub-consultants (including consultants of Architect's) shall comply with this Article, and Architect shall include such provisions in its contracts with them.

#### **ARTICLE 11**

#### **COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS**

Architect shall be familiar with, and Architect and Architect's design shall comply with all State and Federal laws and regulations applicable to the Project or lawfully imposed upon the Project by agencies having jurisdiction over the Project, including but not limited to statutes, decisions, regulations, building or other codes, ordinances, charters, prevailing wage law, and the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA").

#### **ARTICLE 12**

#### TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

12.1 <u>Termination by District</u>. This Agreement may be terminated or the Project may be canceled by the District for the District's convenience and without cause at any time immediately upon written notice to the Architect. In such event, the Architect shall be compensated for (a) all Basic and Additional services completed, and Reimbursable Expenses incurred, pursuant to this Agreement through the date of termination, (b) such Basic or Additional Services performed, and Reimbursable Expenses incurred, after termination which are authorized by the District, and (c) any costs incurred by reason of such termination; but less any amounts the District is entitled to withhold under law or this Agreement. Upon the District's request and authorization, Architect shall perform any and all Basic and Additional Services necessary to complete the work in progress as of the date of termination.

For any material breach of contract by the Architect, the District may also terminate the Agreement for cause by delivering written Notice of Intent to Terminate to the Architect. Such Notice shall include the following: (1) A description of such material breach, and (2) a date not less than fourteen days (14) after delivery of the notice by which the Architect must cure such breach. In response to such Notice, if the Architect fails to cure, and fails to reasonably commence to cure, the breach(es) by the deadline set by the Notice, then the District may terminate the Agreement by written notice delivered to the Architect, which shall be effective upon such delivery. In such event, the Architect shall be compensated for all services completed pursuant to this Agreement through the date of termination, together with compensation for such services performed after termination which are authorized by the District, but less any amounts the District is entitled to withhold under law or this Agreement. Upon the District's request and authorization, Architect shall perform any and all services necessary to complete the work in progress as of the date of the termination.

12.2 <u>Termination by Architect.</u> For any material breach of contract by the District other than one related to a payment or invoice dispute as described in Section 4.4 of this Agreement, the Architect may terminate the Agreement by delivering written Notice of Intent to Terminate to the District. Such Notice shall include the following: (1) A description of such material breach, (2) a date not less than fourteen (14) days after delivery of the notice by which the District must cure such breach or reasonably commence to cure such breach, (3) the status of work completed as of the date of the Notice of Intent to Terminate, and (4) a description and cost estimate of the effort necessary to complete the work in progress. In response to such Notice, if the District fails to cure, and fails to reasonably commence to cure, the breach by the deadline set by the Notice, then Architect may terminate the Agreement by written notice delivered to the District within ten (10) days of the cure deadline, which shall be effective upon such delivery.

In the event of such termination by Architect, Architect shall be compensated for all Basic and Additional Services completed, and Reimbursable Expenses incurred, pursuant to this Agreement through the date of termination, together with compensation for such Basic and Additional Services performed, and Reimbursable Expenses incurred, after termination which are authorized by the District. Upon the District's request and authorization, Architect shall perform any and all Basic and Additional Services necessary to complete the work in progress as of the date of termination.

#### 12.3 Miscellaneous Provisions

12.3.1 Following the termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever, the District shall have the right to utilize any designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents, or any other works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to physical drawings, data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer disks, or other writings prepared or caused to be prepared under this Agreement by the Architect, not only as they relate or may relate to this Project (including but not limited to any repair, maintenance, renovation, modernization or other alterations or revisions to this Project) but as they relate or may relate to other projects, provided that any invalidity of such license in relation to such other projects shall not affect the validity of such license in relation to this Project (including, but not limited to, any repair, maintenance, renovation, modernization or other alterations/revisions to this Project) under Education Code Section 17316. Architect shall promptly make any such documents or materials available to the District upon request without additional compensation.

12.3.2 In the event of the termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever, all designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents, or any other works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to physical drawings, data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer disks, or other writings prepared or caused to be prepared by the Architect or any of its agents pursuant to this Agreement shall immediately upon request by the District be delivered to the District. Architect may not refuse to provide such writings or materials for any reason whatsoever, including but not limited to a possessory interest lien for any claim the Architect may have against the District or a claim by the Architect to an ownership interest in the intellectual property embodied in the documents or materials.

#### **ARTICLE 13**

#### ARCHITECT AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

It is specifically agreed that in the making and performance of this Agreement, the Architect is an independent contractor and is not and shall not be construed to be an officer or employee of the District.

#### **ARTICLE 14**

#### STANDARDIZED MANUFACTURED ITEMS

The Architect shall consult and cooperate with the District in the use and selection of manufactured items to be used in the Project. Manufactured items, including but not limited to paint, finish hardware, plumbing fixtures and fittings, mechanical equipment, electrical fixtures and equipment, roofing materials, and floor coverings, shall be standardized to the District's criteria so long as the same does not interfere seriously with the building design or cost.

#### **ARTICLE 15**

#### **OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS**

All designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates and other documents or any other works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to physical drawings, data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer disks, or other writings prepared or caused to be prepared by the Architect pursuant to this Agreement shall be and shall remain the property of the District for all purposes, not only as they relate or may relate to this Project (including but not limited to any repair, maintenance, renovation, modernization or other alterations or revisions to this Project) but as they relate or may relate to any other project, provided that any invalidity of such ownership in relation to any other project shall not affect the validity of such ownership in relation to this Project (including but not limited to any repair, maintenance, renovation, modernization or other alterations or revisions to this Project) under Education Code Section 17316.

The Architect will provide the District with a complete set of reproducible designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates and other documents or any other works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to physical drawings, data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer disks in formats including both DWG and PDF, or other writings prepared or caused to be prepared by the Architect pursuant to this Agreement, and will retain, on the District's behalf, the original documents or reproducible copies of all such original documents, however stored, in the Architect's files for a period of no less than fifteen (15) years. Architect shall promptly make available to District any original documents it has retained pursuant to this Agreement upon request by the District.

#### **ARTICLE 16**

#### **LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY**

This Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for the District to copy, use, modify, reuse or sublicense any and all copyrights, designs and other intellectual property embodied in plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates and other documents, or any other works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to physical drawings, data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer disks, or other writings prepared or caused to be

prepared by the Architect pursuant to this Agreement, not only as they relate or may relate to this Project (including but not limited to any repair, maintenance, renovation, modernization or other alterations or revisions to this Project) but as they relate or may relate to other projects, provided that any invalidity of such license in relation to such other projects shall not affect the validity of such license in relation to this Project (including but not limited to any repair, maintenance, renovation, modernization or other alterations or revisions to this Project) under Education Code Section 17316. The Architect shall require any and all subcontractors and consultants to agree in writing that the District is granted a similar non-exclusive and perpetual license for the work of such subcontractors or consultants performed pursuant to this Agreement.

The compensation for this Project includes compensation not only for any use in connection with this Project and use or re-use for repair, maintenance, renovation, modernization or other alterations or revisions to this Project, but also for any re-use by the District in relation to other projects. The only other term or condition of such re-use shall be that if the District re-uses the plans prepared by the Architect and retains another certified architect or structural engineer for the preparation of those plans for the re-use, the District shall indemnify and hold harmless the Architect and its consultants, agents, and employees from and against any claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including attorney's fees, arising out of or resulting from, in whole or in part, the re-use to the extent required by Education Code section 17316, subdivision (c).

Architect represents and warrants that Architect has the legal right to license any and all copyrights, designs and other intellectual property embodied in plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents that Architect or its consultants prepares or causes to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement. Architect shall indemnify, defend and hold the District harmless pursuant to Article 18.1 of this Agreement for any breach of Article 16 due to Architect's negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct. The Architect makes no such representation and warranty in regard to previously prepared designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents, or any other works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to physical drawings, data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer disks, or other writings, that were prepared by design professionals other than Architect and provided to Architect by the District.

#### **ARTICLE 17**

#### ACCOUNTING RECORDS OF ARCHITECT

Architect's records of accounts regarding the Project shall be kept in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and shall be available to the District or its authorized representative at mutually convenient times.

#### <u>ARTICLE 18</u>

#### **INDEMNITY**

#### 18.1 Architect Indemnification

The Architect shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District, the governing Board of the District, each member of the Board, and their officers, agents and employees

against claims arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of the Architect, the Architect's officers, employees, or consultants in performing or failing to perform any work, services, or functions provided for, referred to, or in any way connected with any work, services, or functions to be performed under this Agreement. For purposes of this Article 18.1 only, "claims" means any and all claims, demands, actions and suits brought by third parties for any and all losses, liabilities, costs, expenses, damages and obligations, and the defense obligation shall include but not be limited to payment of the District's attorneys' fees, experts' fees, and litigation costs incurred in defense of a claim.

#### 18.2 District Indemnification for Use of Third Party Materials

The District shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Architect and its employees against any and all copyright infringement claims by any design professional formerly retained by the District arising out of Architect's completion, use or re-use of that former design professional's designs or contract documents in performing this Agreement. Architect shall be entitled to such indemnification only if each of the following conditions are met: (a) Architect actually re-draws or completes such other designs or contract documents; (b) Architect complies with the provisions of Article 5.8 regarding use of materials prepared by other design professionals; (c) District has supplied Architect with the previously prepared documents or materials; and (d) District expressly requests that the Architect utilize the designs or contract documents in question. By providing this or any other indemnification in this Agreement, District does not waive any immunities.

#### **ARTICLE 19**

#### **TIME SCHEDULE**

#### 19.1 **Time for Completion**

Time is of the essence of this Agreement. The Architect shall timely complete its Basic and Additional Services as expeditiously as possible and according to the schedule attached as Exhibit "B" to this Agreement.

#### 19.2 **Delays**

The District recognizes that circumstances may occur beyond the control of either the District or the Architect and extensions for such delays may be made to the schedule if approved by the District. Any time during which the Architect is delayed in the Architect's work by acts of District or its employees or those in a direct contractual relationship with District or by acts of nature or other occurrences which were not or could not have been reasonably foreseen and provided for, and which are not due to any Wrongful Acts or Omissions, shall be added to the time for completion of any obligations of the Architect. District shall not be liable for damages to the Architect on account of any such delay.

#### **ARTICLE 20**

#### **MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS**

- 20.1 This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California excluding its choice of law rules. Any action or proceeding seeking any relief under or with respect to this Agreement shall be brought solely in the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Sacramento, subject to transfer of venue under applicable State law, provided that nothing in this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of immunity to suit by the School District.
- 20.2 The Architect shall not assign or transfer any or all of its rights, burdens, duties or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the District.
- 20.3 All notices, certificates, or other communications hereunder shall be deemed given when personally delivered or mailed by certified mail, postage prepaid, to the parties at the addresses set forth below:

**District** Architect

Sacramento City Unified School District	HMC Architects
5735 47 <sup>th</sup> Avenue	2495 Natomas Park Dr, Studio 655
Sacramento, CA 95824	Sacramento, CA 95833
Attn: Kimberly Teague, Contracts	Attn: Brian Meyers, Associate

- 20.4 This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the Architect and the District and their respective successors and assigns.
- 20.5 If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof.
- 20.6 The terms of this Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, supplemented or amended in any manner whatsoever except by written agreement signed by the parties.
- 20.7 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or cause of action in favor of a third party against either the District or the Architect.
- 20.8 This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties, and supersedes any prior agreement or understanding. There are no understandings, agreements, representations or warranties, expressed or implied, not specified in this Agreement. The Architect, by the execution of this Agreement, acknowledges that the Architect has read this Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms and conditions.
- 20.9 The Architect shall have the right to include representations of the design of the Project, including photographs of the exterior and interior, among the Architect's professional materials. The Architect's materials shall not include the District's confidential or proprietary information if the District has previously advised the Architect in writing of the specific information considered by the District to be confidential or proprietary.
- 20.10 Prior to executing this agreement, the Architect shall submit a certification if required by Public Contract Code section 3006(b) for roofing projects.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this instrument to be executed this 19th day of April, 2013.

<b>DISTRICT</b> :	ARCHITECT:
By: Ken A. Forrest Chief Business Officer	By:
Date	Printed Name/Title
	Date

# **EXHIBIT A**

# SCOPE OF WORK

(See Attached)



February 21, 2013

Mr. James C. Dobson Director II, Planning, Construction and Operations Sacramento City Unified School District 425 1<sup>st</sup> Avenue Sacramento, CA 95818



Fee Proposal for Track and Field Replacement (Increment 1)

JFK High School

Dear Jim:

Thank you for the opportunity to assist the District with the development of the Track and Field Renovations – Increment 1 at the JFK High School campus. Please allow this correspondence to serve as HMC Architect's Fee Proposal for the provision of Architectural and supporting Engineering Services associated with the project scopes referenced herein.

#### A. SCOPE OF WORK:

HMC understands that this project consists of providing design and construction documents for the replacement of the existing track in the same location. The expected overall project work is as follows:

- Demolition of existing track/field surface conditions and removal and/or re-routing of existing underground utilities within the affected project area boundaries.
- Earthwork/Excavation/Rough Grading activities within the affected track/field project area boundaries, as well as the Home-side and Visitorside path-of-travel walkways.
- New Underground Storm Drainage piping system beneath the new synthetic turf field area construction.
- New synthetic turf field installation over a compacted aggregate base course.
- New synthetic 8-lane track and 'D'-zone field event areas construction, including installation of field event elements (pole vault, triple and long jump pits).
- Re-routing and installation of existing field-level communications, power, and low-voltage systems to be compatible with new track/field construction.
- New underground field cooling system with booster pump provisions and connection to the existing campus' on-site domestic water infrastructure.

Proposal for Architectural Services Sacramento City Unified School District JFK Track and Field Replacement February 21, 2013 Page 2

- Paving replacement to address ADA accessibility path-of-travel deficiencies and to replace aged/deteriorated paving areas.
- Home-side and Visitor-side chain-link fencing replacements along frontages of existing bleachers adjacent to new track straightaways.
- Limited landscaping improvements along the edge of the new synthetic track construction where the existing finish grades of the sloped natural turf area have been modified.
- The addition of a restroom portable to accommodate new accessibility requirements per DSA.

#### II. Scope of Services

HMC proposes to furnish the following Basic Professional Services in conjunction with the provision of Programming, Construction Document preparation, DSA Plan Reviews and Approvals, Bidding, and Construction Administration Services necessary for the installation of these additional project scope additions as previously described:

- Architectural Design and Documentation
- On-Site Civil Engineering (limited to project area)
- Supplemental Field Surveying
- · Landscape Architectural Design
- Electrical Engineering
- DSA Coordination

#### III. Compensation

HMC Architects proposes to perform the design services outlined in the Scope of Work and Scope of Services portions of this Proposal outlined herein. Our calculated compensation amounts are based upon furnishing the level of anticipated services that would be necessary to complete the identified work scopes and for those work scopes to align with the project construction budgets.

HMC proposes to furnish these basic services referenced herein for a fixed fee of One Hundred Forty Four Thousand Dollars (\$144,000). This fee will be invoiced in the following phases:

	Total	100%
•	Project Closeout	5%
•	Construction Administration Phase	30%
•	Bid Phase	5%
•	Plan Approval Phase	5%
•	Construction Document Phase	50%
•	Programming	5%

Proposal for Architectural Services Sacramento City Unified School District JFK Track and Field Replacement February 21, 2013 Page 3

This proposed fee is based on an 8% of the New Construction project calculated with a \$1.8 million construction budget. In the event that the Budget or Project Work Scope or Deliverables changes in size, quality, complexity, schedule, method of bidding, contracting, or phasing of construction; HMC Architects reserves the right to request the District for additional compensation accordingly.

#### IV. Additional Services

If Additional Services are required beyond the original Scope of Work, such services as described in Attachment "A" will be billed by HMC on an hourly basis per Attachment "B", HMC Rate Schedule.

#### V. Exclusions/District Responsibilities

The following services, scopes of work, and related expenses are not incorporated in this proposal and if deemed necessary for this Project shall be furnished by the District under separate contract or considered additional work scope of this Proposal, with additional compensation to HMC mutually agreed upon.

- A. Design services for any additional or incidental work scope occurring outside of the proposed Site Improvement work areas, or for work which may be required by DSA as a result of the plan review process that has not been reasonably anticipated.
- B. Structural design services associated with existing scoreboards, retaining walls, light poles, fencing, etc.
- C. Governmental Agency plan review or inspection fees.
- D. Any fees associated with required testing laboratory or Inspector-of-Record services.
- E. Any required civil engineering path of travel corrective work beyond what has been described to be a part of this project related to this work or any affected adjacent work.
- F. Power or data upgrades to the campus' main distribution infrastructure as a result of modifications proposed within these scopes of work.
- G. Preparation of Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP) reports or other related Hydrology Studies that may be required/requested by local water purveyors or governmental agencies having jurisdiction.
- H. Preparation of Storm Water Prevention Pollution Plans (SWPPP), Notices of Intent (NOI), California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) documents,

Proposal for Architectural Services Sacramento City Unified School District JFK Track and Field Replacement February 21, 2013 Page 4

including biological, environmental or habitat analysis studies deemed necessary in conjunction with this project.

- Hazardous Material Testing and Abatement studies or exploratory/destructive testing services.
- J. Services related to Increment 2 scope including a permanent restroom, concession and ticketing building, bleachers and pressbox and related site work.

#### VI. Reimbursable Expenses

Reimbursable expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and Owner-approved Additional Services, including printing, plotting, delivery, and other expenses related to Agency review, Construction, or other Owner-requested costs.

Expenses in connection with authorized out-of-town travel, including travel time; and fees paid for securing approval of authorities having jurisdiction over the Project shall also be considered reimbursable expenses. The Architect's compensation shall be computed based on one (1.0) times the amounts invoiced to the architect by the consultant or vendor providing such reimbursable services. Reimbursable expenses for this entire project are preliminarily estimated at Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000).

Please review the information contained within this Proposal, and if this Proposal is acceptable to the District, please send HMC an acknowledgement indicating acceptance, a notification to proceed, and an Agreement for signature/execution.

Sincerely,

**HMC Architects** 

Brian Meyers Associate

Attachment "A" – List of Additional Services Attachment "B" – HMC Hourly Rate Schedule

cc: P. Nemeth, L. Eloff (HMC)

## **EXHIBIT B**

## PROJECT SCHEDULE

(See Attached)

JFK High School Track and Field Project Timeline 3-21-13

Prepare Closeout Documentation	Closeout	OWNER OCCUPANCY	Construction Contract Administration	Prepare Addenda - Issue  Bid Opening  Contracts Executed	Advertisement / Plan Distribution Assist Owner in selection process  Bid Walk	Bidding	DSA Review Time Pick up DSA comments  DSA Backcheck Appointment DSA Approval	Category 1 Bin Time Time	Agency Review	Plan Refinement Coordination meeting with consultants  Owner Review Meeting Details Prepare Final Estimate Submit Final Plans to DSA	Construction Documents	Site Investigations - with consultants Site Investigations - with consultants Base plan update Internal consultant meeting Initial Scoping Meeting Prepare SD package Owner Review Meeting Estimate Program Approval	Programming		
														4 1	MAR
												0		11 18 25	Α
												0 0		1 8 15	APR
	_		_			_				21611				22	
	_		+			+					+	******	_	29	MAY
														6 13	7
			H							****	4	100		20	
			T	•			0				$\dashv$	-745		27	JUN
			L	i) ii				ľ						3 10	
	-			•				+	-		4			17	
	1		100			$\dagger$		+	+		$\dashv$		$\dashv$	24	ĴŪ.
			200							100.00				۔ ∞	
	$\dashv$					-	V-111-	4	4		4			15	
	-					+	***************************************	+	+		+			22	
						$\dagger$	- Av	$\dagger$	$\dagger$		+		7	29	AUG
	$\perp$		100					I			1	444	$\neg$	5 12	6
	+		100			+		+	4		1			اة	
_	$\dashv$					+	757	+	+		+		-	26	SEP
		0			-	$\dagger$	74444 THE	$\dagger$	$\dagger$		+			- 1	۳
						1		I				1		9 16	
						1	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	1	4		1			3	
			$\vdash$			+		+	+		+		4	3	_
la la	5 55 H		$\vdash$		_	+		+	+		+		$\neg$	- 1	OCT
	70. 1					1		1	†		$\dagger$		$\neg$	14 21	
0	33							I						3	



## **AGREEMENT**

For

## **ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES**

For

# TRACK AND FIELD REPLACEMENT AT ROSEMONT HIGH SCOOL

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

DEFINITIONS	2
RETENTION OF ARCHITECT: STANDARD OF CARE	3
DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT	3
COMPENSATION	4
BASIC SERVICES TO BE RENDERED BY ARCHITECT	6
ADDITIONAL SERVICES TO BE RENDERED BY ARCHITECT	17
RESPONSIBILITIES OF DISTRICT	19
PUBLIC LIABILITY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE INSURANCE	19
WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE	20
PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE	21
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS	22
TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT	22
ARCHITECT AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	23
STANDARDIZED MANUFACTURED ITEMS	
OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS	24
LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY	24
ACCOUNTING RECORDS OF ARCHITECT	25
INDEMNITY	25
TIME SCHEDULE	26
MISCELL ANEOUS PROVISIONS	26

#### AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES

This Agreement for Architectural Services ("Agreement") is made and entered into by and between the Sacramento City Unified School District, a school district duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (the "District"), and HMC Architects (the "Architect"), with respect to the following recitals:

- A. District proposes to undertake the construction of improvement projects which require the services of a duly qualified and licensed architect.
- B. Architect represents that Architect is licensed to provide architectural/engineering services in the State of California and is specially qualified to provide the services required by the District, specifically the design and construction oversight of public school(s).
- C. The parties have negotiated the terms pursuant to which Architect will provide such services and reduce such terms to writing by this Agreement.

In consideration of the covenants and conditions contained in this Agreement, the parties agree as follows:

#### **ARTICLE 1**

#### **DEFINITIONS**

- 1.1 <u>Additional Services</u>. "Additional Services" shall mean those services in addition to the Basic Services that are provided by Architect and authorized in writing by the District, and as further defined in Article 6 herein.
  - 1.2 **Agreement**. "Agreement" shall mean this Agreement for Architectural Services.
- 1.3 **Architect**. "Architect" shall mean HMC Architects, and its officers, shareholders, owners, partners, employees, agents and authorized representatives.
- 1.4 <u>Basic Services</u>. Architect's Basic Services consist of the design services, including landscaping architectural services and landscape irrigation design, civil, structural, mechanical, and electrical engineering services, normally required to complete the Project, as further defined in Article 5.
- 1.5 <u>Contract Documents</u>. "Contract Documents" shall mean those documents which are required for the actual construction of the Project, including but not limited to the Agreement between Owner and Contractor, complete working drawings and specifications setting forth in detail sufficient for construction the work to be done and the materials, workmanship, finishes and equipment required for the architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical system and utility-service-connected equipment and site work.
- 1.6 <u>Contractor</u>. "Contractor" shall mean one or more contractors ultimately selected to perform work on the Project or any replacement.
- 1.7 <u>District</u>. "District" shall mean the Sacramento City Unified School District, and its governing board members, employees, agents and authorized representatives.

- 1.8 **Project**. "Project" shall mean the work of improvement described in Article 3 and the construction thereof, including the Architect's services thereon, as described in this Agreement.
- 1.9 **Project Construction Cost**. "Project Construction Cost" shall mean the estimate of total construction costs to the District as initially submitted by the Architect pursuant to this Agreement and accepted by the District, and as subsequently revised in these manners: (a) Revised by changes to the Project Construction Cost under Article 5 of this Agreement; (b) revised at the time the District enters a construction contract, to equal the construction contract amount, (c) increased by the dollar amounts of all approved additive contract change order items, with the exception of (i) items resulting from Wrongful Acts or Omissions on the part of the Architect, including but not limited to those items covered by Section 5.7.19.2, below, (ii) payments to Architect or consultants for costs of inspections, surveys, tests and sites and landscaping not included in the Project, and (iii) items where Architect and District agreed to compensate the Architect for its services on an hourly basis, pursuant to Section 5.7.19.1, below; and (d) decreased by the dollar amounts of all approved deductive contract change order items.
- 1.10 <u>Wrongful Acts or Omissions</u>. "Wrongful Acts or Omissions" shall mean Architect's acts or omissions in breach of this Agreement, the applicable standard of care, or law.

#### **ARTICLE 2**

#### RETENTION OF ARCHITECT: STANDARD OF CARE

District retains Architect to perform, and Architect agrees to provide to District, for the consideration and upon the terms and conditions set forth below, the architectural and engineering services specified in this Agreement and related incidental services. The Architect agrees to perform such services as expeditiously as is consistent with professional skill and care and the orderly progress of the Project. All services performed by the Architect under and required by this Agreement shall be performed (a) in compliance with this Agreement and (b) in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by architects in the same discipline, on similar projects in California with similar complexity and with similar agreements, who are specially qualified to provide the services required by the District; and all such services shall be conducted in conformance to, and compliance with, all applicable Federal, State and local laws, including but not limited to statutes, decisions, regulations, building or other codes, ordinances, charters, and the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA"). Architect shall be responsible for the completeness and accuracy of the plans and specifications.

#### **ARTICLE 3**

#### **DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT**

The Project concerning which such architectural services shall be provided is described as:

Track and Field Renovations at Rosemont High School, per Scope of Work attached as Exhibit A

The project is not intended to be split into multiple prime contracts.

#### **ARTICLE 4**

#### **COMPENSATION**

#### 4.1 **Basic Services**

4.1.1 For all "Basic Services" satisfactorily performed as defined in Articles 1 and 5 of this Agreement, the total compensation paid to the Architect for the Project shall be no more than Ninety Two Thousand, Five Hundred Dollars (\$92,500). This compensation shall be paid pursuant to the following schedule:

Initial Payment	0%
Upon Completion of:	
Schematic Design	10%
Design Development Phase	10% / 10%
Contract Documents Phase	10% / 10%
DSA Back Check	10%
Bidding Phase	10%
Construction Phase	25%
Close Out Phase	5%
TOTAL BASIC COMPENSATION	100%

Upon any adjustment (increase or decrease) to the Project Construction Cost as contemplated by Article 1.9, including but not limited to any adjustment made at such time as bids are received, the Architect's total compensation for Basic Services for the Project shall also be increased or decreased, including retroactively for Basic Services already performed and payments already made. Such adjustments may be effected by the District by either (a) adjusting any future payment due under the payment schedule immediately above, or (b) issuing a revision notice to Architect that either tenders any additional payment owed or demands reimbursement from the Architect of any overpayment to date.

#### 4.2 Additional Services

- 4.2.1 For all "Additional Services," as defined in Articles 1 and 6 of this Agreement, compensation shall be a fee to be agreed upon by the parties in writing prior to performance of such services by Architect. Unless expressly stated in the written authorization to proceed with the additional services, the fee for such additional services shall be an amount computed by multiplying the hours to be worked by Architect's staff or Architect's consultants by their standard billing rates as attached in Exhibit "A," or as otherwise specifically approved in writing in advance by District.
- 4.2.2 Architect shall keep complete records showing all hours worked and all costs and charges applicable to work not covered by the basic fee. Architect will be responsible for Architect's consultants keeping similar records. District shall be given reasonable access to those records for audit purposes.

#### 4.3 **Reimbursable Expenses**

Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to the Compensation for Basic and Additional Services and include actual expenditures made by the Architect and the Architect's employees and consultants in the interest of the Project for the expenses listed below:

- 4.3.1 Expense of transportation in connection with the Project; living expenses in connection with out-of-town travel; and long distance communications.
- 4.3.2 Expense of reproductions; fax, postage and messenger for transmission of drawings, specifications and other documents (excluding reproductions for the office use of the Architect and the Architect's consultants).
- 4.3.3 Expense of data processing and photographic production techniques when used in connection with Additional Services.
- 4.3.4 If authorized in advance by the District, expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates.
- 4.3.5 Expense of renderings, models and mock-ups requested by the District; expense of publishing pursuant to section 5.6.5.

Reimbursable Expenses do not include indirect costs, such as general overhead (for example, home office overhead [including technology hardware and software] or insurance premiums), for which Architect must pay out of its compensation for services under Section 4.1, above; nor do they include expenses incurred in connection with Basic or Additional Services that result from Wrongful Acts or Omissions. Architect may not charge a mark-up on Reimbursable Expenses. Payment for all Reimbursable Expenses incurred in connection with either Basic or Additional Services shall be made on a monthly basis. Invoices, receipts or other documentation to establish the validity of all reimbursable expenses shall be a prerequisite to District payment of such expenses. Architect's total reimbursement for Reimbursable Expenses shall not exceed \$7,000 which is Architect's estimate of the maximum total cost of Reimbursable Expenses on the Project.

- 4.4 Each payment to Architect for Basic and Additional Services satisfactorily performed, and Reimbursable Expenses reasonably incurred, shall be made in the usual course of District business after presentation by Architect of a properly documented and submitted monthly invoice approved by District's authorized representative designating the services performed, or Reimbursable Expenses incurred, the method of computation of the amount payable, and the amount payable. District shall pay approved invoices within sixty (60) days after proper submission by Architect, and Architect otherwise waives all rights and remedies under law related to receipt of payment. To be properly submitted, an invoice shall be timely, be accompanied by all necessary documentation, list all activities performed and specify to which phase of the Architect's work listed in Section 4.1.1 it relates, and for each activity performed list the person performing it and the person's rate of compensation. Architect's invoice shall be submitted within ten (10) days of the end of the monthly billing period. If District disputes a portion of a properly submitted invoice, it shall notify Architect of the dispute and, upon Architect's written request, arrange for a meeting to confer about, and potentially resolve the dispute. Prior to this meeting, Architect shall provide all documentation requested to support disputed portions of properly submitted invoice. Regardless of any such dispute about an invoice or payment, Architect shall continue to provide all services required by this Agreement and law until the end of the Project, even if District and Architect cannot resolve all such disputes.
- 4.5 The Architect's compensation shall be paid at the time and in the amount noted, where the amount due to the Architect is not disputed, notwithstanding a Contractor-caused delay in completion of the project or reduction of final construction cost by reason of penalties, liquidated damages, or other amounts withheld from the Contractor. However, District may withhold from payments to Architect to the extent that (i) Basic and Additional Services remain to be performed, including but not limited to

those required for project closeout and payments to Contractor; and (ii) Wrongful Acts or Omissions caused District to incur damages, losses, liabilities or costs, including but not limited to withholding any amounts for which Architect is responsible under Section 5.7.20.

- 4.6 Should District cancel the Project pursuant to section 12.1 of this Agreement at any time during the performance of this Agreement, Architect shall, upon notice of such cancellation, immediately cease all work under this Agreement. In such event, Architect's total fee for all services performed shall be computed as set forth in Section 12.1.
- 4.7 Architect shall not accept compensation or other benefits from other persons related to the Project, including payments from manufacturers of construction materials that are specified in the design.

#### **ARTICLE 5**

#### BASIC SERVICES TO BE RENDERED BY ARCHITECT

#### 5.1 **General**

- 5.1.1 Architect's Basic Services consist of the design services, including landscaping architectural services and landscape irrigation design, civil, structural, mechanical, and electrical engineering services, normally required to complete the Project. The Basic Services also include the services described in this Article 5, below, including but not limited to bid package preparation, bid handling, preparation and processing of change orders, requests for information, and other contract administration duties. The District shall have the right to add or delete from the Architect's scope of services as it may determine is necessary for the best interests of the Project and/or the District. Architect shall expeditiously and diligently perform all of its work and obligations under this Agreement. Architect may not cease, delay or reduce, or threaten to cease, delay or reduce, its performance based on a payment dispute with District under Section 4.4, above. The Architect acknowledges that its priority is to complete the Project and the Architect's services, and that any payment disputes with the District under Section 4.4, if not resolved during the Project, must wait for resolution after the Project.
- 5.1.2 The Architect shall review the estimate described more fully hereinafter at each phase of Architect's services, also as defined hereinafter. If such estimates are in excess of the project budget, the Architect shall revise the type or quality of construction to come within the budgeted limit.
- 5.1.3 Whenever the Architect's services include the presentation to the District of Project Construction Cost, the Architect shall include a reasonable amount for contingency costs arising from, among other things, higher bids than anticipated, future increase in construction costs, and change orders based on unforeseen site conditions. However, any such contingency for change orders shall not affect Architect's compensation.
- 5.1.4 The Architect shall notify the District if there are any indicated adjustments in previously provided Project Construction Cost arising from market fluctuations or approved changes in scope or requirements based upon a mutually agreed upon index. Any such adjustments shall not affect Architect's compensation until bids are received and accepted.
- 5.1.5 At the District's request, the Architect and Architect's consultants shall cooperate with District and the District's consultants in verifying that Architect's plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents relating to the Project are constructible and otherwise comply

with the Contract Documents. If there are project meetings during the design and construction phases, Architect shall attend those meetings.

- 5.1.6 The Architect shall investigate existing conditions of facilities and thoroughly account for and list in the construction documents any pertinent conditions of such facilities, all in a manner that satisfies the standard of care and level of performance required by this Agreement. Architect's investigation required by this provision shall be limited to non-destructive evaluation.
- 5.1.7 Architect shall provide a list of employees who will be dedicated to delivering the project on time and within budget. All personnel provided by Architect shall be qualified to perform the services for which they are provided. Architect shall obtain District's approval of each employee of Architect who provides services under this Agreement, and approval of each change of employees who are providing such services. District may, upon 24 hours written notice, cause Architect to remove a person from the Project if he/she has failed to perform to District's satisfaction. Should additional employees be required to timely perform all of the services required under this Agreement and/or to avoid delay, Architect shall provide them immediately.
- 5.1.8 Architect is an agent of District and shall reasonably represent the District at all times in relation to the Project.
- 5.1.9 Architect shall be fully licensed as required by law at all times when providing services under this Agreement.

#### 5.2 Consultants

- 5.2.1 Architect's Consultants. The Architect shall employ or retain at Architect's own expense, engineers and other consultants necessary to Architect's performance of this Agreement and licensed to practice in their respective professions in the State of California. Engineers and consultants employed by Architect for this Project shall be approved by District prior to their commencement of work. The Architect's consultants shall be employed to provide assistance during all aspects of the Project and will include, in addition to design services: review of schedules, shop drawings, samples, submittals, and requests for information. The Architect's Consultants shall also conduct periodic inspections of the site to determine conformance with the Project design and specifications and shall participate in the final inspections and development of any "punch list" items. Architect must disclose to District all such consultants retained, and the compensation paid to them.
- 5.2.2 <u>District's Consultants</u>. Architect shall confer and cooperate with consultants retained by District as may be requested by District or as reasonably necessary. District may retain a construction manager to assist District in performance of District's duties for the Project.
- 5.2.3 The Architect shall procure a certified survey of the site if required, including grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, adjoining properties and structures; adjacent drainage; rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries and contours of the building site, locations, dimensions and floor elevations of existing buildings, other improvements and trees; and full information as to available utility services and lines, both public and private above and below grade, including inverts and depths. All the information on the survey customarily referenced to a project benchmark shall be referenced to a Project benchmark. The cost of any such survey shall be borne by the District, and the District shall own and, upon termination of this Agreement or completion of the Project, shall have returned to it by Architect any designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents prepared as part of the survey.

- 5.2.4 Architect shall procure chemical, mechanical or other tests required for proper design. Tests for hazardous materials and borings or test pits necessary for determining subsoil conditions will be the responsibility of the District, and the District shall own and, upon termination of this Agreement or completion of the Project, shall have returned to it by Architect any designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents prepared as part of the testing.
- 5.2.5 Architect shall assist the District and its consultants to apply for funding for the Project from the State Allocation Board. Architect shall be responsible for all submittals required of the Architect by the Division of the State Architect ("DSA"), Office of Public School Construction ("OPSC") and California Department of Education in connection therewith, including but not limited to: New Construction Program, Modernization Program, Career Technical Education, Critically Overcrowded Schools, Emergency Repair Program, Facility Hardship Program, High Performance Incentive, Joint-Use Program, Overcrowding Relief Grant and the Seismic Mitigation Program.

#### 5.3 Schematic Design Phase

- 5.3.1 The Architect shall review all information concerning the Project delivered or communicated by the District to the Architect to ascertain the requirements of the Project and shall arrive at a mutual understanding of such requirements with the District.
- 5.3.2 The Architect shall provide a preliminary evaluation of the District's Project, schedule and construction budget requirements, each in terms of the other.
- 5.3.3 The Architect shall review with the District alternative approaches to the design and construction of the Project, and shall include alternatives that may reduce the cost of the Project.
- 5.3.4 Based on a mutual understanding of the District's budget and scope of work requirements, the Architect shall prepare for the District's written approval, schematic design documents, which include but are not limited to, schematic design studies, site utilization plans, a description of the Project showing, among other things, the scale and relationship of the components of the Project, preparation of a written estimated statement of Project Construction Cost and a written time schedule for the performance of the work that itemizes constraints and critical path issues. The schematic design documents shall represent a 15% complete design. The Project Construction Cost shall be based on current area, volume and other unit costs, shall conform to District's total construction cost budget, and shall include reasonable contingencies for all construction and construction management work. The written schedule shall conform to District's milestone and completion deadline requirements. Nevertheless, Architect is encouraged to make recommendations to District regarding additional benefits that could be realized by increasing the District's total construction cost budget, or by altering the District's completion deadlines. If District incorporates any recommended changes, then Architect shall revise the schematic design documents, including but not limited to the written statement of Project Construction Cost and written schedule for the performance of work, as necessary until the District approves them in writing. If requested by the District, Architect shall attend, and present at, as many meetings of the District's governing board as may be necessary to obtain written approval of the schematic design documents.
- 5.3.5 The Architect shall submit to the District a preliminary Project Construction Cost based on current area, volume and other unit costs.

#### 5.4 **Design Development Phase**

- 5.4.1 Following District's written approval of the schematic design documents, including the estimate of Project Construction Cost and schedule, Architect shall provide all necessary architectural and engineering services to prepare design development documents for the District's written approval, which fix and describe the size and character of the project and which shall include, but are not limited to, site and floor plans, elevations and other approved drawings and shall outline the specifications of the entire Project as to kind and quality of materials, categories of proposed work such as architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical systems, types of structures and all such other work as may be required. During the design development phase, Architect will keep the Project within all budget and scope constraints set by the District. The design development documents shall represent a 50% complete design. The design development documents shall include a revised Project Construction Cost, and a revised construction schedule. The revised Project Construction Cost shall be based on current area, volume and other unit costs. The revised Project Construction Cost shall conform to District's total construction cost budget and shall include reasonable contingencies for all construction and construction management work, and the revised construction schedule shall conform to District's milestone and completion deadline requirements. Nevertheless, Architect is encouraged to make recommendations to District regarding additional benefits that could be realized by altering the District's total construction cost budget or completion deadlines. If District incorporates any recommended changes or otherwise does not approve the submitted design development documents, then Architect shall revise the design development documents, including but not limited to the written statement of Project Construction Cost and written schedule for the performance of work, as necessary until District approves them in writing. If requested by the District, Architect shall attend, and present at, as many meetings of the District's governing board as may be necessary to obtain written approval of the design development documents.
- 5.4.2 The Architect shall assist the District and its consultants in the preparation and/or modification of the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan if any such plan is required for this Project.
- 5.4.3 Architect shall prepare necessary documents for and oversee the processing of District's application for and obtaining of required approvals from the DSA, the OPSC (if applicable), the California Department of Education, the State Fire Marshall and other agencies exercising jurisdiction over the Project. Architect shall also be responsible for the preparation and submission of any required applications, notices or certificates to public agencies as required by law. Architect shall provide a copy of all such documents to the District.
- 5.4.4 The Architect shall advise the District of any adjustments to the preliminary Project Construction Cost.
- 5.4.5 Architect shall identify areas of construction for which unit pricing shall be required as part of the Contractor's bid.
- 5.4.6 Architect shall provide at no expense to the District one complete set of preliminary plans for the review and written approval of the District and one set for each public agency having approval authority over such plans for their review and approval at no expense to the District.

#### 5.5 Contract Documents Phase

5.5.1 Following the District's written approval of the design development documents, including the Project Construction Cost and construction schedule, the Architect shall prepare Contract Documents consisting of 100% complete working drawings and specifications setting forth the work to

be done in detail sufficient for construction, including but not limited to the materials, workmanship, finishes and equipment required for the architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical system and utility-service-connected equipment and site work. Architect shall ensure that the drawings and specifications are, among other things, complete, accurate, and coordinated so as to eliminate errors, omissions and conflicts, especially between the work of a subconsultant and other subconsultants or the Architect; and Architect may not shift its responsibility for completeness, accuracy and coordination to the Contractor, except on a clearly designated design-build project. Architect shall also update the construction schedule and the Project Construction Cost for District approval. The Contract Documents shall conform to, comply with, and satisfy all applicable Federal, State and local laws, including but not limited to statutes, decisions, regulations, building or other codes, ordinances, charters, and the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA"). As part of the Contract Documents, Architect shall prepare an accurate set of drawings indicating dimensions and locations of existing buried utility lines, which shall be included in the bid packages. If the project is intended to be split into multiple prime contracts, then the Contract Documents shall be structured in order to maximize the ability to create multiple prime bid packages for the Project, and shall identify the bid packages to be created.

- 5.5.2 Architect shall consult with and involve the District in development of the bid documents and bid package, and shall forward them to the District for written approval prior to their use. If the District is using a multiple prime delivery method for the Project with multiple bid packages, then Architect shall consult with and involve the District in identification and development of the bid documents and bid packages, and shall forward them to the District for written approval prior to their use.
- 5.5.3 Prior to submission of the Contract Documents to DSA for plan check, the Architect shall submit the Contract Documents to the District for an opportunity to review them for various issues, including but not limited to constructability, scheduling, general completeness, clarity, consistency, coordination, cost-effectiveness, value engineering, identification of possible add/delete bid alternatives, time of construction, and suitability for separation of the Project design, plans and specifications into bid packages for various categories and/or portions of the work. However, such review by District is not required. In addition, and prior to submission of the Contract Documents to DSA for plan check, Architect shall advise the District of all elements of the design applicable to the Project or lawfully imposed upon the Project by the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA").
- 5.5.4 After approval by the District and any constructability review, the Architect shall submit the Contract Documents to DSA for plan check, and make the necessary corrections to secure DSA approval.
- 5.5.5 The Architect shall give the District, at the time of DSA approval of the final form of the Contract Documents, Architect's final estimate of Project Construction Cost and construction schedule, which shall be given final written approval by the District along with the Contract Documents. The revised Project Construction Cost shall be based on current area, volume and other unit costs, and on a mutually acceptable recognized building cost index, and shall include a reasonable contingency. In preparing the revised estimate of Project Construction cost and construction schedule for the Contract Documents, the Architect shall consult with and involve the District in the process to maximize accuracy and completeness. If the District is intending to enter multiple prime contracts, the Project Construction Cost shall include separate bid estimates for each bid package, plus a reasonable contingency; and the construction schedule shall reflect the fact that

multiple contractors will be performing separate bid packages, including a general conditions bid package. The revised Project Construction Cost estimate shall conform to District's total Project budget, and the revised construction schedule shall conform to District's milestone and completion deadline requirements. If requested by the District, Architect shall attend, and present at, as many meetings of the District's governing board as may be necessary to obtain written approval of the Contract Documents.

#### 5.6 **Bidding and Negotiations Phase**

- 5.6.1 Following DSA's and District's written approval of Contract Documents and the District's written acceptance of Architect's final estimate of Project Construction Cost and Construction schedule, Architect shall continue to work with the District in finalizing the bid documents and bid package, as described in Section 5.5.2, above. Architect shall reproduce the bid documents as requested by the District and shall assist the District in evaluating contract proposals or bids, as well as substitutions proposed by contractors, and in awarding the bids. All sets of Contract Documents requested by the District, which does not include those for the use of the Architect or its consultants, shall be reproduced at District's expense.
- 5.6.2 Architect's estimate of Project Construction Cost at the time of DSA approval of the Contract Documents shall be current as of that date. Should bids be received more than ninety (90) days after the date of that Project Construction Cost, the Architect's total construction cost shall be escalated by the cost-of-construction in the then current mutually agreed upon recognized building cost index.
- 5.6.3 Should the lowest responsible and responsive bid received on a bid package exceed Architect's most recent approved estimate of Project Construction Cost for that bid package (or amount adjusted according to the then current mutually agreed upon recognized building cost index) as accepted by District by more than ten percent (10%), Architect shall, on request by District and as part of Architect's Basic Services, make such changes in the plans and specifications as shall be necessary to bring new bids within ten percent (10%) of such Project Construction Cost. In making such changes, Architect will exercise Architect's best judgment in determining the balance between the size of the Project, the type of construction, and the quality of the construction to achieve a satisfactory project within ten percent (10%) of Architect's Project Construction Cost. To avoid the potential for bids to exceed the estimate by more than 10% at bid opening, the Architect may, as an alternative, include in the Contract Documents one or more deductive alternatives so that Architect and District may evaluate different means to achieve a satisfactory project within ten percent (10%) of the Architect's Project Construction Cost.
- 5.6.4 If requested by the District, Architect shall assist in the review of the qualifications of all bidders for the construction of the Project, and shall make recommendations to the District as to whether, in the Architect's professional opinion, a bidder meets the minimum requirements.
- 5.6.5 If, in the District's discretion, the District will seek total or partial State funding for this Project, the Architect shall also prepare and submit the appropriate documentation to the OPSC.

#### 5.7 **Construction Phase**

- 5.7.1 The construction phase shall begin on the date stated in the official Notice to Proceed and, solely for purposes of payment of the Architect, shall be deemed complete upon District's written approval of Architect's final certificate for payment to Contractor, provided that such certification and payment shall not constitute an admission by Architect or District that the Project has been completed in accordance with Contract Documents or in conformance with this Agreement.
- 5.7.2 All instructions to the Contractor shall be forwarded through the Architect unless otherwise directed by the District. The Architect shall advise and consult with the District in the general administration of the Project. The Architect will have authority to act on behalf of the District only to the extent provided in the Contract Documents, unless the District grants additional authority in writing.
- 5.7.3 The Architect shall timely provide District with copies of all of its correspondence with the Contractors.
- 5.7.4 The Architect shall provide prompt and timely direction to the District's Project inspectors and/or contractors as to the interpretation of Contract Documents. Architect shall respond to all requests for information ("RFI's") from a Contractor within fourteen (14) calendar days of receipt, unless the subject of the RFI is impacting, or may impact, the critical path of the project and is causing, or may cause, delay, in which case the Architect shall respond as soon as reasonably possible, if not immediately. If the Architect is not able to take action within the time required due to reasons beyond Architect's control, the Architect may take action within a reasonable period of time under the circumstances; however, the Architect shall make such determination within seven (7) calendar days of receipt of the RFI, and shall notify the District and Contractor immediately after such determination with an explanation as to why the Architect cannot take action within the time required, what the Architect is doing to expedite its response, when the Architect expects to be able to issue a response, and what action, if any, should be taken by District or Contractor in the meantime to mitigate delays and/or costs.
- 5.7.5 Based on information provided by the Contractor and Architect's own knowledge of the Project (including documents in Architect's possession or reasonably available to it), Architect shall prepare an accurate set of as-built record drawings indicating dimensions and locations of all work, including but not limited to buried utility lines and mechanical, electrical and plumbing layouts, which shall be forwarded to the District upon completion of the Project in both DWG and PDF formats. Architect will also provide the District with revised "1A's" as part of the Close Out Phase.

While Architect cannot guarantee precise accuracy of such drawings, Architect shall exercise reasonable care in reviewing such drawings to determine their general compliance with the Contract Documents. Architect shall have no responsibility for their conformity to field conditions. Except that in the event that the Architect, consistent with standards of due care, becomes aware of non-conformity with field conditions, Architect shall have a duty immediately to notify the District in writing. Architect shall also assemble and deliver to District all written guarantees, instruction books, operation and maintenance manuals, diagrams, charts and other documents required of Contractors.

5.7.6 The Architect shall be responsible for the preparation and submission of any notifications regarding excavation in areas which are known or suspected to contain subsurface

installations pursuant to Government Code section 4216, *et seq*. The Architect may delegate this responsibility to a Contractor if such power to delegate was included in the Contract Documents and bid package, but Architect shall remain responsible for supervising such Contractor to ensure performance of this task. Architect shall provide a copy of all such notifications to the District.

- 5.7.7 The Architect shall, at all times, have access to the Project wherever it is in preparation and progress. To the extent reasonably possible given Contractor's work in progress, the District shall provide such access so that the Architect may perform its functions under the Agreement and Contract Documents.
- 5.7.8 In the discharge of its duties of observation and interpretation, the Architect shall require Contractors to comply with the Contract Documents, and shall guard the District against defects and deficiencies in the work of the Contractor. The Architect shall advise and consult with the District and inspectors concerning the Contractor's compliance with the Contract Documents and shall assist the District and inspectors in securing the Contractor's compliance.
- 5.7.9 The Architect shall visit the site enough times to adequately perform its professional duties (both as the Architect deems necessary and as requested by the District), but under no circumstances less than one time per week, unless fewer visits are authorized by District, to maintain familiarity with the quality and progress of the Project, to determine that the Contractor's work substantially complies with all documents, drawings, plans and specifications and that the Project is progressing in substantial accordance with the Contract Documents. Such observations are to be distinguished from the continuous inspection provided by the Project Inspector unless Architect has agreed in writing to serve as the District's Project Inspector.
- 5.7.10 The Architect shall notify the District promptly of any significant defect in materials, equipment or workmanship, and of any default by any Contractor in the orderly and timely prosecution of the Project. Architect will exercise reasonable care in the discharge of Architect's obligation to discover significant defects and faults.
- 5.7.11 The Architect shall review and approve, take exception to, or take other appropriate action upon all schedules, shop drawings, samples and other submissions of the Contractor to determine general conformance with the Project design and specifications as set forth in the Contract Documents. All such action shall be taken within fourteen (14) days of receipt of the submittals, unless the critical path of the Project is impacted in which case Architect shall take such action as soon as possible. If Architect is not able to take such action within the required time due to reasons beyond Architect's control, the Architect may take action within a reasonable period of time under the circumstances; however, the Architect shall make such determination within four (4) calendar days of receipt of the submission, and shall notify the District and Contractor immediately after such determination with an explanation as to why the Architect cannot take action within the time required, what the Architect is doing to expedite its response, when the Architect expects to be able to issue a response, and what action, if any, should be taken by District or Contractor in the meantime to mitigate delays and/or costs. The Architect will have the authority to reject work and materials which do not conform to the Contract Documents. The Architect's approval of a specific item shall not be an approval of an assembly of which the item is a component. Whenever, in the Architect's reasonable judgment, it is considered necessary or advisable for the implementation of the intent of the Contract Documents, the Architect will have authority to require special inspection or testing of the work or materials in accordance with the Contract Documents whether or not such work or materials be then

fabricated, installed or completed. The Architect will also recommend substitution of materials or equipment when, in the Architect's reasonable judgment, such action is necessary to the accomplishment of the intent and purpose of the Contract Documents. Such actions as are described in this paragraph shall be taken with reasonable promptness.

- 5.7.12 Architect shall assist the District in requiring Contractor to provide assistance in the utilization of any equipment or system such as initial start-up or testing, adjusting and balancing, preparation of operation and maintenance manuals and training personnel for operation and maintenance.
- 5.7.13 The Architect shall not be responsible for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions or programs in connection with the work. The Architect shall not be responsible for acts or omissions of the Contractor, subcontractors, or their agents or employees or of any other persons performing portions of the Project not employed or retained by Architect, unless due to Wrongful Acts or Omissions.
- 5.7.14 The Architect shall make such regular reports as shall be required by agencies having jurisdiction over the Project and keep the District informed in writing of the progress of the Project.
- 5.7.15 The Architect will, consistent with standards of due care, make reasonable professional efforts to exclude hazardous materials from new construction. In the event the District or Architect is or becomes aware of the presence of, or exposure of persons to, asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) or any other toxic or hazardous contaminants, materials, air pollutants or water pollutants at the Project site ("Hazardous Substances"), or the substantial risk thereof, each shall have a duty immediately to notify the other in writing. The parties recognize, however, that neither Architect nor the District is trained or licensed in the recognition or remediation of Hazardous Substances. When construction is properly completed, Architect shall provide such certification as to Hazardous Substances as is required of architects for such projects by the OPSC.
- 5.7.16 Based on the Architect's observations, and an evaluation of each Project Application for Payment, the Architect will estimate the amount of work completed by Contractor, and assist the District in (a) determining the amount owing to the Contractor, and (b) issuing Project Certificates for Payment incorporating such amount, all in accordance with the Contract Documents. The Architect's estimation of the amount of work completed by Contractor shall constitute representations by the Architect to the District that the quality of the completed work is in accordance with the Contract Documents based upon Architect's observations of the completed work and that the Contractor is entitled to payment for the completed work.
- 5.7.17 Notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement, as a part of its Basic Services, the Architect shall assist the District in evaluating and responding to claims, disputes and other matters in question between the Contractor and the District, including but not limited to claims made against the District as a result of alleged or claimed Wrongful Acts or Omissions, and shall in all instances provide such truthful testimonial assistance as may be required by the District at no cost to the District. Architect agrees to toll all statutory periods of limitations for District's claims, lawsuits or other proceedings against Architect which arise out of, or related to, any claims by Contractors against District until Contractors' claims are fully and finally resolved. This tolling period commences upon a Contractor's initial submission of a notice of claim, change order request or claim. At any time,

District may terminate the tolling period effective ten (10) days after written notice to Architect, and after such termination, District may pursue claims, lawsuits or other proceedings against Architect.

- 5.7.18 The Architect will provide construction advice to the District on apparent deficiencies in construction, both during construction and after acceptance of the Project.
- 5.7.19 The Architect shall recommend, prepare and process the necessary change orders. Payment of fees to the Architect as a result of change orders shall be handled as follows:
- 5.7.19.1 <u>District-initiated change orders</u>. If a change order is initiated by the District, the Architect's fee for such change order shall be calculated on a percentage or hourly basis as agreed in writing by the District and the Architect prior to commencement of work on the change order. If a change order is solicited by the District but not subsequently authorized by the District, the Architect shall be paid for time spent on the proposed change order as an Additional Service.
- 5.7.19.2 <u>Change orders due to Architect</u>. When a change order is necessitated as a result of Wrongful Acts or Omissions, the Architect's fees shall not be calculated by reference to the cost of any change order work which would not have been necessary in the absence of such Wrongful Acts or Omissions.
- 5.7.19.3 <u>Change orders beyond District or Architect control</u>. If a change order is necessitated as a result of changes in law, in-field changes required by governing agencies after document approval, unknown, unforeseeable or hidden conditions, or actual conditions inconsistent with available drawings of existing conditions, such change orders shall be handled in the same manner as District-initiated change orders.
- 5.7.20 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in the event a change order is caused by, or necessitated as a result of Wrongful Acts or Omissions, or the District otherwise incurs costs or damages as a result of Wrongful Acts or Omissions, the Architect shall be responsible for the cost of the following:
- 5.7.20.1 In the event of such a change order, Architect shall be responsible for the difference between (a) what the contractor would have added to its original bid for the Project if the Wrongful Act or Omission had not occurred (i.e., the "added value" portion of the change order), and (b) what the contractor charges the District in the change order. The amount of added value of any change order work shall be based on the circumstances of the Architect's Wrongful Act or Omission and the change order work necessitated by the Wrongful Act or Omission. It is the parties' intent that the District should pay no more than what the District would have paid if the Wrongful Act or Omission had not occurred.
- 5.7.20.2 In addition, Architect shall be responsible for any other costs or damages which the District incurs as a result of Wrongful Acts or Omissions including but not limited to any delay damages the District pays to, or cannot collect from, Contractor or any third party.

The District may backcharge, and withhold payment from the Architect for these costs and damages, and may seek reimbursement for any amount which exceeds any retention of the contract amount at the time of collection. When District so backcharges and withholds, upon Architect's request, District and Architect shall meet and confer in good faith in an effort to reach agreement on (a)

whether a Wrongful Act or Omission occurred, (b) whether it caused the change order expense, (c) what damages have been incurred by District, and (d) what portion of the damages are attributable to Architect as described above. If District and Architect do not reach agreement on all four of these items when meeting and conferring, then District and Architect shall use mediation in good faith to resolve the dispute. If mediation fails, then either District or Architect can initiate a court action to resolve the dispute.

- 5.7.21 The Architect shall provide a color schedule of all finish materials in the Project for the District's review and approval.
- 5.7.22 The Architect shall assist the District in determining the date of final completion and make a final detailed on-site review of the job with representatives of the District and the Contractor. Architect shall also perform a warranty review with District 30-60 days before expiration of the specified warranty on the Project.
- 5.7.23 The Architect shall assist the District in issuing the final certificate for payment and any other documents required to be recorded by law or generally accepted architectural or construction contract practice upon compliance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, provided that such certification shall not constitute an admission that the Project has been completed in accordance with Contract Documents or in conformance with this Agreement.
- 5.7.24 Architect shall ensure that the finished project complies with all standards imposed by the Americans with Disabilities Act, section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, disability access requirements of the State Building Code and any other laws applicable to disability access. The Architect's final detailed on-site review of the finished project conducted pursuant to Section 5.7.22 shall include a field inspection to ensure compliance with such requirements. If a court, administrative agency or other trier of fact later determines that Architect has violated any of the above-referenced laws, or District, because of Wrongful Acts or Omissions, has violated any of the above-referenced laws, Architect shall remedy the violation at its own cost. Architect shall indemnify, defend and hold the District harmless pursuant to Article 18.1 of this Agreement for any breach of this paragraph due to Architect's negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct. The Architect shall not be responsible for acts or omissions of the Contractor or of any other persons performing portions of the Project not employed or retained by Architect, nor shall Architect be responsible for any subsequent changes in the law or any regulation applicable to disabled access or any subsequent differing interpretation of the laws or regulations applicable at the time Architect's design is reviewed by DSA. In the event that the Architect is or becomes aware of possible noncompliance with the foregoing standards, Architect shall have a duty immediately to notify the District in writing of the possible non-compliance.

#### 5.8 Close Out Phase

5.8.1 Architect will assist the District with securing all documents necessary to achieve DSA certification or formal close out of project.

#### 5.9 Use of Previously Prepared Materials

In the event that there exist previously prepared designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents, or any other works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of

expression, including but not limited to physical drawings, data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer disks, or other writings, that were prepared by design professionals other than Architect, whether supplied by District or by Architect, which are relied upon, altered or otherwise utilized by Architect, Architect shall be responsible for giving appropriate recognition to such other design professionals in any materials prepared by Architect pursuant to this Agreement.

#### **ARTICLE 6**

#### ADDITIONAL SERVICES TO BE RENDERED BY ARCHITECT

- 6.1 "Additional Services" shall be provided by Architect if authorized in writing by District. No additional compensation shall be paid to Architect for performing these Additional Services unless the District and the Architect agree in writing as to the amount of compensation for such services prior to such services being rendered. Such compensation shall be computed as set forth in Article 4.2.1 and as otherwise set forth in this Agreement. Any work performed by Architect without written authorization OR without written agreement on compensation shall be presumed to be Basic Services.
- 6.2 The following list of services are not included in the Basic Services to be provided under this Agreement, and they will be performed only in accordance with Article 6.1, above:
  - 6.2.1 Providing financial feasibility or other special studies;
- 6.2.2 Providing services relative to future facilities, systems and equipment which are not intended to be constructed during the Construction Phase;
- 6.2.3 Providing coordination of Project performed by separate contractors or by the District's own forces;
- 6.2.4 Providing analyses of owning and operating costs, or detailed quantity surveys or inventories of material, equipment and labor;
- 6.2.5 Making revisions in drawings, specifications or other documents when such revisions are inconsistent with written approvals or instructions previously given, are required by the enactment or revision of codes, laws or regulations subsequent to the District's approval of Contract Documents or are due to other causes not within the control of the Architect;
- 6.2.6 Providing consultation concerning replacement of any work damaged by fire or other cause during construction of the Project, and furnishing services as may be required in connection with the replacement of such work;
  - 6.2.7 Providing services made necessary by the default of the Contractor;
- 6.2.8 Preparing to serve or serving as an expert witness in connection with any public hearing, arbitration proceeding or legal proceeding, other than when resulting from Architect's or its consultants' alleged Wrongful Acts or Omissions;
- 6.2.9 Providing services of consultants for other than the normal architectural, civil, soils, structural, mechanical and electrical engineering services for the Project;

- 6.2.10 At the District's request, selecting moveable furniture, equipment or articles which are not included in the Contract Documents;
- 6.2.11 Providing services related to change orders requested by the District but which are not subsequently authorized (see the second sentence of Section 5.7.19.1, above); and
- 6.2.12 Providing any other services not otherwise included in the Agreement and not customarily furnished in accordance with generally accepted architectural practice.

#### **ARTICLE 7**

#### RESPONSIBILITIES OF DISTRICT

It shall be the duty of District to:

- 7.1 Pay all fees required by any reviewing or licensing agency;
- 7.2 Designate a representative authorized to act as a liaison between the Architect and the District in the administration of this Agreement and the Contract Documents;
  - 7.3 Furnish, at the District's expense, the services of a Project Inspector;
- 7.4 Review all documents submitted by the Architect and advise the Architect of decisions thereon within a reasonable time after submission;
  - 7.5 Issue appropriate orders to Contractors through the Architect;
- 7.6 Furnish existing soil investigation or geological hazard reports, which the District shall own and, upon termination of this Agreement or completion of the Project, shall have returned to it by Architect;
- 7.7 Furnish the services of a hydrologist or other consultants not routinely provided by the Architect when such services are reasonably required by the scope of the Project and are requested by the Architect;
- 7.8 Provide asbestos review and abatement, identifying materials which may qualify for same;
- 7.9 Furnish available as-built drawings for buildings and utilities systems related to the Project, which the District shall own and, upon termination of this Agreement or completion of the Project, shall have returned to it by the Architect. The District will also provide information regarding programmatic needs and specific equipment selection data;
- 7.10 Furnish structural, mechanical, chemical and other laboratory tests, inspections and reports as required by law or the Contract Documents, which the District shall own and, upon termination of this Agreement or completion of the Project, shall have returned to it by the Architect; and

7.11 Furnish prompt notice of any fault or defects in the Project or nonconformance with the Contract Documents of which the District becomes aware (however, the District's failure to do so shall not relieve the Architect of Architect's responsibilities under Title 21, Title 24, and the Field Act for this Project and under this agreement).

#### **ARTICLE 8**

#### PUBLIC LIABILITY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE INSURANCE

- 8.1 Prior to the commencement of services under this Agreement, the Architect shall furnish to the District a certificate of insurance, Additional Insured Endorsement and Declarations Page for the period covered by this Agreement, for public liability and property damage with an insurance carrier satisfactory to the District, under forms satisfactory to the District, to protect the Architect and District against loss from liability imposed for damages (1) on account of bodily or personal injuries, including death, disease and sickness, accidentally suffered or alleged to have been suffered by any person or persons that may be caused directly or indirectly by the performance of this Agreement, and (2) on account of injury to or destruction of property, including the resultant loss of use of the Project or other District facilities or equipment, resulting from acts of commission or omission by the Architect, or otherwise resulting directly or indirectly from the Architect's operations in the performance of this Agreement. The District shall be named as an additional insured on all such policies.
- 8.2 The following insurance shall be maintained by the Architect in full force and effect during the entire period of performance of this Agreement, including any extensions, and shall be written on an "occurrence" basis: Commercial general liability insurance, excluding coverage for motor vehicles, shall be in amounts not less than Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) on an annual aggregate basis. Such insurance or liability coverage shall at least include "broad form" commercial general liability, errors and omissions (exclusive of design professional liability), and automobile liability (owned, non-owned, and hired) coverages. Each party, and their respective directors, officers and employees, shall be listed as "additional insureds" under such coverages, as evidenced by an Additional Insured Endorsement.
- 8.3 The Architect's insurance policies shall contain a provision for thirty (30) days written notice to the District of cancellation or reduction of coverage. The Architect shall name, on any policy of insurance required, the District as an additional insured. The Additional Insured Endorsement included on all such insurance policies shall state that coverage is afforded the additional insured with respect to claims arising out of operations performed by or on behalf of the insured. If the additional insureds have other insurance which is applicable to the loss, such other insurance shall be on an excess or contingent basis. The amount of the insurer's liability shall not be reduced by the existence of such other insurance. Architect shall not commence work under this Agreement until all required insurance certificates, declarations pages and additional insured endorsements have been obtained and delivered in duplicate to the District for approval subject to the following requirements. Thereafter Architect shall produce a certified copy of any insurance policy required under this section upon written request of the District.
- 8.4 At the time of making application for any extension of time, Architect shall submit evidence that insurance policies will be in effect during the requested additional period of time.

- 8.5 If the Architect fails to maintain such insurance, the District may, but shall not be required to, take out such insurance to cover any damages of the above-mentioned classes for which the District might be held liable on account of the Architect's failure to pay such damages, and deduct and retain the amount of the premiums from any sums due the Architect under this Agreement.
- 8.6 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as limiting, in any way, the extent to which the Architect may be held responsible for the payment of damages resulting from the Architect's operations.
- 8.7 Each of Architect's consultants shall comply with this Article, and Architect shall include such provisions in its contracts with them.

#### **ARTICLE 9**

#### **WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE**

Prior to the commencement of services under this Agreement, the Architect shall furnish to the District satisfactory proof that the Architect and all engineers, experts, consultants and subcontractors the Architect intends to employ have taken out, for the period covered by this Agreement, workers' compensation insurance with an insurance carrier satisfactory to the District for all persons whom they may employ in carrying out the work contemplated under this Agreement in accordance with the Workers' Compensation Laws of the State of California.

If the Architect employs any engineer, expert, consultant or subcontractor which it did not intend to employ prior to commencement of services, it must furnish such proof of workers' compensation insurance to the District immediately upon employment. Such insurance shall be maintained in full force and effect during the period covered by this Agreement including any extensions of time. If the Architect is self-insured, the Architect shall furnish a Certificate of Permission to Self-Insure and a Certificate of Self-Insurance satisfactory to the District.

Prior to the commencement of services under this Agreement, the Architect shall furnish to the District satisfactory proof that the Architect and all engineers, experts, consultants and subcontractors the Architect intends to employ have taken out employer's liability insurance with an insurance carrier satisfactory to the District. During the course of Architect's services, if Architect ever intends to employ additional or different engineers, experts, consultants or subcontractors, before so employing them Architect shall furnish such satisfactory proof of insurance to the District. Such insurance shall be maintained in full force and effect during the period covered by this Agreement including any extensions of time. If the Architect is self-insured, the Architect shall furnish a Certificate of Permission to Self-Insure and a Certificate of Self-Insurance satisfactory to the District.

#### ARTICLE 10

#### **PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE**

10.1 Prior to the commencement of services under this Agreement, the Architect shall furnish to the District satisfactory proof that the Architect has purchased professional liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, extending protection to Architect in an amount no less than Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) per claim, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) in the annual aggregate,

with a deductible of no more than Seventy Five Thousand Dollars (\$75,000). Such coverage shall be in effect, as evidenced by a valid Certificate of Insurance, no later than (i) the date any plans and specifications for a specific project are submitted to any required regulatory agency for review and approval, and/or (ii) the date the Architect agrees that the plans may be submitted for bid or bid consideration to any general contractor or group of contractors. Coverage for alleged wrongful acts, errors or omissions will remain in effect until three (3) years after the Notice of Completion has been filed and the project has been accepted by the District. At all other times, the Architect shall purchase professional liability insurance of no less than One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per claim and One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) in the aggregate.

10.2 Each of Architect's professional sub-consultants (including consultants of Architect's) shall comply with this Article, and Architect shall include such provisions in its contracts with them.

#### **ARTICLE 11**

#### **COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS**

Architect shall be familiar with, and Architect and Architect's design shall comply with all State and Federal laws and regulations applicable to the Project or lawfully imposed upon the Project by agencies having jurisdiction over the Project, including but not limited to statutes, decisions, regulations, building or other codes, ordinances, charters, prevailing wage law, and the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA").

#### **ARTICLE 12**

#### **TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT**

12.1 <u>Termination by District</u>. This Agreement may be terminated or the Project may be canceled by the District for the District's convenience and without cause at any time immediately upon written notice to the Architect. In such event, the Architect shall be compensated for (a) all Basic and Additional services completed, and Reimbursable Expenses incurred, pursuant to this Agreement through the date of termination, (b) such Basic or Additional Services performed, and Reimbursable Expenses incurred, after termination which are authorized by the District, and (c) any costs incurred by reason of such termination; but less any amounts the District is entitled to withhold under law or this Agreement. Upon the District's request and authorization, Architect shall perform any and all Basic and Additional Services necessary to complete the work in progress as of the date of termination.

For any material breach of contract by the Architect, the District may also terminate the Agreement for cause by delivering written Notice of Intent to Terminate to the Architect. Such Notice shall include the following: (1) A description of such material breach, and (2) a date not less than fourteen days (14) after delivery of the notice by which the Architect must cure such breach. In response to such Notice, if the Architect fails to cure, and fails to reasonably commence to cure, the breach(es) by the deadline set by the Notice, then the District may terminate the Agreement by written notice delivered to the Architect, which shall be effective upon such delivery. In such event, the Architect shall be compensated for all services completed pursuant to this Agreement through the date of termination, together with compensation for such services performed after termination which are authorized by the District, but less any amounts the District is entitled to withhold under law or this Agreement. Upon the District's request and authorization, Architect shall perform any and all services necessary to complete the work in progress as of the date of the termination.

12.2 <u>Termination by Architect.</u> For any material breach of contract by the District other than one related to a payment or invoice dispute as described in Section 4.4 of this Agreement, the Architect may terminate the Agreement by delivering written Notice of Intent to Terminate to the District. Such Notice shall include the following: (1) A description of such material breach, (2) a date not less than fourteen (14) days after delivery of the notice by which the District must cure such breach or reasonably commence to cure such breach, (3) the status of work completed as of the date of the Notice of Intent to Terminate, and (4) a description and cost estimate of the effort necessary to complete the work in progress. In response to such Notice, if the District fails to cure, and fails to reasonably commence to cure, the breach by the deadline set by the Notice, then Architect may terminate the Agreement by written notice delivered to the District within ten (10) days of the cure deadline, which shall be effective upon such delivery.

In the event of such termination by Architect, Architect shall be compensated for all Basic and Additional Services completed, and Reimbursable Expenses incurred, pursuant to this Agreement through the date of termination, together with compensation for such Basic and Additional Services performed, and Reimbursable Expenses incurred, after termination which are authorized by the District. Upon the District's request and authorization, Architect shall perform any and all Basic and Additional Services necessary to complete the work in progress as of the date of termination.

#### 12.3 Miscellaneous Provisions

12.3.1 Following the termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever, the District shall have the right to utilize any designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents, or any other works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to physical drawings, data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer disks, or other writings prepared or caused to be prepared under this Agreement by the Architect, not only as they relate or may relate to this Project (including but not limited to any repair, maintenance, renovation, modernization or other alterations or revisions to this Project) but as they relate or may relate to other projects, provided that any invalidity of such license in relation to such other projects shall not affect the validity of such license in relation to this Project (including, but not limited to, any repair, maintenance, renovation, modernization or other alterations/revisions to this Project) under Education Code Section 17316. Architect shall promptly make any such documents or materials available to the District upon request without additional compensation.

12.3.2 In the event of the termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever, all designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents, or any other works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to physical drawings, data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer disks, or other writings prepared or caused to be prepared by the Architect or any of its agents pursuant to this Agreement shall immediately upon request by the District be delivered to the District. Architect may not refuse to provide such writings or materials for any reason whatsoever, including but not limited to a possessory interest lien for any claim the Architect may have against the District or a claim by the Architect to an ownership interest in the intellectual property embodied in the documents or materials.

#### **ARTICLE 13**

#### ARCHITECT AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

It is specifically agreed that in the making and performance of this Agreement, the Architect is an independent contractor and is not and shall not be construed to be an officer or employee of the District.

#### **ARTICLE 14**

#### STANDARDIZED MANUFACTURED ITEMS

The Architect shall consult and cooperate with the District in the use and selection of manufactured items to be used in the Project. Manufactured items, including but not limited to paint, finish hardware, plumbing fixtures and fittings, mechanical equipment, electrical fixtures and equipment, roofing materials, and floor coverings, shall be standardized to the District's criteria so long as the same does not interfere seriously with the building design or cost.

#### **ARTICLE 15**

#### **OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS**

All designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates and other documents or any other works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to physical drawings, data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer disks, or other writings prepared or caused to be prepared by the Architect pursuant to this Agreement shall be and shall remain the property of the District for all purposes, not only as they relate or may relate to this Project (including but not limited to any repair, maintenance, renovation, modernization or other alterations or revisions to this Project) but as they relate or may relate to any other project, provided that any invalidity of such ownership in relation to any other project shall not affect the validity of such ownership in relation to this Project (including but not limited to any repair, maintenance, renovation, modernization or other alterations or revisions to this Project) under Education Code Section 17316.

The Architect will provide the District with a complete set of reproducible designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates and other documents or any other works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to physical drawings, data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer disks in formats including both DWG and PDF, or other writings prepared or caused to be prepared by the Architect pursuant to this Agreement, and will retain, on the District's behalf, the original documents or reproducible copies of all such original documents, however stored, in the Architect's files for a period of no less than fifteen (15) years. Architect shall promptly make available to District any original documents it has retained pursuant to this Agreement upon request by the District.

#### **ARTICLE 16**

#### **LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY**

This Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for the District to copy, use, modify, reuse or sublicense any and all copyrights, designs and other intellectual property embodied in plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates and other documents, or any other works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to physical drawings, data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer disks, or other writings prepared or caused to be

prepared by the Architect pursuant to this Agreement, not only as they relate or may relate to this Project (including but not limited to any repair, maintenance, renovation, modernization or other alterations or revisions to this Project) but as they relate or may relate to other projects, provided that any invalidity of such license in relation to such other projects shall not affect the validity of such license in relation to this Project (including but not limited to any repair, maintenance, renovation, modernization or other alterations or revisions to this Project) under Education Code Section 17316. The Architect shall require any and all subcontractors and consultants to agree in writing that the District is granted a similar non-exclusive and perpetual license for the work of such subcontractors or consultants performed pursuant to this Agreement.

The compensation for this Project includes compensation not only for any use in connection with this Project and use or re-use for repair, maintenance, renovation, modernization or other alterations or revisions to this Project, but also for any re-use by the District in relation to other projects. The only other term or condition of such re-use shall be that if the District re-uses the plans prepared by the Architect and retains another certified architect or structural engineer for the preparation of those plans for the re-use, the District shall indemnify and hold harmless the Architect and its consultants, agents, and employees from and against any claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including attorney's fees, arising out of or resulting from, in whole or in part, the re-use to the extent required by Education Code section 17316, subdivision (c).

Architect represents and warrants that Architect has the legal right to license any and all copyrights, designs and other intellectual property embodied in plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents that Architect or its consultants prepares or causes to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement. Architect shall indemnify, defend and hold the District harmless pursuant to Article 18.1 of this Agreement for any breach of Article 16 due to Architect's negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct. The Architect makes no such representation and warranty in regard to previously prepared designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents, or any other works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to physical drawings, data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer disks, or other writings, that were prepared by design professionals other than Architect and provided to Architect by the District.

#### **ARTICLE 17**

#### ACCOUNTING RECORDS OF ARCHITECT

Architect's records of accounts regarding the Project shall be kept in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and shall be available to the District or its authorized representative at mutually convenient times.

#### <u>ARTICLE 18</u>

#### **INDEMNITY**

#### 18.1 Architect Indemnification

The Architect shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District, the governing Board of the District, each member of the Board, and their officers, agents and employees

against claims arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of the Architect, the Architect's officers, employees, or consultants in performing or failing to perform any work, services, or functions provided for, referred to, or in any way connected with any work, services, or functions to be performed under this Agreement. For purposes of this Article 18.1 only, "claims" means any and all claims, demands, actions and suits brought by third parties for any and all losses, liabilities, costs, expenses, damages and obligations, and the defense obligation shall include but not be limited to payment of the District's attorneys' fees, experts' fees, and litigation costs incurred in defense of a claim.

#### 18.2 <u>District Indemnification for Use of Third Party Materials</u>

The District shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Architect and its employees against any and all copyright infringement claims by any design professional formerly retained by the District arising out of Architect's completion, use or re-use of that former design professional's designs or contract documents in performing this Agreement. Architect shall be entitled to such indemnification only if each of the following conditions are met: (a) Architect actually re-draws or completes such other designs or contract documents; (b) Architect complies with the provisions of Article 5.8 regarding use of materials prepared by other design professionals; (c) District has supplied Architect with the previously prepared documents or materials; and (d) District expressly requests that the Architect utilize the designs or contract documents in question. By providing this or any other indemnification in this Agreement, District does not waive any immunities.

#### ARTICLE 19

#### **TIME SCHEDULE**

#### 19.1 **Time for Completion**

Time is of the essence of this Agreement. The Architect shall timely complete its Basic and Additional Services as expeditiously as possible and according to the schedule attached as Exhibit "B" to this Agreement.

#### 19.2 **Delays**

The District recognizes that circumstances may occur beyond the control of either the District or the Architect and extensions for such delays may be made to the schedule if approved by the District. Any time during which the Architect is delayed in the Architect's work by acts of District or its employees or those in a direct contractual relationship with District or by acts of nature or other occurrences which were not or could not have been reasonably foreseen and provided for, and which are not due to any Wrongful Acts or Omissions, shall be added to the time for completion of any obligations of the Architect. District shall not be liable for damages to the Architect on account of any such delay.

#### **ARTICLE 20**

#### **MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS**

- 20.1 This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California excluding its choice of law rules. Any action or proceeding seeking any relief under or with respect to this Agreement shall be brought solely in the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Sacramento, subject to transfer of venue under applicable State law, provided that nothing in this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of immunity to suit by the School District.
- 20.2 The Architect shall not assign or transfer any or all of its rights, burdens, duties or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the District.
- 20.3 All notices, certificates, or other communications hereunder shall be deemed given when personally delivered or mailed by certified mail, postage prepaid, to the parties at the addresses set forth below:

**District** Architect

Sacramento City Unified School District	HMC Architects
5735 47 <sup>th</sup> Avenue	2495 Natomas Park Dr, Studio 655
Sacramento, CA 95824	Sacramento, CA 95833
Attn: Kimberly Teague, Contracts	Attn: Brian Meyers, Associate

- 20.4 This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the Architect and the District and their respective successors and assigns.
- 20.5 If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof.
- 20.6 The terms of this Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, supplemented or amended in any manner whatsoever except by written agreement signed by the parties.
- 20.7 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or cause of action in favor of a third party against either the District or the Architect.
- 20.8 This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties, and supersedes any prior agreement or understanding. There are no understandings, agreements, representations or warranties, expressed or implied, not specified in this Agreement. The Architect, by the execution of this Agreement, acknowledges that the Architect has read this Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms and conditions.
- 20.9 The Architect shall have the right to include representations of the design of the Project, including photographs of the exterior and interior, among the Architect's professional materials. The Architect's materials shall not include the District's confidential or proprietary information if the District has previously advised the Architect in writing of the specific information considered by the District to be confidential or proprietary.
- 20.10 Prior to executing this agreement, the Architect shall submit a certification if required by Public Contract Code section 3006(b) for roofing projects.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this instrument to be executed this 19th day of April, 2013.

<b>DISTRICT</b> :	ARCHITECT:
By: Ken A. Forrest Chief Business Officer	By:
Date	Printed Name/Title
	Date

## **EXHIBIT A**

## SCOPE OF WORK

(See Attached)

## PRELIMINARY

February 21, 2013

Mr. James C. Dobson Director II, Planning, Construction and Operations Sacramento City Unified School District 425 1<sup>st</sup> Avenue Sacramento, CA 95818



Fee Proposal for Track and Field Replacement Rosemont High School

Dear Jim:

Thank you for the opportunity to assist the District with the development of the Track and Field Renovations at the Rosemont High School campus. Please allow this correspondence to serve as HMC Architect's Fee Proposal for the provision of Architectural and supporting Engineering Services associated with the project scopes referenced herein.

#### A. SCOPE OF WORK:

HMC understands that this project consists of providing design and construction documents for the replacement of the existing track in the same location. The expected overall project work is as follows:

- Demolition of existing track (surface only) and field surface conditions and removal and/or re-routing of existing underground utilities within the affected project area boundaries.
- Earthwork/Excavation/Rough Grading activities within the affected track/field project area boundaries, as well as the Home-side and Visitorside path-of-travel walkways.
- New Underground Storm Drainage piping system beneath the new synthetic turf field area construction.
- New synthetic turf field installation over a compacted aggregate base course.
- New synthetic 8-lane track surface and 'D'-zone field event areas, including installation of field event elements (pole vault, triple and long jump pits).
- Re-routing and installation of existing field-level communications, power, and low-voltage systems to be compatible with new track/field construction.
- New underground field cooling system with booster pump provisions and connection to the existing campus' on-site domestic water infrastructure.

Proposal for Architectural Services Sacramento City Unified School District Rosemont Track and Field Replacement February 21, 2013 Page 2

- 8. Paving replacement to address ADA accessibility path-of-travel deficiencies and to replace aged/deteriorated paving areas.
- Limited landscaping improvements along the edge of the new synthetic track construction where the existing finish grades of the sloped natural turf area have been modified.

#### II. Scope of Services

HMC proposes to furnish the following Basic Professional Services in conjunction with the provision of Programming, Construction Document preparation, DSA Plan Reviews and Approvals, Bidding, and Construction Administration Services necessary for the installation of these additional project scope additions as previously described:

- Architectural Design and Documentation
- On-Site Civil Engineering (limited to project area)
- · Supplemental Field Surveying
- Landscape Architectural Design
- · Electrical Engineering
- DSA Coordination

#### III. Compensation

HMC Architects proposes to perform the design services outlined in the Scope of Work and Scope of Services portions of this Proposal outlined herein. Our calculated compensation amounts are based upon furnishing the level of anticipated services that would be necessary to complete the identified work scopes and for those work scopes to align with the project construction budgets.

HMC proposes to furnish these basic services referenced herein for a fixed fee of Ninety Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$92,500). This fee will be invoiced in the following phases:

	Total	100%
•	Project Closeout	5%
•	Construction Administration Phase	30%
•	Bid Phase	5%
•	Plan Approval Phase	5%
•	Construction Document Phase	50%
•	Programming	5%

This proposed fee is based on an 8% of the New Construction project calculated with a \$1,150,000 construction budget. In the event that the Budget or Project Work Scope or Deliverables changes in size, quality, complexity, schedule, method of bidding, contracting, or phasing of construction; HMC Architects reserves the right to request the District for additional compensation accordingly.

Proposal for Architectural Services Sacramento City Unified School District Rosemont Track and Field Replacement February 21, 2013 Page 3

#### IV. Additional Services

If Additional Services are required beyond the original Scope of Work, such services as described in Attachment "A" will be billed by HMC on an hourly basis per Attachment "B", HMC Rate Schedule.

#### V. Exclusions/District Responsibilities

The following services, scopes of work, and related expenses are not incorporated in this proposal and if deemed necessary for this Project shall be furnished by the District under separate contract or considered additional work scope of this Proposal, with additional compensation to HMC mutually agreed upon.

- A. Design services for any additional or incidental work scope occurring outside of the proposed Site Improvement work areas, or for work which may be required by DSA as a result of the plan review process that has not been reasonably anticipated.
- Structural design services associated with existing scoreboards, retaining walls, light poles, fencing, etc.
- C. Governmental Agency plan review or inspection fees.
- Any fees associated with required testing laboratory or Inspector-of-Record services.
- E. Any required civil engineering path of travel corrective work beyond what has been described to be a part of this project related to this work or any affected adjacent work.
- F. Power or data upgrades to the campus' main distribution infrastructure as a result of modifications proposed within these scopes of work.
- G. Preparation of Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP) reports or other related Hydrology Studies that may be required/requested by local water purveyors or governmental agencies having jurisdiction.
- H. Preparation of Storm Water Prevention Pollution Plans (SWPPP), Notices of Intent (NOI), California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) documents, including biological, environmental or habitat analysis studies deemed necessary in conjunction with this project.
- Hazardous Material Testing and Abatement studies or exploratory/destructive testing services.

Proposal for Architectural Services Sacramento City Unified School District Rosemont Track and Field Replacement February 21, 2013 Page 4

#### VI. Reimbursable Expenses

Reimbursable expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and Owner-approved Additional Services, including printing, plotting, delivery, and other expenses related to Agency review, Construction, or other Owner-requested costs.

Expenses in connection with authorized out-of-town travel, including travel time; and fees paid for securing approval of authorities having jurisdiction over the Project shall also be considered reimbursable expenses. The Architect's compensation shall be computed based on one (1.0) times the amounts invoiced to the architect by the consultant or vendor providing such reimbursable services. Reimbursable expenses for this entire project are preliminarily estimated at Seven Thousand Dollars (\$7,000).

Please review the information contained within this Proposal, and if this Proposal is acceptable to the District, please send HMC an acknowledgement indicating acceptance, a notification to proceed, and an Agreement for signature/execution.

Sincerely,

#### **HMC Architects**

Brian Meyers Associate

Attachment "A" – List of Additional Services Attachment "B" – HMC Hourly Rate Schedule

cc: P. Nemeth, L. Eloff (HMC)

## **EXHIBIT B**

## PROJECT SCHEDULE

(See Attached)

# Rosemont High School Track and Field Project Timeline 3-21-13

				î									=				**					5			3	,							
	4	3	18 25		<u>"</u>	15	23	29	6	13	2	27	3		7	2	1	∞	5	3	2 2	AUG.	3	اڤ	3 0	Т	١	- 1	- 1	200	-	1	1
Programming		$\dashv$				٦		- 1	$\neg$	- 1						4	_	4	-		4		$\neg$		$\neg$			-[;	8	†		1	1
		-	0						$\top$	T				$\perp$		$\perp$	_	4	4	+	+	+	+	+	十	+	$\dagger$	$\dagger$		$\dagger$	$\dagger$		
Site Investigations - with consultants				NOTICE OF		_			-		-				_		_				_			_	_								
Internal consultant meeting				100000																_					_				-	_	_		-
Initial Scoping Meeting				)																							_					_	
Prepare SD package				) (																													
				(																	_			_	_				-	_			
Program Approval				4.8						-			************														-						
Construction Documents		-	+	$\neg$						$\Box$			$\perp$	_	4	4	4	$\dashv$	4	+	╅	+	+	+	$\forall$	$\dagger$	7	$\top$	+	1			
Plan Refinement		$\dashv$	7										_	_	4	_	4	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^{\dagger}$	$\dagger$	$\dagger$	+	T	$\top$	1			
Owner Review Meeting						0						***																					
Prepare Final Estimate																																	
Submit Final Plans to USA																							-										
Agency Review															_	4		_	-	$\dashv$	$\dashv$	$\dashv$	$\dashv$	$\dashv$	$\forall$	$\top$	1					$\perp$	
DSA Review Time			_																		_			_									
Pick up DSA comments												9																					
USA Backcheck Appointment DSA Approval												AUG. 2004	0																				
Bidding	$\exists$	$\dashv$			$\perp$	$\perp$	$\perp$									_	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$\top$	$\top$	1	T	J			$\int$		
Advertisement / Plan Distribution Assist Owner in selection process																$\dashv$	_	$\dashv$	$\dashv$	$\dashv$	$\dashv$		十	寸	ヿ	T							
Bid Walk												1000	0																				
Prepare Addenda - Issue  Bid Opening													5000		)																		
														989253	(																		
Construction Administration					$\perp$							4		$\dashv$				74														4	
Construction Contract Administration  OWNER OCCUPANCY																										0							
Closeout	7	+			$\perp$		$\perp$	$\perp$		$\perp$	$\perp$	_	$\bot$	$\perp$	$\perp$	+	+	+-	+-	+	+	T	1		T								n)
Prepare Closeout Documentation		$\dashv$		$\Box$			_	_			_	4	_	4	4	+	+	+	+	+	$\dagger$	1	1	T	T								Š
SA Closeout - within 3 months of occupancy	F	-			_		_					_		_					_	-	_								_			_	)



# **AGREEMENT**

For

# **ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES**

For

# MODERNIZATION OF GYM BUILDING AT HIRAM JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

DEFINITIONS	2
RETENTION OF ARCHITECT: STANDARD OF CARE	3
DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT	3
COMPENSATION	4
BASIC SERVICES TO BE RENDERED BY ARCHITECT	6
ADDITIONAL SERVICES TO BE RENDERED BY ARCHITECT	17
RESPONSIBILITIES OF DISTRICT	18
PUBLIC LIABILITY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE INSURANCE	19
WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE	20
ERRORS AND OMISSIONS INSURANCE	21
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS	21
TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT	21
ARCHITECT AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	23
STANDARDIZED MANUFACTURED ITEMS	23
OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS	23
LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY	24
ACCOUNTING RECORDS OF ARCHITECT	25
INDEMNITY	25
TIME SCHEDULE	26
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	26

#### AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES

This Agreement for Architectural Services ("Agreement") is made and entered into by and between the Sacramento City Unified School District, a school district duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (the "District"), and HMR Architects (the "Architect"), with respect to the following recitals:

- A. District proposes to undertake the construction of improvement projects which require the services of a duly qualified and licensed architect.
- B. Architect represents that Architect is licensed to provide architectural/engineering services in the State of California and is specially qualified to provide the services required by the District, specifically the design and construction oversight of public school(s).
- C. The parties have negotiated the terms pursuant to which Architect will provide such services and reduce such terms to writing by this Agreement.

In consideration of the covenants and conditions contained in this Agreement, the parties agree as follows:

# **ARTICLE 1**

#### **DEFINITIONS**

- 1.1 <u>Additional Services</u>. "Additional Services" shall mean those services in addition to the Basic Services that are provided by Architect and authorized in writing by the District, and as further defined in Article 6 herein.
  - 1.2 **Agreement**. "Agreement" shall mean this Agreement for Architectural Services.
- 1.3 **Architect**. "Architect" shall mean HMR Architects, and its officers, shareholders, owners, partners, employees, agents and authorized representatives.
- 1.4 <u>Basic Services</u>. Architect's Basic Services consist of the design services, including landscaping architectural services and landscape irrigation design, civil, structural, mechanical, and electrical engineering services, normally required to complete the Project, as further defined in Article 5.
- 1.5 <u>Contract Documents</u>. "Contract Documents" shall mean those documents which are required for the actual construction of the Project, including but not limited to the Agreement between Owner and Contractor, complete working drawings and specifications setting forth in detail sufficient for construction the work to be done and the materials, workmanship, finishes and equipment required for the architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical system and utility-service-connected equipment and site work.
- 1.6 <u>Contractor</u>. "Contractor" shall mean one or more contractors ultimately selected to perform work on the Project or any replacement.
- 1.7 <u>District</u>. "District" shall mean the Sacramento City Unified School District, and its governing board members, employees, agents and authorized representatives.

- 1.8 **Project**. "Project" shall mean the work of improvement described in Article 3 and the construction thereof, including the Architect's services thereon, as described in this Agreement.
- 1.9 **Project Construction Cost**. "Project Construction Cost" shall mean the estimate of total construction costs to the District as initially submitted by the Architect pursuant to this Agreement and accepted by the District, and as subsequently revised in these manners: (a) Revised by changes to the Project Construction Cost under Article 5 of this Agreement; (b) revised at the time the District enters a construction contract, to equal the construction contract amount, (c) increased by the dollar amounts of all approved additive contract change order items, with the exception of (i) items resulting from Wrongful Acts or Omissions on the part of the Architect, including but not limited to those items covered by Section 5.7.19.2, below, (ii) payments to Architect or consultants for costs of inspections, surveys, tests and sites and landscaping not included in the Project, and (iii) items where Architect and District agreed to compensate the Architect for its services on an hourly basis, pursuant to Section 5.7.19.1, below; and (d) decreased by the dollar amounts of all approved deductive contract change order items.
- 1.10 <u>Wrongful Acts or Omissions</u>. "Wrongful Acts or Omissions" shall mean Architect's acts or omissions in breach of this Agreement, the applicable standard of care, or law.

#### **ARTICLE 2**

# RETENTION OF ARCHITECT: STANDARD OF CARE

District retains Architect to perform, and Architect agrees to provide to District, for the consideration and upon the terms and conditions set forth below, the architectural and engineering services specified in this Agreement and related incidental services. The Architect agrees to perform such services as expeditiously as is consistent with professional skill and care and the orderly progress of the Project. All services performed by the Architect under and required by this Agreement shall be performed (a) in compliance with this Agreement and (b) in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by architects in the same discipline, on similar projects in California with similar complexity and with similar agreements, who are specially qualified to provide the services required by the District; and all such services shall be conducted in conformance to, and compliance with, all applicable Federal, State and local laws, including but not limited to statutes, decisions, regulations, building or other codes, ordinances, charters, and the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA"). Architect shall be responsible for the completeness and accuracy of the plans and specifications.

#### **ARTICLE 3**

#### **DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT**

The Project concerning which such architectural services shall be provided is described as:

Modernization of Gym Building at Hiram Johnson High School per Scope of Work (Exhibit A)

The project is not intended to be split into multiple prime contracts.

#### **ARTICLE 4**

#### **COMPENSATION**

#### 4.1 **Basic Services**

4.1.1 For all "Basic Services" satisfactorily performed as defined in Articles 1 and 5 of this Agreement, the total compensation paid to the Architect for the Project shall be no more than Two Hundred Nine Thousand, Two Hundred Dollars (\$209,200). This compensation shall be paid pursuant to the following schedule:

Initial Payment	0%
Upon Completion of:	
Schematic Design	10%
Design Development Phase	10% / 10%
Contract Documents Phase	10% / 10%
DSA Back Check	10%
Bidding Phase	10%
Construction Phase	25%
Close Out Phase	5%
TOTAL BASIC COMPENSATION	100%

Upon any adjustment (increase or decrease) to the Project Construction Cost as contemplated by Article 1.9, including but not limited to any adjustment made at such time as bids are received, the Architect's total compensation for Basic Services for the Project shall also be increased or decreased, including retroactively for Basic Services already performed and payments already made. Such adjustments may be effected by the District by either (a) adjusting any future payment due under the payment schedule immediately above, or (b) issuing a revision notice to Architect that either tenders any additional payment owed or demands reimbursement from the Architect of any overpayment to date.

#### 4.2 Additional Services

- 4.2.1 For all "Additional Services," as defined in Articles 1 and 6 of this Agreement, compensation shall be a fee to be agreed upon by the parties in writing prior to performance of such services by Architect. Unless expressly stated in the written authorization to proceed with the additional services, the fee for such additional services shall be an amount computed by multiplying the hours to be worked by Architect's staff or Architect's consultants by their standard billing rates as attached in Exhibit "A," or as otherwise specifically approved in writing in advance by District.
- 4.2.2 Architect shall keep complete records showing all hours worked and all costs and charges applicable to work not covered by the basic fee. Architect will be responsible for Architect's consultants keeping similar records. District shall be given reasonable access to those records for audit purposes.

#### 4.3 **Reimbursable Expenses**

Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to the Compensation for Basic and Additional Services and include actual expenditures made by the Architect and the Architect's employees and consultants in the interest of the Project for the expenses listed below:

- 4.3.1 Expense of transportation in connection with the Project; living expenses in connection with out-of-town travel; and long distance communications.
- 4.3.2 Expense of reproductions; fax, postage and messenger for transmission of drawings, specifications and other documents (excluding reproductions for the office use of the Architect and the Architect's consultants).
- 4.3.3 Expense of data processing and photographic production techniques when used in connection with Additional Services.
- 4.3.4 If authorized in advance by the District, expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates.
- 4.3.5 Expense of renderings, models and mock-ups requested by the District; expense of publishing pursuant to section 5.6.5.

Reimbursable Expenses do not include indirect costs, such as general overhead (for example, home office overhead [including technology hardware and software] or insurance premiums), for which Architect must pay out of its compensation for services under Section 4.1, above; nor do they include expenses incurred in connection with Basic or Additional Services that result from Wrongful Acts or Omissions. Architect may not charge a mark-up on Reimbursable Expenses. Payment for all Reimbursable Expenses incurred in connection with either Basic or Additional Services shall be made on a monthly basis. Invoices, receipts or other documentation to establish the validity of all reimbursable expenses shall be a prerequisite to District payment of such expenses. Architect's total reimbursement for Reimbursable Expenses shall not exceed \$ 20,920, which is Architect's estimate of the maximum total cost of Reimbursable Expenses on the Project.

- 4.4 Each payment to Architect for Basic and Additional Services satisfactorily performed, and Reimbursable Expenses reasonably incurred, shall be made in the usual course of District business after presentation by Architect of a properly documented and submitted monthly invoice approved by District's authorized representative designating the services performed, or Reimbursable Expenses incurred, the method of computation of the amount payable, and the amount payable. District shall pay approved invoices within sixty (60) days after proper submission by Architect, and Architect otherwise waives all rights and remedies under law related to receipt of payment. To be properly submitted, an invoice shall be timely, be accompanied by all necessary documentation, list all activities performed and specify to which phase of the Architect's work listed in Section 4.1.1 it relates, and for each activity performed list the person performing it and the person's rate of compensation. Architect's invoice shall be submitted within ten (10) days of the end of the monthly billing period. If District disputes a portion of a properly submitted invoice, it shall notify Architect of the dispute and, upon Architect's written request, arrange for a meeting to confer about, and potentially resolve the dispute. Prior to this meeting, Architect shall provide all documentation requested to support disputed portions of properly submitted invoice. Regardless of any such dispute about an invoice or payment, Architect shall continue to provide all services required by this Agreement and law until the end of the Project, even if District and Architect cannot resolve all such disputes.
- 4.5 The Architect's compensation shall be paid at the time and in the amount noted, where the amount due to the Architect is not disputed, notwithstanding a Contractor-caused delay in completion of the project or reduction of final construction cost by reason of penalties, liquidated damages, or other amounts withheld from the Contractor. However, District may withhold from payments to Architect to the extent that (i) Basic and Additional Services remain to be performed, including but not limited to

those required for project closeout and payments to Contractor; and (ii) Wrongful Acts or Omissions caused District to incur damages, losses, liabilities or costs, including but not limited to withholding any amounts for which Architect is responsible under Section 5.7.20.

- 4.6 Should District cancel the Project pursuant to section 12.1 of this Agreement at any time during the performance of this Agreement, Architect shall, upon notice of such cancellation, immediately cease all work under this Agreement. In such event, Architect's total fee for all services performed shall be computed as set forth in Section 12.1.
- 4.7 Architect shall not accept compensation or other benefits from other persons related to the Project, including payments from manufacturers of construction materials that are specified in the design.

### **ARTICLE 5**

#### BASIC SERVICES TO BE RENDERED BY ARCHITECT

#### 5.1 **General**

- 5.1.1 Architect's Basic Services consist of the design services, including landscaping architectural services and landscape irrigation design, civil, structural, mechanical, and electrical engineering services, normally required to complete the Project. The Basic Services also include the services described in this Article 5, below, including but not limited to bid package preparation, bid handling, preparation and processing of change orders, requests for information, and other contract administration duties. The District shall have the right to add or delete from the Architect's scope of services as it may determine is necessary for the best interests of the Project and/or the District. Architect shall expeditiously and diligently perform all of its work and obligations under this Agreement. Architect may not cease, delay or reduce, or threaten to cease, delay or reduce, its performance based on a payment dispute with District under Section 4.4, above. The Architect acknowledges that its priority is to complete the Project and the Architect's services, and that any payment disputes with the District under Section 4.4, if not resolved during the Project, must wait for resolution after the Project.
- 5.1.2 The Architect shall review the estimate described more fully hereinafter at each phase of Architect's services, also as defined hereinafter. If such estimates are in excess of the project budget, the Architect shall revise the type or quality of construction to come within the budgeted limit.
- 5.1.3 Whenever the Architect's services include the presentation to the District of Project Construction Cost, the Architect shall include a reasonable amount for contingency costs arising from, among other things, higher bids than anticipated, future increase in construction costs, and change orders based on unforeseen site conditions. However, any such contingency for change orders shall not affect Architect's compensation.
- 5.1.4 The Architect shall notify the District if there are any indicated adjustments in previously provided Project Construction Cost arising from market fluctuations or approved changes in scope or requirements based upon a mutually agreed upon index. Any such adjustments shall not affect Architect's compensation until bids are received and accepted.
- 5.1.5 At the District's request, the Architect and Architect's consultants shall cooperate with District and the District's consultants in verifying that Architect's plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents relating to the Project are constructible and otherwise comply

with the Contract Documents. If there are project meetings during the design and construction phases, Architect shall attend those meetings.

- 5.1.6 The Architect shall investigate existing conditions of facilities and thoroughly account for and list in the construction documents any pertinent conditions of such facilities, all in a manner that satisfies the standard of care and level of performance required by this Agreement. Architect's investigation required by this provision shall be limited to non-destructive evaluation.
- 5.1.7 Architect shall provide a list of employees who will be dedicated to delivering the project on time and within budget. All personnel provided by Architect shall be qualified to perform the services for which they are provided. Architect shall obtain District's approval of each employee of Architect who provides services under this Agreement, and approval of each change of employees who are providing such services. District may, upon 24 hours written notice, cause Architect to remove a person from the Project if he/she has failed to perform to District's satisfaction. Should additional employees be required to timely perform all of the services required under this Agreement and/or to avoid delay, Architect shall provide them immediately.
- 5.1.8 Architect is an agent of District and shall reasonably represent the District at all times in relation to the Project.
- 5.1.9 Architect shall be fully licensed as required by law at all times when providing services under this Agreement.

#### 5.2 Consultants

- 5.2.1 Architect's Consultants. The Architect shall employ or retain at Architect's own expense, engineers and other consultants necessary to Architect's performance of this Agreement and licensed to practice in their respective professions in the State of California. Engineers and consultants employed by Architect for this Project shall be approved by District prior to their commencement of work. The Architect's consultants shall be employed to provide assistance during all aspects of the Project and will include, in addition to design services: review of schedules, shop drawings, samples, submittals, and requests for information. The Architect's Consultants shall also conduct periodic inspections of the site to determine conformance with the Project design and specifications and shall participate in the final inspections and development of any "punch list" items. Architect must disclose to District all such consultants retained, and the compensation paid to them.
- 5.2.2 <u>District's Consultants.</u> Architect shall confer and cooperate with consultants retained by District as may be requested by District or as reasonably necessary. District may retain a construction manager to assist District in performance of District's duties for the Project.
- 5.2.3 The Architect shall procure a certified survey of the site if required, including grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, adjoining properties and structures; adjacent drainage; rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries and contours of the building site, locations, dimensions and floor elevations of existing buildings, other improvements and trees; and full information as to available utility services and lines, both public and private above and below grade, including inverts and depths. All the information on the survey customarily referenced to a project benchmark shall be referenced to a Project benchmark. The cost of any such survey shall be borne by the District, and the District shall own and, upon termination of this Agreement or completion of the Project, shall have returned to it by Architect any designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents prepared as part of the survey.

- 5.2.4 Architect shall procure chemical, mechanical or other tests required for proper design. Tests for hazardous materials and borings or test pits necessary for determining subsoil conditions will be the responsibility of the District, and the District shall own and, upon termination of this Agreement or completion of the Project, shall have returned to it by Architect any designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents prepared as part of the testing.
- 5.2.5 Architect shall assist the District and its consultants to apply for funding for the Project from the State Allocation Board. Architect shall be responsible for all submittals required of the Architect by the Division of the State Architect ("DSA"), Office of Public School Construction ("OPSC") and California Department of Education in connection therewith, including but not limited to: New Construction Program, Modernization Program, Career Technical Education, Critically Overcrowded Schools, Emergency Repair Program, Facility Hardship Program, High Performance Incentive, Joint-Use Program, Overcrowding Relief Grant and the Seismic Mitigation Program.

#### 5.3 Schematic Design Phase

- 5.3.1 The Architect shall review all information concerning the Project delivered or communicated by the District to the Architect to ascertain the requirements of the Project and shall arrive at a mutual understanding of such requirements with the District.
- 5.3.2 The Architect shall provide a preliminary evaluation of the District's Project, schedule and construction budget requirements, each in terms of the other.
- 5.3.3 The Architect shall review with the District alternative approaches to the design and construction of the Project, and shall include alternatives that may reduce the cost of the Project.
- 5.3.4 Based on a mutual understanding of the District's budget and scope of work requirements, the Architect shall prepare for the District's written approval, schematic design documents, which include but are not limited to, schematic design studies, site utilization plans, a description of the Project showing, among other things, the scale and relationship of the components of the Project, preparation of a written estimated statement of Project Construction Cost and a written time schedule for the performance of the work that itemizes constraints and critical path issues. The schematic design documents shall represent a 15% complete design. The Project Construction Cost shall be based on current area, volume and other unit costs, shall conform to District's total construction cost budget, and shall include reasonable contingencies for all construction and construction management work. The written schedule shall conform to District's milestone and completion deadline requirements. Nevertheless, Architect is encouraged to make recommendations to District regarding additional benefits that could be realized by increasing the District's total construction cost budget, or by altering the District's completion deadlines. If District incorporates any recommended changes, then Architect shall revise the schematic design documents, including but not limited to the written statement of Project Construction Cost and written schedule for the performance of work, as necessary until the District approves them in writing. If requested by the District, Architect shall attend, and present at, as many meetings of the District's governing board as may be necessary to obtain written approval of the schematic design documents.
- 5.3.5 The Architect shall submit to the District a preliminary Project Construction Cost based on current area, volume and other unit costs.

#### 5.4 **Design Development Phase**

- 5.4.1 Following District's written approval of the schematic design documents, including the estimate of Project Construction Cost and schedule, Architect shall provide all necessary architectural and engineering services to prepare design development documents for the District's written approval, which fix and describe the size and character of the project and which shall include, but are not limited to, site and floor plans, elevations and other approved drawings and shall outline the specifications of the entire Project as to kind and quality of materials, categories of proposed work such as architectural, structural, mechanical and electrical systems, types of structures and all such other work as may be required. During the design development phase, Architect will keep the Project within all budget and scope constraints set by the District. The design development documents shall represent a 50% complete design. The design development documents shall include a revised Project Construction Cost, and a revised construction schedule. The revised Project Construction Cost shall be based on current area, volume and other unit costs. The revised Project Construction Cost shall conform to District's total construction cost budget and shall include reasonable contingencies for all construction and construction management work, and the revised construction schedule shall conform to District's milestone and completion deadline requirements. Nevertheless, Architect is encouraged to make recommendations to District regarding additional benefits that could be realized by altering the District's total construction cost budget or completion deadlines. If District incorporates any recommended changes or otherwise does not approve the submitted design development documents, then Architect shall revise the design development documents, including but not limited to the written statement of Project Construction Cost and written schedule for the performance of work, as necessary until District approves them in writing. If requested by the District, Architect shall attend, and present at, as many meetings of the District's governing board as may be necessary to obtain written approval of the design development documents.
- 5.4.2 The Architect shall assist the District and its consultants in the preparation and/or modification of the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan if any such plan is required for this Project.
- 5.4.3 Architect shall prepare necessary documents for and oversee the processing of District's application for and obtaining of required approvals from the DSA, the OPSC (if applicable), the California Department of Education, the State Fire Marshall and other agencies exercising jurisdiction over the Project. Architect shall also be responsible for the preparation and submission of any required applications, notices or certificates to public agencies as required by law. Architect shall provide a copy of all such documents to the District.
- 5.4.4 The Architect shall advise the District of any adjustments to the preliminary Project Construction Cost.
- 5.4.5 Architect shall identify areas of construction for which unit pricing shall be required as part of the Contractor's bid.
- 5.4.6 Architect shall provide at no expense to the District one complete set of preliminary plans for the review and written approval of the District and one set for each public agency having approval authority over such plans for their review and approval at no expense to the District.

#### 5.5 Contract Documents Phase

5.5.1 Following the District's written approval of the design development documents, including the Project Construction Cost and construction schedule, the Architect shall prepare Contract Documents consisting of 100% complete working drawings and specifications setting forth the work to

be done in detail sufficient for construction, including but not limited to the materials, workmanship, finishes and equipment required for the architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical system and utility-service-connected equipment and site work. Architect shall ensure that the drawings and specifications are, among other things, complete, accurate, and coordinated so as to eliminate errors, omissions and conflicts, especially between the work of a subconsultant and other subconsultants or the Architect; and Architect may not shift its responsibility for completeness, accuracy and coordination to the Contractor, except on a clearly designated design-build project. Architect shall also update the construction schedule and the Project Construction Cost for District approval. The Contract Documents shall conform to, comply with, and satisfy all applicable Federal, State and local laws, including but not limited to statutes, decisions, regulations, building or other codes, ordinances, charters, and the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA"). As part of the Contract Documents, Architect shall prepare an accurate set of drawings indicating dimensions and locations of existing buried utility lines, which shall be included in the bid packages. If the project is intended to be split into multiple prime contracts, then the Contract Documents shall be structured in order to maximize the ability to create multiple prime bid packages for the Project, and shall identify the bid packages to be created.

- 5.5.2 Architect shall consult with and involve the District in development of the bid documents and bid package, and shall forward them to the District for written approval prior to their use. If the District is using a multiple prime delivery method for the Project with multiple bid packages, then Architect shall consult with and involve the District in identification and development of the bid documents and bid packages, and shall forward them to the District for written approval prior to their use.
- 5.5.3 Prior to submission of the Contract Documents to DSA for plan check, the Architect shall submit the Contract Documents to the District for an opportunity to review them for various issues, including but not limited to constructability, scheduling, general completeness, clarity, consistency, coordination, cost-effectiveness, value engineering, identification of possible add/delete bid alternatives, time of construction, and suitability for separation of the Project design, plans and specifications into bid packages for various categories and/or portions of the work. However, such review by District is not required. In addition, and prior to submission of the Contract Documents to DSA for plan check, Architect shall advise the District of all elements of the design applicable to the Project or lawfully imposed upon the Project by the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA").
- 5.5.4 After approval by the District and any constructability review, the Architect shall submit the Contract Documents to DSA for plan check, and make the necessary corrections to secure DSA approval.
- 5.5.5 The Architect shall give the District, at the time of DSA approval of the final form of the Contract Documents, Architect's final estimate of Project Construction Cost and construction schedule, which shall be given final written approval by the District along with the Contract Documents. The revised Project Construction Cost shall be based on current area, volume and other unit costs, and on a mutually acceptable recognized building cost index, and shall include a reasonable contingency. In preparing the revised estimate of Project Construction cost and construction schedule for the Contract Documents, the Architect shall consult with and involve the District in the process to maximize accuracy and completeness. If the District is intending to enter multiple prime contracts, the Project Construction Cost shall include separate bid estimates for each bid package, plus a reasonable contingency; and the construction schedule shall reflect the fact that

multiple contractors will be performing separate bid packages, including a general conditions bid package. The revised Project Construction Cost estimate shall conform to District's total Project budget, and the revised construction schedule shall conform to District's milestone and completion deadline requirements. If requested by the District, Architect shall attend, and present at, as many meetings of the District's governing board as may be necessary to obtain written approval of the Contract Documents.

#### 5.6 **Bidding and Negotiations Phase**

- 5.6.1 Following DSA's and District's written approval of Contract Documents and the District's written acceptance of Architect's final estimate of Project Construction Cost and Construction schedule, Architect shall continue to work with the District in finalizing the bid documents and bid package, as described in Section 5.5.2, above. Architect shall reproduce the bid documents as requested by the District and shall assist the District in evaluating contract proposals or bids, as well as substitutions proposed by contractors, and in awarding the bids. All sets of Contract Documents requested by the District, which does not include those for the use of the Architect or its consultants, shall be reproduced at District's expense.
- 5.6.2 Architect's estimate of Project Construction Cost at the time of DSA approval of the Contract Documents shall be current as of that date. Should bids be received more than ninety (90) days after the date of that Project Construction Cost, the Architect's total construction cost shall be escalated by the cost-of-construction in the then current mutually agreed upon recognized building cost index.
- 5.6.3 Should the lowest responsible and responsive bid received on a bid package exceed Architect's most recent approved estimate of Project Construction Cost for that bid package (or amount adjusted according to the then current mutually agreed upon recognized building cost index) as accepted by District by more than ten percent (10%), Architect shall, on request by District and as part of Architect's Basic Services, make such changes in the plans and specifications as shall be necessary to bring new bids within ten percent (10%) of such Project Construction Cost. In making such changes, Architect will exercise Architect's best judgment in determining the balance between the size of the Project, the type of construction, and the quality of the construction to achieve a satisfactory project within ten percent (10%) of Architect's Project Construction Cost. To avoid the potential for bids to exceed the estimate by more than 10% at bid opening, the Architect may, as an alternative, include in the Contract Documents one or more deductive alternatives so that Architect and District may evaluate different means to achieve a satisfactory project within ten percent (10%) of the Architect's Project Construction Cost.
- 5.6.4 If requested by the District, Architect shall assist in the review of the qualifications of all bidders for the construction of the Project, and shall make recommendations to the District as to whether, in the Architect's professional opinion, a bidder meets the minimum requirements.
- 5.6.5 If, in the District's discretion, the District will seek total or partial State funding for this Project, the Architect shall also prepare and submit the appropriate documentation to the OPSC.

#### 5.7 **Construction Phase**

- 5.7.1 The construction phase shall begin on the date stated in the official Notice to Proceed and, solely for purposes of payment of the Architect, shall be deemed complete upon District's written approval of Architect's final certificate for payment to Contractor, provided that such certification and payment shall not constitute an admission by Architect or District that the Project has been completed in accordance with Contract Documents or in conformance with this Agreement.
- 5.7.2 All instructions to the Contractor shall be forwarded through the Architect unless otherwise directed by the District. The Architect shall advise and consult with the District in the general administration of the Project. The Architect will have authority to act on behalf of the District only to the extent provided in the Contract Documents, unless the District grants additional authority in writing.
- 5.7.3 The Architect shall timely provide District with copies of all of its correspondence with the Contractors.
- 5.7.4 The Architect shall provide prompt and timely direction to the District's Project inspectors and/or contractors as to the interpretation of Contract Documents. Architect shall respond to all requests for information ("RFI's") from a Contractor within fourteen (14) calendar days of receipt, unless the subject of the RFI is impacting, or may impact, the critical path of the project and is causing, or may cause, delay, in which case the Architect shall respond as soon as reasonably possible, if not immediately. If the Architect is not able to take action within the time required due to reasons beyond Architect's control, the Architect may take action within a reasonable period of time under the circumstances; however, the Architect shall make such determination within seven (7) calendar days of receipt of the RFI, and shall notify the District and Contractor immediately after such determination with an explanation as to why the Architect cannot take action within the time required, what the Architect is doing to expedite its response, when the Architect expects to be able to issue a response, and what action, if any, should be taken by District or Contractor in the meantime to mitigate delays and/or costs.
- 5.7.5 Based on information provided by the Contractor and Architect's own knowledge of the Project (including documents in Architect's possession or reasonably available to it), Architect shall prepare an accurate set of as-built record drawings indicating dimensions and locations of all work, including but not limited to buried utility lines and mechanical, electrical and plumbing layouts, which shall be forwarded to the District upon completion of the Project in both DWG and PDF formats. Architect will also provide the District with revised "1A's" as part of the Close Out Phase.

While Architect cannot guarantee precise accuracy of such drawings, Architect shall exercise reasonable care in reviewing such drawings to determine their general compliance with the Contract Documents. Architect shall have no responsibility for their conformity to field conditions. Except that in the event that the Architect, consistent with standards of due care, becomes aware of non-conformity with field conditions, Architect shall have a duty immediately to notify the District in writing. Architect shall also assemble and deliver to District all written guarantees, instruction books, operation and maintenance manuals, diagrams, charts and other documents required of Contractors.

5.7.6 The Architect shall be responsible for the preparation and submission of any notifications regarding excavation in areas which are known or suspected to contain subsurface

installations pursuant to Government Code section 4216, *et seq*. The Architect may delegate this responsibility to a Contractor if such power to delegate was included in the Contract Documents and bid package, but Architect shall remain responsible for supervising such Contractor to ensure performance of this task. Architect shall provide a copy of all such notifications to the District.

- 5.7.7 The Architect shall, at all times, have access to the Project wherever it is in preparation and progress. To the extent reasonably possible given Contractor's work in progress, the District shall provide such access so that the Architect may perform its functions under the Agreement and Contract Documents.
- 5.7.8 In the discharge of its duties of observation and interpretation, the Architect shall require Contractors to comply with the Contract Documents, and shall guard the District against defects and deficiencies in the work of the Contractor. The Architect shall advise and consult with the District and inspectors concerning the Contractor's compliance with the Contract Documents and shall assist the District and inspectors in securing the Contractor's compliance.
- 5.7.9 The Architect shall visit the site enough times to adequately perform its professional duties (both as the Architect deems necessary and as requested by the District), but under no circumstances less than one time per week, unless fewer visits are authorized by the District, to maintain familiarity with the quality and progress of the Project, to determine that the Contractor's work substantially complies with all documents, drawings, plans and specifications and that the Project is progressing in substantial accordance with the Contract Documents. Such observations are to be distinguished from the continuous inspection provided by the Project Inspector unless Architect has agreed in writing to serve as the District's Project Inspector.
- 5.7.10 The Architect shall notify the District promptly of any significant defect in materials, equipment or workmanship, and of any default by any Contractor in the orderly and timely prosecution of the Project. Architect will exercise reasonable care in the discharge of Architect's obligation to discover significant defects and faults.
- 5.7.11 The Architect shall review and approve, take exception to, or take other appropriate action upon all schedules, shop drawings, samples and other submissions of the Contractor to determine general conformance with the Project design and specifications as set forth in the Contract Documents. All such action shall be taken within fourteen (14) days of receipt of the submittals, unless the critical path of the Project is impacted in which case Architect shall take such action as soon as possible. If Architect is not able to take such action within the required time due to reasons beyond Architect's control, the Architect may take action within a reasonable period of time under the circumstances; however, the Architect shall make such determination within four (4) calendar days of receipt of the submission, and shall notify the District and Contractor immediately after such determination with an explanation as to why the Architect cannot take action within the time required, what the Architect is doing to expedite its response, when the Architect expects to be able to issue a response, and what action, if any, should be taken by District or Contractor in the meantime to mitigate delays and/or costs. The Architect will have the authority to reject work and materials which do not conform to the Contract Documents. The Architect's approval of a specific item shall not be an approval of an assembly of which the item is a component. Whenever, in the Architect's reasonable judgment, it is considered necessary or advisable for the implementation of the intent of the Contract Documents, the Architect will have authority to require special inspection or testing of the work or materials in accordance with the Contract Documents whether or not such work or materials be then

fabricated, installed or completed. The Architect will also recommend substitution of materials or equipment when, in the Architect's reasonable judgment, such action is necessary to the accomplishment of the intent and purpose of the Contract Documents. Such actions as are described in this paragraph shall be taken with reasonable promptness.

- 5.7.12 Architect shall assist the District in requiring Contractor to provide assistance in the utilization of any equipment or system such as initial start-up or testing, adjusting and balancing, preparation of operation and maintenance manuals and training personnel for operation and maintenance.
- 5.7.13 The Architect shall not be responsible for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions or programs in connection with the work. The Architect shall not be responsible for acts or omissions of the Contractor, subcontractors, or their agents or employees or of any other persons performing portions of the Project not employed or retained by Architect, unless due to Wrongful Acts or Omissions.
- 5.7.14 The Architect shall make such regular reports as shall be required by agencies having jurisdiction over the Project and keep the District informed in writing of the progress of the Project.
- 5.7.15 The Architect will, consistent with standards of due care, make reasonable professional efforts to exclude hazardous materials from new construction. In the event the District or Architect is or becomes aware of the presence of, or exposure of persons to, asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) or any other toxic or hazardous contaminants, materials, air pollutants or water pollutants at the Project site ("Hazardous Substances"), or the substantial risk thereof, each shall have a duty immediately to notify the other in writing. The parties recognize, however, that neither Architect nor the District is trained or licensed in the recognition or remediation of Hazardous Substances.

With respect to asbestos and asbestos containing materials, the parties acknowledge that the Architect has recommended and the District has agreed to retain a qualified consultant to evaluate the presence of such materials at certain District facilities which are included in the scope of this Agreement. In the event that said consultant recommends a procedure to deal with such materials, said consultant shall have the responsibility to draft specification language for the removal or other remediation of such materials, and subsequently may be required to certify that they have been properly removed or otherwise remediated. Architect shall include consultant's recommendations and specifications in the appropriate design documents for modernization and shall, as part of its Basic Services, provide designs and other bid documents consistent therewith.

When construction is properly completed, Architect shall provide such certification as to Hazardous Substances as is required of architects for such projects by the OPSC.

5.7.16 Based on the Architect's observations, and an evaluation of each Project Application for Payment, the Architect will estimate the amount of work completed by Contractor, and assist the District in (a) determining the amount owing to the Contractor, and (b) issuing Project Certificates for Payment incorporating such amount, all in accordance with the Contract Documents. The Architect's estimation of the amount of work completed by Contractor shall constitute representations by the Architect to the District that the quality of the completed work is in accordance

with the Contract Documents based upon Architect's observations of the completed work and that the Contractor is entitled to payment for the completed work.

- 5.7.17 Notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement, as a part of its Basic Services, the Architect shall assist the District in evaluating and responding to claims, disputes and other matters in question between the Contractor and the District, including but not limited to claims made against the District as a result of alleged or claimed Wrongful Acts or Omissions, and shall in all instances provide such truthful testimonial assistance as may be required by the District at no cost to the District. Architect agrees to toll all statutory periods of limitations for District's claims, lawsuits or other proceedings against Architect which arise out of, or related to, any claims by Contractors against District until Contractors' claims are fully and finally resolved. This tolling period commences upon a Contractor's initial submission of a notice of claim, change order request or claim. At any time, District may terminate the tolling period effective ten (10) days after written notice to Architect, and after such termination, District may pursue claims, lawsuits or other proceedings against Architect.
- 5.7.18 The Architect will provide construction advice to the District on apparent deficiencies in construction, both during construction and after acceptance of the Project.
- 5.7.19 The Architect shall recommend, prepare and process the necessary change orders. Payment of fees to the Architect as a result of change orders shall be handled as follows:
- 5.7.19.1 <u>District-initiated change orders</u>. If a change order is initiated by the District, the Architect's fee for such change order shall be calculated on a percentage or hourly basis as agreed in writing by the District and the Architect prior to commencement of work on the change order. If a change order is solicited by the District but not subsequently authorized by the District, the Architect shall be paid for time spent on the proposed change order as an Additional Service.
- 5.7.19.2 <u>Change orders due to Architect</u>. When a change order is necessitated as a result of Wrongful Acts or Omissions, the Architect's fees shall not be calculated by reference to the cost of any change order work which would not have been necessary in the absence of such Wrongful Acts or Omissions.
- 5.7.19.3 <u>Change orders beyond District or Architect control</u>. If a change order is necessitated as a result of changes in law, in-field changes required by governing agencies after document approval, unknown, unforeseeable or hidden conditions, or actual conditions inconsistent with available drawings of existing conditions, such change orders shall be handled in the same manner as District-initiated change orders.
- 5.7.20 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in the event a change order is caused by, or necessitated as a result of Wrongful Acts or Omissions, or the District otherwise incurs costs or damages as a result of Wrongful Acts or Omissions, the Architect shall be responsible for the cost of the following:
- 5.7.20.1 In the event of such a change order, Architect shall be responsible for the difference between (a) what the contractor would have added to its original bid for the Project if the Wrongful Act or Omission had not occurred (i.e., the "added value" portion of the change order), and (b) what the contractor charges the District in the change order. The amount of added value of any change order work shall be based on the circumstances of the Architect's Wrongful Act or Omission

and the change order work necessitated by the Wrongful Act or Omission. It is the parties' intent that the District should pay no more than what the District would have paid if the Wrongful Act or Omission had not occurred.

5.7.20.2 In addition, Architect shall be responsible for any other costs or damages which the District incurs as a result of Wrongful Acts or Omissions including but not limited to any delay damages the District pays to, or cannot collect from, Contractor or any third party.

The District may backcharge, and withhold payment from the Architect for these costs and damages, and may seek reimbursement for any amount which exceeds any retention of the contract amount at the time of collection. When District so backcharges and withholds, upon Architect's request, District and Architect shall meet and confer in good faith in an effort to reach agreement on (a) whether a Wrongful Act or Omission occurred, (b) whether it caused the change order expense, (c) what damages have been incurred by District, and (d) what portion of the damages are attributable to Architect as described above. If District and Architect do not reach agreement on all four of these items when meeting and conferring, then District and Architect shall use mediation in good faith to resolve the dispute. If mediation fails, then either District or Architect can initiate a court action to resolve the dispute.

- 5.7.21 The Architect shall provide a color schedule of all finish materials in the Project for the District's review and approval.
- 5.7.22 The Architect shall assist the District in determining the date of final completion and make a final detailed on-site review of the job with representatives of the District and the Contractor. Architect shall also perform a warranty review with District 30-60 days before expiration of the specified warranty on the Project.
- 5.7.23 The Architect shall assist the District in issuing the final certificate for payment and any other documents required to be recorded by law or generally accepted architectural or construction contract practice upon compliance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, provided that such certification shall not constitute an admission that the Project has been completed in accordance with Contract Documents or in conformance with this Agreement.
- 5.7.24 Architect shall ensure that the finished project complies with all standards imposed by the Americans with Disabilities Act, section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, disability access requirements of the State Building Code and any other laws applicable to disability access. The Architect's final detailed on-site review of the finished project conducted pursuant to Section 5.7.22 shall include a field inspection to ensure compliance with such requirements. If a court, administrative agency or other trier of fact later determines that Architect has violated any of the above-referenced laws, or District, because of Wrongful Acts or Omissions, has violated any of the above-referenced laws, Architect shall remedy the violation at its own cost. **Architect shall indemnify, defend and hold the District harmless pursuant to Article 18.1 of this Agreement for any breach of this paragraph due to Architect's negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct.** The Architect shall not be responsible for acts or omissions of the Contractor or of any other persons performing portions of the Project not employed or retained by Architect, nor shall Architect be responsible for any subsequent changes in the law or any regulation applicable to disabled access or any subsequent differing interpretation of the laws or regulations applicable at the time Architect's design is reviewed by DSA. In the event that the Architect is or becomes aware of possible non-

compliance with the foregoing standards, Architect shall have a duty immediately to notify the District in writing of the possible non-compliance.

#### 5.8 Close Out Phase

5.8.1 Architect will assist the District with securing all documents necessary to achieve DSA certification or formal close out of project.

#### 5.9 <u>Use of Previously Prepared Materials</u>

In the event that there exist previously prepared designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents, or any other works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to physical drawings, data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer disks, or other writings, that were prepared by design professionals other than Architect, whether supplied by District or by Architect, which are relied upon, altered or otherwise utilized by Architect, Architect shall be responsible for giving appropriate recognition to such other design professionals in any materials prepared by Architect pursuant to this Agreement.

# **ARTICLE 6**

# ADDITIONAL SERVICES TO BE RENDERED BY ARCHITECT

- 6.1 "Additional Services" shall be provided by Architect if authorized in writing by District. No additional compensation shall be paid to Architect for performing these Additional Services unless the District and the Architect agree in writing as to the amount of compensation for such services prior to such services being rendered. Such compensation shall be computed as set forth in Article 4.2.1 and as otherwise set forth in this Agreement. Any work performed by Architect without written authorization OR without written agreement on compensation shall be presumed to be Basic Services.
- 6.2 The following list of services are not included in the Basic Services to be provided under this Agreement, and they will be performed only in accordance with Article 6.1, above:
  - 6.2.1 Providing financial feasibility or other special studies;
- 6.2.2 Providing services relative to future facilities, systems and equipment which are not intended to be constructed during the Construction Phase;
- 6.2.3 Providing coordination of Project performed by separate contractors or by the District's own forces;
- 6.2.4 Providing analyses of owning and operating costs, or detailed quantity surveys or inventories of material, equipment and labor;
- 6.2.5 Making revisions in drawings, specifications or other documents when such revisions are inconsistent with written approvals or instructions previously given, are required by the enactment or revision of codes, laws or regulations subsequent to the District's approval of Contract Documents or are due to other causes not within the control of the Architect:

- 6.2.6 Providing consultation concerning replacement of any work damaged by fire or other cause during construction of the Project, and furnishing services as may be required in connection with the replacement of such work;
  - 6.2.7 Providing services made necessary by the default of the Contractor;
- 6.2.8 Preparing to serve or serving as an expert witness in connection with any public hearing, arbitration proceeding or legal proceeding, other than when resulting from Architect's or its consultants' alleged Wrongful Acts or Omissions;
- 6.2.9 Providing services of consultants for other than the normal architectural, civil, soils, structural, mechanical and electrical engineering services for the Project;
- 6.2.10 At the District's request, selecting moveable furniture, equipment or articles which are not included in the Contract Documents;
- 6.2.11 Providing services related to change orders requested by the District but which are not subsequently authorized (see the second sentence of Section 5.7.19.1, above); and
- 6.2.12 Providing any other services not otherwise included in the Agreement and not customarily furnished in accordance with generally accepted architectural practice.

#### **ARTICLE 7**

# **RESPONSIBILITIES OF DISTRICT**

It shall be the duty of District to:

- 7.1 Pay all fees required by any reviewing or licensing agency;
- 7.2 Designate a representative authorized to act as a liaison between the Architect and the District in the administration of this Agreement and the Contract Documents;
  - 7.3 Furnish, at the District's expense, the services of a Project Inspector;
- 7.4 Review all documents submitted by the Architect and advise the Architect of decisions thereon within a reasonable time after submission;
  - 7.5 Issue appropriate orders to Contractors through the Architect;
- 7.6 Furnish existing soil investigation or geological hazard reports, which the District shall own and, upon termination of this Agreement or completion of the Project, shall have returned to it by Architect;
- 7.7 Furnish the services of a hydrologist or other consultants not routinely provided by the Architect when such services are reasonably required by the scope of the Project and are requested by the Architect:

- 7.8 Provide asbestos review and abatement, identifying materials which may qualify for same;
- 7.9 Furnish available as-built drawings for buildings and utilities systems related to the Project, which the District shall own and, upon termination of this Agreement or completion of the Project, shall have returned to it by the Architect. The District will also provide information regarding programmatic needs and specific equipment selection data;
- 7.10 Furnish structural, mechanical, chemical and other laboratory tests, inspections and reports as required by law or the Contract Documents, which the District shall own and, upon termination of this Agreement or completion of the Project, shall have returned to it by the Architect; and
- 7.11 Furnish prompt notice of any fault or defects in the Project or nonconformance with the Contract Documents of which the District becomes aware (however, the District's failure to do so shall not relieve the Architect of Architect's responsibilities under Title 21, Title 24, and the Field Act for this Project and under this agreement).

# **ARTICLE 8**

#### PUBLIC LIABILITY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE INSURANCE

- 8.1 Prior to the commencement of services under this Agreement, the Architect shall furnish to the District a certificate of insurance, Additional Insured Endorsement and Declarations Page for the period covered by this Agreement, for public liability and property damage with an insurance carrier satisfactory to the District, under forms satisfactory to the District, to protect the Architect and District against loss from liability imposed for damages (1) on account of bodily or personal injuries, including death, disease and sickness, accidentally suffered or alleged to have been suffered by any person or persons that may be caused directly or indirectly by the performance of this Agreement, and (2) on account of injury to or destruction of property, including the resultant loss of use of the Project or other District facilities or equipment, resulting from acts of commission or omission by the Architect, or otherwise resulting directly or indirectly from the Architect's operations in the performance of this Agreement. The District shall be named as an additional insured on all such policies.
- 8.2 The following insurance shall be maintained by the Architect in full force and effect during the entire period of performance of this Agreement, including any extensions, and shall be written on an "occurrence" basis: Commercial general liability insurance, excluding coverage for motor vehicles, shall be in amounts not less than Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) per occurrence, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) on an annual aggregate basis. Such insurance or liability coverage shall at least include "broad form" commercial general liability, errors and omissions (exclusive of design professional liability), and automobile liability (owned, non-owned, and hired) coverages. Each party, and their respective directors, officers and employees, shall be listed as "additional insureds" under such coverages, as evidenced by an Additional Insured Endorsement.
- 8.3 The Architect's insurance policies shall contain a provision for thirty (30) days written notice to the District of cancellation or reduction of coverage. The Architect shall name, on any policy of insurance required, the District as an additional insured. The Additional Insured Endorsement

included on all such insurance policies shall state that coverage is afforded the additional insured with respect to claims arising out of operations performed by or on behalf of the insured. If the additional insureds have other insurance which is applicable to the loss, such other insurance shall be on an excess or contingent basis. The amount of the insurer's liability shall not be reduced by the existence of such other insurance. Architect shall not commence work under this Agreement until all required insurance certificates, declarations pages and additional insured endorsements have been obtained and delivered in duplicate to the District for approval subject to the following requirements. Thereafter Architect shall produce a certified copy of any insurance policy required under this section upon written request of the District.

- 8.4 At the time of making application for any extension of time, Architect shall submit evidence that insurance policies will be in effect during the requested additional period of time.
- 8.5 If the Architect fails to maintain such insurance, the District may, but shall not be required to, take out such insurance to cover any damages of the above-mentioned classes for which the District might be held liable on account of the Architect's failure to pay such damages, and deduct and retain the amount of the premiums from any sums due the Architect under this Agreement.
- 8.6 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as limiting, in any way, the extent to which the Architect may be held responsible for the payment of damages resulting from the Architect's operations.
- 8.7 Each of Architect's consultants shall comply with this Article, and Architect shall include such provisions in its contracts with them.

#### **ARTICLE 9**

#### WORKER'S COMPENSATION INSURANCE

Prior to the commencement of services under this Agreement, the Architect shall furnish to the District satisfactory proof that the Architect and all engineers, experts, consultants and subcontractors the Architect intends to employ have taken out, for the period covered by this Agreement, workers' compensation insurance with an insurance carrier satisfactory to the District for all persons whom they may employ in carrying out the work contemplated under this Agreement in accordance with the Workers' Compensation Laws of the State of California.

If the Architect employs any engineer, expert, consultant or subcontractor which it did not intend to employ prior to commencement of services, it must furnish such proof of workers' compensation insurance to the District immediately upon employment. Such insurance shall be maintained in full force and effect during the period covered by this Agreement including any extensions of time. If the Architect is self-insured, the Architect shall furnish a Certificate of Permission to Self-Insure and a Certificate of Self-Insurance satisfactory to the District.

Prior to the commencement of services under this Agreement, the Architect shall furnish to the District satisfactory proof that the Architect and all engineers, experts, consultants and subcontractors the Architect intends to employ have taken out employer's liability insurance with an insurance carrier satisfactory to the District. During the course of Architect's services, if Architect ever intends to employ additional or different engineers, experts, consultants or subcontractors, before so employing them Architect shall furnish such satisfactory proof of insurance to the District. Such insurance shall be maintained in full force and effect during the period covered by this Agreement including any extensions of time. If the Architect is self-insured, the Architect shall furnish a Certificate of Permission to Self-Insure and a Certificate of Self-Insurance satisfactory to the District.

#### **ARTICLE 10**

#### PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

- 10.1 Prior to the commencement of services under this Agreement, the Architect shall furnish to the District satisfactory proof that the Architect has purchased professional liability coverage, on an occurrence basis, extending protection to Architect in an amount no less than Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) per claim, and Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000) in the annual aggregate, with a deductible of no more than Seventy Five Thousand Dollars (\$75,000). Such coverage shall be in effect, as evidenced by a valid Certificate of Insurance, no later than (i) the date any plans and specifications for a specific project are submitted to any required regulatory agency for review and approval, and/or (ii) the date the Architect agrees that the plans may be submitted for bid or bid consideration to any general contractor or group of contractors. Coverage for alleged wrongful acts, errors or omissions will remain in effect until three (3) years after the Notice of Completion has been filed and the project has been accepted by the District. At all other times, the Architect shall purchase professional liability insurance of no less than One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per claim and One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) in the aggregate.
- 10.2 Each of Architect's professional sub-consultants (including consultants of Architect's) shall comply with this Article, and Architect shall include such provisions in its contracts with them.

#### **ARTICLE 11**

# **COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS**

Architect shall be familiar with, and Architect and Architect's design shall comply with all State and Federal laws and regulations applicable to the Project or lawfully imposed upon the Project by agencies having jurisdiction over the Project, including but not limited to statutes, decisions, regulations, building or other codes, ordinances, charters, prevailing wage law, and the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA").

#### **ARTICLE 12**

#### TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

12.1 <u>Termination by District</u>. This Agreement may be terminated or the Project may be canceled by the District for the District's convenience and without cause at any time immediately upon written notice to the Architect. In such event, the Architect shall be compensated for (a) all Basic and Additional services completed, and Reimbursable Expenses incurred, pursuant to this Agreement

through the date of termination, (b) such Basic or Additional Services performed, and Reimbursable Expenses incurred, after termination which are authorized by the District, and (c) any costs incurred by reason of such termination; but less any amounts the District is entitled to withhold under law or this Agreement. Upon the District's request and authorization, Architect shall perform any and all Basic and Additional Services necessary to complete the work in progress as of the date of termination.

For any material breach of contract by the Architect, the District may also terminate the Agreement for cause by delivering written Notice of Intent to Terminate to the Architect. Such Notice shall include the following: (1) A description of such material breach, and (2) a date not less than fourteen days (14) after delivery of the notice by which the Architect must cure such breach. In response to such Notice, if the Architect fails to cure, and fails to reasonably commence to cure, the breach(es) by the deadline set by the Notice, then the District may terminate the Agreement by written notice delivered to the Architect, which shall be effective upon such delivery. In such event, the Architect shall be compensated for all services completed pursuant to this Agreement through the date of termination, together with compensation for such services performed after termination which are authorized by the District, but less any amounts the District is entitled to withhold under law or this Agreement. Upon the District's request and authorization, Architect shall perform any and all services necessary to complete the work in progress as of the date of the termination.

12.2 <u>Termination by Architect.</u> For any material breach of contract by the District other than one related to a payment or invoice dispute as described in Section 4.4 of this Agreement, the Architect may terminate the Agreement by delivering written Notice of Intent to Terminate to the District. Such Notice shall include the following: (1) A description of such material breach, (2) a date not less than fourteen (14) days after delivery of the notice by which the District must cure such breach or reasonably commence to cure such breach, (3) the status of work completed as of the date of the Notice of Intent to Terminate, and (4) a description and cost estimate of the effort necessary to complete the work in progress. In response to such Notice, if the District fails to cure, and fails to reasonably commence to cure, the breach by the deadline set by the Notice, then Architect may terminate the Agreement by written notice delivered to the District within ten (10) days of the cure deadline, which shall be effective upon such delivery.

In the event of such termination by Architect, Architect shall be compensated for all Basic and Additional Services completed, and Reimbursable Expenses incurred, pursuant to this Agreement through the date of termination, together with compensation for such Basic and Additional Services performed, and Reimbursable Expenses incurred, after termination which are authorized by the District. Upon the District's request and authorization, Architect shall perform any and all Basic and Additional Services necessary to complete the work in progress as of the date of termination.

#### 12.3 Miscellaneous Provisions

12.3.1 Following the termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever, the District shall have the right to utilize any designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents, or any other works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to physical drawings, data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer disks, or other writings prepared or caused to be prepared under this Agreement by the Architect, not only as they relate or may relate to this Project (including but not limited to any repair, maintenance, renovation, modernization or other alterations or revisions to this Project) but as they relate or may relate to other projects, provided that any invalidity of such license in relation to such other projects

shall not affect the validity of such license in relation to this Project (including, but not limited to, any repair, maintenance, renovation, modernization or other alterations/revisions to this Project) under Education Code Section 17316. Architect shall promptly make any such documents or materials available to the District upon request without additional compensation.

12.3.2 In the event of the termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever, all designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents, or any other works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to physical drawings, data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer disks, or other writings prepared or caused to be prepared by the Architect or any of its agents pursuant to this Agreement shall immediately upon request by the District be delivered to the District. Architect may not refuse to provide such writings or materials for any reason whatsoever, including but not limited to a possessory interest lien for any claim the Architect may have against the District or a claim by the Architect to an ownership interest in the intellectual property embodied in the documents or materials.

### **ARTICLE 13**

# **ARCHITECT AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR**

It is specifically agreed that in the making and performance of this Agreement, the Architect is an independent contractor and is not and shall not be construed to be an officer or employee of the District.

#### **ARTICLE 14**

#### STANDARDIZED MANUFACTURED ITEMS

The Architect shall consult and cooperate with the District in the use and selection of manufactured items to be used in the Project. Manufactured items, including but not limited to paint, finish hardware, plumbing fixtures and fittings, mechanical equipment, electrical fixtures and equipment, roofing materials, and floor coverings, shall be standardized to the District's criteria so long as the same does not interfere seriously with the building design or cost.

#### **ARTICLE 15**

#### **OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS**

All designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates and other documents or any other works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to physical drawings, data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer disks, or other writings prepared or caused to be prepared by the Architect pursuant to this Agreement shall be and shall remain the property of the District for all purposes, not only as they relate or may relate to this Project (including but not limited to any repair, maintenance, renovation, modernization or other alterations or revisions to this Project) but as they relate or may relate to any other project, provided that any invalidity of such ownership in relation to any other project shall not affect the validity of such ownership in relation to this Project (including but not limited to any repair, maintenance, renovation, modernization or other alterations or revisions to this Project) under Education Code Section 17316.

The Architect will provide the District with a complete set of reproducible designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates and other documents or any other works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to physical drawings, data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer disks in formats including both DWG and PDF, or other writings prepared or caused to be prepared by the Architect pursuant to this Agreement, and will retain, on the District's behalf, the original documents or reproducible copies of all such original documents, however stored, in the Architect's files for a period of no less than fifteen (15) years. Architect shall promptly make available to District any original documents it has retained pursuant to this Agreement upon request by the District.

#### **ARTICLE 16**

#### **LICENSING OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY**

This Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for the District to copy, use, modify, reuse or sublicense any and all copyrights, designs and other intellectual property embodied in plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates and other documents, or any other works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to physical drawings, data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer disks, or other writings prepared or caused to be prepared by the Architect pursuant to this Agreement, not only as they relate or may relate to this Project (including but not limited to any repair, maintenance, renovation, modernization or other alterations or revisions to this Project) but as they relate or may relate to other projects, provided that any invalidity of such license in relation to such other projects shall not affect the validity of such license in relation to this Project (including but not limited to any repair, maintenance, renovation, modernization or other alterations or revisions to this Project) under Education Code Section 17316. The Architect shall require any and all subcontractors and consultants to agree in writing that the District is granted a similar non-exclusive and perpetual license for the work of such subcontractors or consultants performed pursuant to this Agreement.

The compensation for this Project includes compensation not only for any use in connection with this Project and use or re-use for repair, maintenance, renovation, modernization or other alterations or revisions to this Project, but also for any re-use by the District in relation to other projects. The only other term or condition of such re-use shall be that if the District re-uses the plans prepared by the Architect and retains another certified architect or structural engineer for the preparation of those plans for the re-use, the District shall indemnify and hold harmless the Architect and its consultants, agents, and employees from and against any claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including attorney's fees, arising out of or resulting from, in whole or in part, the re-use to the extent required by Education Code section 17316, subdivision (c).

Architect represents and warrants that Architect has the legal right to license any and all copyrights, designs and other intellectual property embodied in plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents that Architect or its consultants prepares or causes to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement. Architect shall indemnify, defend and hold the District harmless pursuant to Article 18.1 of this Agreement for any breach of Article 16 due to Architect's negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct. The Architect makes no such representation and warranty in regard to previously prepared designs, plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates or other documents, or any other works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited to physical drawings, data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer

disks, or other writings, that were prepared by design professionals other than Architect and provided to Architect by the District.

#### **ARTICLE 17**

#### **ACCOUNTING RECORDS OF ARCHITECT**

Architect's records of accounts regarding the Project shall be kept in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and shall be available to the District or its authorized representative at mutually convenient times.

#### **ARTICLE 18**

#### **INDEMNITY**

#### **18.1** Architect Indemnification

The Architect shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District, the governing Board of the District, each member of the Board, and their officers, agents and employees against claims arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of the Architect, the Architect's officers, employees, or consultants in performing or failing to perform any work, services, or functions provided for, referred to, or in any way connected with any work, services, or functions to be performed under this Agreement. For purposes of this Article 18.1 only, "claims" means any and all claims, demands, actions and suits brought by third parties for any and all losses, liabilities, costs, expenses, damages and obligations, and the defense obligation shall include but not be limited to payment of the District's attorneys' fees, experts' fees, and litigation costs incurred in defense of a claim.

#### 18.2 **District Indemnification for Use of Third Party Materials**

The District shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Architect and its employees against any and all copyright infringement claims by any design professional formerly retained by the District arising out of Architect's completion, use or re-use of that former design professional's designs or contract documents in performing this Agreement. Architect shall be entitled to such indemnification only if each of the following conditions are met: (a) Architect actually re-draws or completes such other designs or contract documents; (b) Architect complies with the provisions of Article 5.8 regarding use of materials prepared by other design professionals; (c) District has supplied Architect with the previously prepared documents or materials; and (d) District expressly requests that the Architect utilize the designs or contract documents in question. By providing this or any other indemnification in this Agreement, District does not waive any immunities.

#### **ARTICLE 19**

#### TIME SCHEDULE

#### 19.1 **Time for Completion**

Time is of the essence of this Agreement. The Architect shall timely complete its Basic and Additional Services as expeditiously as possible and according to the schedule attached as Exhibit "B" to this Agreement.

#### 19.2 **Delays**

The District recognizes that circumstances may occur beyond the control of either the District or the Architect and extensions for such delays may be made to the schedule if approved by the District. Any time during which the Architect is delayed in the Architect's work by acts of District or its employees or those in a direct contractual relationship with District or by acts of nature or other occurrences which were not or could not have been reasonably foreseen and provided for, and which are not due to any Wrongful Acts or Omissions, shall be added to the time for completion of any obligations of the Architect. District shall not be liable for damages to the Architect on account of any such delay.

#### **ARTICLE 20**

#### **MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS**

- 20.1 This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California excluding its choice of law rules. Any action or proceeding seeking any relief under or with respect to this Agreement shall be brought solely in the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Sacramento, subject to transfer of venue under applicable State law, provided that nothing in this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of immunity to suit by the School District.
- 20.2 The Architect shall not assign or transfer any or all of its rights, burdens, duties or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the District.
- 20.3 All notices, certificates, or other communications hereunder shall be deemed given when personally delivered or mailed by certified mail, postage prepaid, to the parties at the addresses set forth below:

**District** Architect

Sacramento City Unified School District	HMR Architects
5735 47 <sup>th</sup> Avenue	2130 21 <sup>st</sup> Street
Sacramento CA 95824	Sacramento, CA 95818
Attn: Kimberly Teague, Contracts	Attn: Scott Pullen, Principal

- 20.4 This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the Architect and the District and their respective successors and assigns.
- 20.5 If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof.
- 20.6 The terms of this Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, supplemented or amended in any manner whatsoever except by written agreement signed by the parties.

- 20.7 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or cause of action in favor of a third party against either the District or the Architect.
- 20.8 This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties, and supersedes any prior agreement or understanding. There are no understandings, agreements, representations or warranties, expressed or implied, not specified in this Agreement. The Architect, by the execution of this Agreement, acknowledges that the Architect has read this Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms and conditions.
- 20.9 The Architect shall have the right to include representations of the design of the Project, including photographs of the exterior and interior, among the Architect's professional materials. The Architect's materials shall not include the District's confidential or proprietary information if the District has previously advised the Architect in writing of the specific information considered by the District to be confidential or proprietary.
- 20.10 Prior to executing this agreement, the Architect shall submit a certification if required by Public Contract Code section 3006(b) for roofing projects.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this instrument to be executed this 19th day of April, 2013.

<u>DISTRICT</u> :	ARCHITECT:	
By: Ken A. Forrest Chief Business Officer	By:	
Date	Printed Name & Title	
	Date	

# **EXHIBIT A**

# SCOPE OF WORK

(See Attached)

# -- HMRARCHITECTS

March 5, 2013

Sacramento City Unified School District 425 1<sup>st</sup> Avenue Sacramento, CA 95818

Attn: Mr. Jim Dobson

Director - Planning, Construction & Operations Services

RE: Proposal for Professional Services

Gym Building Modernization Hiram Johnson High School

6879 14<sup>th</sup> Avenue Sacramento, CA 95820

Dear Jim:

Thank you for the opportunity to present HMR Architects' proposal for the above project. The following proposal will confirm the conditions to establish an agreement for A/E services for this project.

#### A. SCOPE OF WORK:

HMR Architects, Inc. will provide design and construction documents and contract administration for the Sacramento City Unified School District, (hereafter the District or Owner) for obtaining DSA approvals, bids, and construction of the project listed above.

The scope of work will be to modernize the existing Gym Building at Hiram Johnson High School. The building currently houses the boy's and girl's gyms as well as the ancillary lobby, restrooms, offices and locker rooms. The specific work will include reroofing the building, removal and replacement of the bleachers, gym flooring, exterior steel frame gates, windows, doors and lockers, as well as improvements to create individual team room areas in both the girls and boys locker rooms. In addition, the design work will include the replacement of large areas of AC paving which was identified in the ERP applications and accessibility upgrades throughout the Gym Building itself including the public restrooms, drinking fountains, showers and Path of Travel from accessible parking to the Building entrance. Design work will include the investigation, programming, design, and Construction Documents necessary for the improvements above.

2130 21<sup>st</sup> Street Sacramento, CA 95818 T 916 736 2724 F 916 736 0610 www.hmrarchitects.com

March 5, 2013

#### B. TECHNICAL CONSULTATION:

- 1. Technical consultation of the work is subject to the following:
  - HMR will provide information to consulting engineers as required for them to accomplish coordination with our work, in preparation of their engineering services.
  - We will coordinate our work with engineering being provided by the Contractor.
- 2. The base services to be provided by HMR under this contract shall include Architectural, Structural, Mechanical and Electrical Consultants.

#### C. FEE AGREEMENT:

1. The following fee agreement is the basis for payment for the work described in Part A - Scope of Work will be predicated on the following District flat percentage scale. The preliminary estimated cost for construction is \$2,615,000.00.

Rate	Estimated Cost	A/E Fee
8%	\$2,615,000.00	\$209,200.00

2. Any previous Phase 1a ERP work (ie programming, cost estimating, applications, etc...) related to the Hiram Johnson Gym is complete and finished to date. In addition the scope of work to be completed under this proposal will supersede any remaining Phase 1b and Phase 2 ERP contract work related to the Gym scope of work. Please note that the AC paving and Door Applications are for Campus wide work and only the portion of work is related specifically to the Gym. There will be additional work related to Phase 1b and 2 that are not part of this scope of work.

2130 21<sup>st</sup> Street Sacramento, CA 95818 T 916 736 2724 F 916 736 0610 www.hmrarchitects.com

March 5, 2013

Monies are due within 30 days of monthly billing date. Twenty Five (25%) percent
of total fees are due upon completion of the design development plans. Eighty
five (85%) percent of fees are due at completion of the construction drawings and
submittal to DSA, A/E fees to be advanced to Ninety (90%) percent of total fee
amount upon DSA approval.

Upon bidding and contract administration phases the remaining ten percent (10%) of A/E fees would be billed in equal amounts on a monthly basis during the bidding and construction period.

#### D. PARTIES OF AGREEMENT:

The agreement is between HMR Architects, Inc. and Mr. Jim Dobson, Director, Planning, Construction & Operations Services representing the Sacramento City Unified School District and no other party.

#### E. WORK ABANDONMENT:

If work is abandoned or suspended, in whole or in part, for any reason by the District, the service rendered on account of it to date of abandonment is to be paid for (in proportion to percentage of completion) at personnel cost, or at the published HMR hourly rates provided at the end of this proposal. Upon notice to terminate work HMR will provide construction documents to support the percentage of completion being billed.

#### F. ERRORS AND OMISSIONS:

HMR Architects shall do everything within its powers to protect the District from change orders during the course of construction. However, due to the nature of construction projects, some items such as buried or existing site conditions, deviation from original plans, etc., can remain unforeseen until construction begins. Hidden site conditions can and will occasionally arise and are impossible for the Architect to foresee.

Change orders created through inaccurate "As Builts" or documents prepared by other district consultants shall be solely the responsibility of the specific consultant and non-binding to HMR. HMR only guarantees that it will endeavor to observe and to identify as many potential problems as possible, during the field investigations. Change orders generated through bidding prior to DSA plan checks are impossible for the Architect to control.

2130 21st Street Sacramento, CA 95818 T 916 736 2724 F 916 736 0610 www.hmrarchitects.com

March 5, 2013

#### G. DISCLAIMERS:

It is understood that HMR Architects makes no warranty, expressed or implied under this service agreement. The drawings and specifications prepared by HMR Architects and furnished as a result of this agreement will be prepared in accordance with the generally accepted standards of the profession.

#### H. REIMBURSABLE COSTS & CLARIFICATIONS:

- Major printing shall be by the District through the ARC or Signature Blueprint the District contracted blueprinting company. In house printing by HMR would be billed at cost <del>plue 10%</del>.
- Extra architectural services and ongoing changes to the scope of work required once the construction documents have exceeded 25% of their completion, during the preparation of construction documents, which occur outside the architect's basic services or control (such as revisions to designs, layouts, structures, site planning, owner required modifications, etc.)
- 3. Models, color renderings and color boards
- Special mailings, and overnight deliveries, shall be reimbursable at cost <del>plus 10%.</del>
- DSA plan check fees, water flow test fees, etc...will be provided by the District. If plan check fees are paid by HMR, the fees will be reimbursable at cost plue 10%.
- 6. Professional Cost Estimating Services

#### I. EXCLUDED WORK:

- Soils Geotechnical Investigation, Boundary Surveys, Environmental Impact reports, Phase 1 & Phase 2 Environmental reports, Fire Sprinkling Construction Documents, Plumbing and Mechanical Engineering, Landscape Architects, Civil Engineering for onsite and offsite work, and Landscaping Plans are not included in the base fees. Topographic surveys related to either drainage or path of travel issues.
- 2 As Built Drawings at the completion of the project.

2130 21<sup>st</sup> Street Sacramento, CA 95818 T 916 736 2724 F 916 736 0610 www.hmrarchitects.com

March 5, 2013

- Hazardous Material investigation and mitigation, MSDS Reports and related work are excluded and are not covered by our Insurance Carrier.
- 4. Civil Engineering and Site survey for ADA and Accessibility issues directly associated with the scope of work as well as site work related to AC paving removal and replacement. There are significant elevations changes that may necessitate the need for civil engineering. This work if required will be done as separate proposal and considered additional scope of work.
- 5. Additional services required of the architect caused by delinquency, insolvency or failure of the contractor to complete work on the project completion date as adjusted by the contract time extensions through no fault of the architect. Reimbursement to be deducted by the District, from the contractor's final retention, at the architects/engineers hourly rate in effect at the time of this contract signing. This would include all extensions of time beyond the allowable schedule, enforcement of liquidated damages, liens and claims filed by the contractors, etc.
- Creating "Record Set Drawings" from the contractor's field notes at the completion of the project. Completion date to be subject to DSA approvals and contractors ability to perform the work in a timely manner.
- Additional Fire Hydrants or extensions to the fire loop are excluded from this contract.

#### J. DISTRICT RESPONSIBILITY:

- 1. Assign a representative authorized to represent the District on its behalf.
- 2. Provide approved District budgets for the project.
- 3. Off Site and on site Civil Engineering if required for any component of the work, such as driveway relocations, encroachment permits, etc.
- 4. DSA, State and Local Fire Marshall Fees
- CEQA Fees if applicable
- Provide Testing and Inspection lab services and District IOR inspector.

2130 21st Street Sacramento, CA 95818 T 916 736 2724 F 916 736 0610 www.hmrarchitects.com

March 5, 2013

#### K. PLAN CHECK:

HMR shall submit completed plans by HMR and its consultants for DSA required plan checks and approvals. DSA fees shall be provided by the District.

#### L. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION:

HMR will provide contract administration in the form of answering daily field questions which arise, providing clarifications to drawings, reviewing submittals, resolving job conflicts or issuing letters as requested by the contractor, the building official or the District. HMR will prepare change orders as required and obtain DSA approvals of same. Architect will provide weekly job site visits during normal construction activity during the construction of the project. If special visits are required HMR would make itself available for periodic special observations.

#### M. DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS

The drawings, specifications, electronic media and other documents prepared by the Architect for this project are instruments of the Architect's service for use solely with respect to this project and the Architect shall be deemed the author of these documents and shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved rights including the copyright.

The District may retain copies including electronic media and reproducible copies of the Architect's drawings, specification, electronic media and other documents for information and reference in connection with the District's use and occupancy of the project. The architects drawings, specifications, electronic files shall not be used by the District or others on any other project except by agreement in writing and with appropriate compensation to the Architect. The District agrees to waive any claim against the Architect and defend, indemnify and hold the Architect harmless from any claim or liability for injury or losses allegedly arising from unauthorized reuse of the Architect's instruments of services. The District agrees to compensate the architect for any time spent or expenses incurred by the Architect in defense of any such claim.

#### N. RISK ALLOCATION

The District and the Architect have considered their risks, rewards, and benefits of the project and both have agreed via this signed document, on the architect's total fee for services. The risks have been allocated such that the District agrees that the Architects full liability shall not exceed the Architects total fee on the project.

2130 21<sup>st</sup> Street Sacramento, CA 95818 T 916 736 2724 F 916 736 0610 www.hmrarchitects.com

March 5, 2013

Gym Building Modernization Hiram Johnson High School Sacramento Unified School District

#### O. ADA DESIGN

Regarding the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), Title 24, or local accessibility regulations (2010 CBC Accessibility Codes). The owner recognizes that the architect claims no special expertise in Accessibility Compliance and that ADA has significant conflicting requirements with the California Building Code. The architect assures the owner only that he will use his best efforts to comply with ADA/ T24/CBC. Therefore the owner agrees to waive any action against architect and to indemnify and defend architect against any claim arising from architects alleged failure to meet ADA/CBC design requirements prescribed in excess of what would be considered minimum code and interpretation standards for the profession. The owner understands that interpretation of ADA is a legal issue and accordingly retention of legal counsel for purposes of interpretation is advisable.

Two copies of this proposal are enclosed. If this agrees with your understanding of the requirements for this project, please sign one copy and return it to our office. Under the Business and Professions Code # 5536.22 by the State of California, no work may commence on this project without the Sacramento City Unified School District's written authorization.

Sincerely, HMR Architects, Inc.

Scott Pullen AIA, LEEP AP

Principal

Approved by:

Sacramento City Unified School District

Mr. Jim Dobson Date

Director - Planning, Construction & Operations Services

cc. Accounting

2130 21st Street Sacramento, CA 95818 T 916 736 2724 F 916 736 0610 www.hmrarchitects.com

# **EXHIBIT B**

## PROJECT SCHEDULE

# **HMR**ARCHITECTS

2130 21st Street Sacramento, CA 95818 T 916 736 2724 F 916 736 0610

# Hiram Johnson High School

# **Gym Modernization**

# **Project Schedule Timeline**

# Phase I - Reroofing, work not requiring DSA review

August 30, 2013:

March 25, 2013:	Begin Phase I Design Development and Site Survey
April 12, 2013:	District review
April 19, 2013:	In corporate District review comments, begin Construction Documents
May 17, 2013:	Complete Construction Documents – prepare Bid Documents
May 20, 2013:	Advertise and Bid Project (2 weeks)
June 3, 2013:	Award Project
June 7, 2013:	Issue Notice to Proceed and begin Construction

# Phase II – Bleachers, Flooring, Lobby and Restroom Improvements, Doors and Windows, Showers, Lockers etc...

Contractor to reach substantial completion

June 3, 2013:	Begin Phase II Design Development
July 29, 2013:	District review
Aug. 12, 2013:	In corporate District review comments, begin Construction Documents
Oct. 7, 2013:	Complete Construction Documents – submit to DSA

Dec. 9, 2013: Comments back from DSA

Jan. 6, 2014: DSA back check review

Jan. 13, 2014: DSA final approvals and scanning documents

Feb. 3, 2014: Advertise and Bid Project (4 weeks)

March 10, 2014: Award Project

March 28, 2014: Issue Notice to Proceed and begin Construction

(Note: Date for mobilization on site pending District

Review and final decision)

August 29, 2014: Contractor to reach substantial completion



#### **SERVICES AGREEMENT**

Date: March 20, 2013 Place: Sacramento, California

Parties: Sacramento City Unified School District, a political subdivision of the State of

California, (hereinafter referred to as the "District"); and Harris School Solutions,

(hereinafter referred to as "Contractor").

#### Recitals:

A. The District is a public school district in the County of Sacramento, State of California, and has its administrative offices located at the Serna Center, 5735 47<sup>th</sup> Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95824.

- B. The District desires to engage the services of the Contractor and to have said Contractor render services on the terms and conditions provided in this Agreement.
- C. California Government Code Section 53060 authorizes a public school district to contract with and employ any persons to furnish to the District, services and advice in financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal, or administrative matters if such persons are specially trained, experienced and competent to perform the required services, provided such contract is approved or ratified by the governing board of the school district. Said section further authorizes the District to pay from any available funds such compensation to such persons as it deems proper for the services rendered, as set forth in the contract.
- D. The Contractor is specially trained, experienced and competent to perform the services required by the District, and such services are needed on a limited basis.

In consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the parties agree as follows:

## **ARTICLE 1. SERVICES.**

The Contractor hereby agrees to provide to the District the services as described below ("Services"):

eTrition Central Software, annual maintenance and support, site license fees and professional services per Ordering Document attached hereto as Exhibit B.

## ARTICLE 2. TERM.

This Agreement shall commence on April 1, 2013 and continue until completion of services, unless sooner terminated, as set forth in Article 10 of this Agreement, provided all services under this Agreement are performed in a manner that satisfies both the needs and reasonable expectations of the District. The determination of a satisfactory performance shall be in the sole judgment and discretion of the District in light of applicable industry standards, if applicable. The term may be extended by mutual consent of the parties on the same terms and conditions by a mutually executed addendum.

## ARTICLE 3. PAYMENT.

District agrees to pay Contractor for services satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this Agreement as follows:



<u>Flat Rate:</u> The total payment to Contractor, including travel and other expenses, shall be Ninety Four Thousand, Forty Seven and 28/100 Dollars (\$94,047.28).

Payment shall be made within 30 days upon submission of periodic invoice(s) to the attention of Brenda Padilla, Nutrition Services Manager, 3051 Redding Avenue, Sacramento, California 95820.

#### ARTICLE 4. EQUIPMENT AND FACILITIES.

District will provide Contractor with access to all needed records and materials during normal business hours upon reasonable notice. However, District shall not be responsible for nor will it be required to provide personnel to accomplish the duties and obligations of Contractor under this Agreement. Contractor will provide all other necessary equipment and facilities to render the services pursuant to this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE 5. WORKS FOR HIRE/COPYRIGHT/TRADEMARK/PATENT

The Contractor understands and agrees that all matters specifically produced under this Agreement that contain no intellectual property or other protected works owned by Contractor shall be works for hire and shall become the sole property of the District and cannot be used without the District's express written permission. The District shall have the right, title and interest in said matters, including the right to secure and maintain the copyright, trademark and/or patent of said matter in the name of the District. The Contractor consents to the use of the Contractor's name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution of the matters, for any purpose in any medium.

As to those matters specifically produced under this Agreement that are composed of intellectual property or other protected works, Contractor must clearly identify to the District those protected elements included in the completed work. The remainder of the intellectual property of such completed works shall be deemed the sole property of the District. The completed works that include both elements of Contractor's protected works and the District's protected works, shall be subject to a mutual non-exclusive license agreement that permits either party to utilize the completed work in a manner consistent with this Agreement including the sale, use, performance and distribution of the matters, for any purpose in any medium.

#### ARTICLE 6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.

Contractor's relationship to the District under this Agreement shall be one of an independent contractor. The Contractor and all of their employees shall not be employees or agents of the District and are not entitled to participate in any District pension plans, retirement, health and welfare programs, or any similar programs or benefits, as a result of this Agreement.

The Contractor and their employees or agents rendering services under this agreement shall not be employees of the District for federal or state tax purposes, or for any other purpose. The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that it is the sole responsibility of the Contractor to report as income its compensation from the District and to make the requisite tax filings and payments to the appropriate federal, state, and/or local tax authorities. No part of the Contractor's compensation shall be subject to withholding by the District for the payment of social security, unemployment, or disability insurance, or any other similar state or federal tax obligation.



The Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold the District harmless from any and all claims, losses, liabilities, or damages arising from any contention by a third party that an employer-employee relationship exists by reason of this Agreement.

The District assumes no liability for workers' compensation or liability for loss, damage or injury to persons or property during or relating to the performance of services under this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE 7. FINGERPRINTING REQUIREMENTS.

Education Code Section 45125.1 states that if employees of any contractor providing school site administrative or similar services may have any contact with any pupils, those employees shall be fingerprinted by the Department of Justice (DOJ) before entering the school site to determine that they have not been convicted of a serious or violent felony. If the District determines that more than limited contact with students will occur during the performance of these services, Contractor will not perform services until all employees providing services have been fingerprinted by the DOJ and DOJ fingerprinting clearance certification has been provided to the District.

District has determined that services performed under this Agreement will result in limited contact with pupils. Contractor is required to comply with the conditions listed in Exhibit A, Contractor's Certification of Compliance. If the Contractor is unwilling to comply with these requirements, the Contractor's employees may not enter any school site until the Contractor provides the certification of fingerprinting clearance by the DOJ for employees providing services. These requirements apply to self-employed contractors.

#### ARTICLE 8. MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION.

Each of the Parties shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other Party, its officers, agents and employees from any and all claims, liabilities and costs, for any damages, sickness, death, or injury to person(s) or property, including payment of reasonable attorney's fees, from any cause whatsoever, arising directly or indirectly from or connected with the operations or services performed under this Agreement, caused in whole or in part by the negligent acts, omissions, or willful misconduct of the Parties or its agents, employees or subcontractors.

It is the intention of the Parties, where fault is determined to have been contributory, principles of comparative fault will be followed and each Party shall bear the proportionate cost of any damage attributable to fault of that Party. It is further understood and agreed that such indemnification will survive the termination of this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE 9. INSURANCE.

Prior to commencement of services and during the life of this Agreement, Contractor shall provide the District with a certificate of insurance reflecting its comprehensive general liability insurance coverage in a sum not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence naming District as an additional insured. Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall be primary, and any insurance carried by District shall be excess and noncontributory. If insurance is not kept in force during the entire term of the Agreement, District may procure the necessary insurance and pay the premium therefore, and the premium shall be paid by the Contractor to the District.

## **ARTICLE 10. TERMINATION.**

The District may terminate this Agreement without cause upon giving the Contractor thirty days written notice. Notice shall be deemed given when received by Contractor, or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner.



The District may terminate this Agreement with cause upon written notice of intention to terminate for cause. A Termination for Cause shall include: (a) material violation of this Agreement by the Contractor; (b) any act by the Contractor exposing the District to liability to others for personal injury or property damage; or (c) the Contractor confirms its insolvency or is adjudged a bankrupt; Contractor makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or a receiver is appointed on account of the Contractor's insolvency.

Ten (10) calendar days after service of such notice, the condition or violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, or this Agreement shall cease and terminate. In the event of such termination, the District may secure the required services from another contractor. If the cost to the District exceeds the cost of providing the service pursuant to this Agreement, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the Contractor. The foregoing provisions are in addition to and not a limitation of any other rights or remedies available to the District. Written notice by the District shall be deemed given when received by the other party or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner.

#### ARTICLE 11. ASSIGNMENT.

This Agreement is for personal services to be performed by the Contractor. Neither this Agreement nor any duties or obligations to be performed under this Agreement shall be assigned without the prior written consent of the District, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. In the event of an assignment to which the District has consented, the assignee or his/her or its legal representative shall agree in writing with the District to personally assume, perform, and be bound by the covenants, obligations, and agreements contained in this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE 12. NOTICES.

Any notices, requests, demand or other communication required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given on the date of service if served personally on the party to whom notice is to be given, or on the third day after mailing if mailed to the party to whom notice is to be given, by first class mail, registered or certified, postage prepaid, or on the day after dispatching by Federal Express or another overnight delivery service, and properly addressed as follows:

District:

Sacramento City Unified School District

PO Box 246870

Sacramento CA 95824-6870

Attn: Kimberly Teague, Contracts

Contractor:

Harris School Solutions 2540 Warren Drive, Suite A

Rocklin, CA 95677

Attn: Stephanie Freeman

#### ARTICLE 13. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior understanding between them with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. There are no promises, terms, conditions or obligations, oral or written, between or among the parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement that are not fully expressed in this Agreement. This Agreement may not be modified, changed, supplemented or terminated, nor may any obligations under this Agreement be waived, except by written instrument signed by the party to be otherwise expressly permitted in this Agreement.



#### ARTICLE 14. CONFLICT OF INTEREST.

The Contractor shall abide by and be subject to all applicable District policies, regulations, statutes or other laws regarding conflict of interest. Contractor shall not hire any officer or employee of the District to perform any service covered by this Agreement. If the work is to be performed in connection with a Federal contract or grant, Contractor shall not hire any employee of the United States government to perform any service covered by this Agreement.

Contractor affirms to the best of their knowledge, there exists no actual or potential conflict of interest between Contractor's family, business or financial interest and the services provided under this Agreement. In the event of a change in either private interest or services under this Agreement, any question regarding possible conflict of interest which may arise as a result of such change will be brought to the District's attention in writing.

#### ARTICLE 15. NONDISCRIMINATION.

It is the policy of the District that in connection with all services performed under contract, there will be no discrimination against any prospective or active employee engaged in the work because of race, color, ancestry, national origin, handicap, religious creed, sex, age or marital status. Contractor agrees to comply with applicable federal and California laws including, but not limited to, the California Fair Employment and Housing Act.

#### ARTICLE 16. SEVERABILITY.

Should any term or provision of this Agreement be determined to be illegal or in conflict with any law of the State of California, the validity of the remaining portions or provisions shall not be affected thereby. Each term or provision of this Agreement shall be valid and be enforced as written to the full extent permitted by law.

#### ARTICLE 17. RULES AND REGULATIONS.

All rules and regulations of the District's Board of Education and all federal, state and local laws, ordinance and regulations are to be strictly observed by the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement. Any rule, regulation or law required to be contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to be incorporated herein.

#### ARTICLE 18. APPLICABLE LAW/VENUE.

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California. If any action is instituted to enforce or interpret this Agreement, venue shall only be in the appropriate state or federal court having venue over matters arising in Sacramento County, California, provided that nothing in this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of immunity to suit by the District.

#### ARTICLE 19. RATIFICATION BY BOARD OF EDUCATION.

This Agreement is not enforceable and is invalid unless and until it is approved and/or ratified by the governing board of the Sacramento City Unified School District, as evidenced by a motion of said board duly passed and adopted.

Executed at Sacramento, California, on the day and year first above written.



# SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

# HARRIS SCHOOL SOLUTIONS

By:	Ву:
Kenneth Forest Chief Business Officer	Signature
Date	Print Name/Title



**EXHIBIT A** 

# **CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION of COMPLIANCE**

**Fingerprinting:** Education Code section 45125.1 provides that any contractor providing school site administrative or similar services to a school district must certify that employees who may come into contact with pupils have not been convicted of a serious or violent felony as defined by law. Those employees must be fingerprinted and the Department of Justice (DOJ) must report to the Contractor if they have been convicted of such felonies. No person convicted may be assigned to work under the contract. Depending on the totality of circumstances including (1) the length of time the employees will be on school grounds, (2) whether pupils will be in proximity of the site where the employees will be working and (3) whether the contractors will be working alone or with others, the District may determine that the employees will have only limited contact with pupils and neither fingerprinting nor certification is required.

The District has determined that section 45125.1 is applicable to this Agreement, and that the employees assigned to work at a school site under this Agreement will have only limited contact with pupils, provided the following conditions are met at all times:

- 1. Employees shall not come into contact with pupils or work in the proximity of pupils at any time except under the direct supervision of school district employees.
- 2. Employees shall use only restroom facilities reserved for District employees and shall not use student restrooms at any time.
- 3. Contractor will inform all employees who perform work at any school or District site of these conditions and require its employees, as a condition of employment, to adhere to them.
- 4. Contractor will immediately report to District any apparent violation of these conditions.
- 5. Contractor shall assume responsibility for enforcement of these conditions at all times during the term of this Agreement.

If, for any reason, the Contractor cannot adhere to the conditions stated above, the Contractor shall immediately so inform the District and shall assign only employees who have been fingerprinted and cleared for employment by the Department of Justice. In that case, the Contractor shall provide to the District the names of all employees assigned to perform work under this Agreement. Compliance with these conditions, or with the fingerprinting requirements, is a condition of this Agreement, and the District reserves the right to suspend or terminate the Agreement at any time for noncompliance.

Authorized Signature of Contractor	Date	
Printed Name/Title	-	



# **EXHIBIT B**



# **Ordering Document**

Master Contract Date: August 22, 2011

**Quote Number:** 

5694

Telephone:

Stephanie Freeman (800) 835-0705

**Quote Expires:** 

May 18, 2013

FAX:

**Quote Contact:** 

(800) 840-5598

**Payment Terms:** 

Email:

sfreeman@harriscomputer.com

**BILL TO** 

SHIP TO

**Account Contact: Account Name:** 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED

Account Name:

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED

SCHOOL DIST.

ACC. PAY. - CHILD NUTRITION

**Account Contact:** 

SCHOOL DIST. ACC. PAY. - CHILD NUTRITION

3051 Redding Avenue

Address:

3051 Redding Avenue

Sacramento, CA 95820

Sacramento, CA 95820

(916) 277-6583

Telephone: FAX:

(916) 277-6583

Telephone: FAX:

Email:

Address:

Email:

Harris may provide certain information and notices about software, hardware, and support via email. Accordingly, please verify and update the Bill To and Ship To information above to ensure that such communications and notices are received from Harris. If changes are required, please e-mail or fax the updated information to Stephanie Freeman. Please also include Quote Number 5694 on such reply.

#### SOFTWARE PRODUCT(S)

PRODUCT NAME	QTY	SOFTWARE LICENSE FEE	EXTENDED PRICE	ANNUAL MAINTENANCE & SUPPORT FEE
PLEG100:eTrition Central eTrition Central includes Administration and Students modules.	1	\$3,995.00	\$3,995.00	\$1,603.07
PLEG101:F/R Application Free & Reduced Application Manager	1	\$1,495.00	\$1,495.00	\$801.53
PLEG131:RocketSCAN Integration Module eTrition 7 RocketScan Integration Module	1	\$2,950.00	\$2,950.00	\$1,990.00

Page 1 of 8

March 01, 2013

N. Harris Computer Corporation - Confidential



PLEG103:POS Site License (Per Serving Location) Includes Daily Sales and Point of Sale modules.  The licenses were purchased on contract #3018 & #3027  A.M.WINN ABRAHAM LINCOLN ALBERT EINSTEIN ALICE BIRNEY AMERICAN LEGION BEAR FLAG(SOL AUREUS) C.K. MCCLATCHY CALEB GREENWOOD CALIFORNIA CALIFORNIA MONT CAMELLIA CAROLINE WENZEL CROCKER RIVERSIDE DAVID LUBIN GENEVIEVE DIDION GEORGE WASH CARVER GOLDEN EMPIRE HEALTH PROFESSIONS HIRAM JOHNSON	8
A.M.WINN ABRAHAM LINCOLN ALBERT EINSTEIN ALICE BIRNEY AMERICAN LEGION BEAR FLAG(SOL AUREUS) C.K. MCCLATCHY CALEB GREENWOOD CALIFORNIA CALIFORNIA MONT CAMELLIA CAROLINE WENZEL CROCKER RIVERSIDE DAVID LUBIN GENEVIEVE DIDION GEORGE WASH CARVER GOLDEN EMPIRE HEALTH PROFESSIONS HIRAM JOHNSON	
ABRAHAM LINCOLN ALBERT EINSTEIN ALICE BIRNEY AMERICAN LEGION BEAR FLAG(SOL AUREUS) C.K. MCCLATCHY CALEB GREENWOOD CALIFORNIA CALIFORNIA MONT CAMELLIA CAROLINE WENZEL CROCKER RIVERSIDE DAVID LUBIN GENEVIEVE DIDION GEORGE WASH CARVER GOLDEN EMPIRE HEALTH PROFESSIONS HIRAM JOHNSON	
ALBERT EINSTEIN ALICE BIRNEY AMERICAN LEGION BEAR FLAG(SOL AUREUS) C.K. MCCLATCHY CALEB GREENWOOD CALIFORNIA CALIFORNIA CALIFORNIA MONT CAMELLIA CAROLINE WENZEL CROCKER RIVERSIDE DAVID LUBIN GENEVIEVE DIDION GEORGE WASH CARVER GOLDEN EMPIRE HEALTH PROFESSIONS HIRAM JOHNSON	
ALICE BIRNEY AMERICAN LEGION BEAR FLAG(SOL AUREUS) C.K. MCCLATCHY CALEB GREENWOOD CALIFORNIA CALIFORNIA MONT CAMELLIA CAROLINE WENZEL CROCKER RIVERSIDE DAVID LUBIN GENEVIEVE DIDION GEORGE WASH CARVER GOLDEN EMPIRE HEALTH PROFESSIONS HIRAM JOHNSON	
AMERICAN LEGION BEAR FLAG(SOL AUREUS) C.K. MCCLATCHY CALEB GREENWOOD CALIFORNIA CALIFORNIA MONT CAMELLIA CAROLINE WENZEL CROCKER RIVERSIDE DAVID LUBIN GENEVIEVE DIDION GEORGE WASH CARVER GOLDEN EMPIRE HEALTH PROFESSIONS HIRAM JOHNSON	
C.K. MCCLATCHY CALEB GREENWOOD CALIFORNIA CALIFORNIA MONT CAMELLIA CAROLINE WENZEL CROCKER RIVERSIDE DAVID LUBIN GENEVIEVE DIDION GEORGE WASH CARVER GOLDEN EMPIRE HEALTH PROFESSIONS HIRAM JOHNSON	
C.K. MCCLATCHY CALEB GREENWOOD CALIFORNIA CALIFORNIA MONT CAMELLIA CAROLINE WENZEL CROCKER RIVERSIDE DAVID LUBIN GENEVIEVE DIDION GEORGE WASH CARVER GOLDEN EMPIRE HEALTH PROFESSIONS HIRAM JOHNSON	
CALIFORNIA CALIFORNIA MONT CAMELLIA CAROLINE WENZEL CROCKER RIVERSIDE DAVID LUBIN GENEVIEVE DIDION GEORGE WASH CARVER GOLDEN EMPIRE HEALTH PROFESSIONS HIRAM JOHNSON	
CALIFORNIA MONT CAMELLIA CAROLINE WENZEL CROCKER RIVERSIDE DAVID LUBIN GENEVIEVE DIDION GEORGE WASH CARVER GOLDEN EMPIRE HEALTH PROFESSIONS HIRAM JOHNSON	
CAMELLIA CAROLINE WENZEL CROCKER RIVERSIDE DAVID LUBIN GENEVIEVE DIDION GEORGE WASH CARVER GOLDEN EMPIRE HEALTH PROFESSIONS HIRAM JOHNSON	
CAROLINE WENZEL CROCKER RIVERSIDE DAVID LUBIN GENEVIEVE DIDION GEORGE WASH CARVER GOLDEN EMPIRE HEALTH PROFESSIONS HIRAM JOHNSON	
CROCKER RIVERSIDE DAVID LUBIN GENEVIEVE DIDION GEORGE WASH CARVER GOLDEN EMPIRE HEALTH PROFESSIONS HIRAM JOHNSON	
DAVID LUBIN GENEVIEVE DIDION GEORGE WASH CARVER GOLDEN EMPIRE HEALTH PROFESSIONS HIRAM JOHNSON	
GENEVIEVE DIDION GEORGE WASH CARVER GOLDEN EMPIRE HEALTH PROFESSIONS HIRAM JOHNSON	
GEORGE WASH CARVER GOLDEN EMPIRE HEALTH PROFESSIONS HIRAM JOHNSON	
HEALTH PROFESSIONS HIRAM JOHNSON	
HIRAM JOHNSON	
HOLLYWOOD PARK	
HUBERT BANCROFT ISADOR COHEN	
JAMES MARSHALL	
JOHN CABRILLO	
JOHN F. KENNEDY	
JOHN STILL k-8	
LEONARDO DE VINCI	
LANGUAGE ACADEMY	
MARK TWAIN MARTIN LUTHER KING	
MATSUYAMA	
MET REPLICATION	
NEW TECHNOLOGY	
O.W. ERLEWINE	
PHOEBE HEARST	
PONY EXPRESS	
ROSEMONT	
SAM BRANNAN SCHOOL OF ENG & SCI	
SEQUOIA	
SUCCESS/SAC ACC	
SUTTER	
SUTTERVILLE	
TAHOE	
THEODORE JUDAH	
WEST CAMPUS	
WILLIAM LAND YAV PEM SAUB ACAD	
TAV FEW SAUB ACAD	

Page 2 of 8 March 01, 2013

N. Harris Computer Corporation - Confidential



PRODUCT NAME	QTY	SOFTWARE LICENSE FEE	EXTENDED PRICE	ANNUAL MAINTENANCE & SUPPORT FEE
PLEG103:POS Site License (Per Serving Location) Includes Daily Sales and Point of Sale modules.	5	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$1,727.80
The licenses were purchased on contract #3018 & #3027				
PROVISION 2 SITES W/SERVING LINES				
FERN BACON KIT CARSON LUTHER BURBANK ROSA PARKS WILL C. WOOD				
PLEG105:POS Site License (Non-serving location) Non-Serving/Reporting Location	7	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$483.00
(The licenses were already purchased on contract #3027: site license - convert to non-serving/reporting license				
PROVISION 2 SITES				
BRET HARTE CHACON CESAR CHAVEZ EARL WARREN EDWARD KEMBLE ELDER CREEK ETHEL I BAKER				
PLEG105:POS Site License (Non-serving location) Non-Serving/Reporting Location	15	\$300.00	\$4,500.00	\$1,035.00
PROVISION 2 SITES				
ETHEL PHILLIPS FR. KEITH B. KENNEY H.W. HARKNESS JEDEDIAH SMITH JOHN BIDWELL JOHN D. SLOAT JOHN MORSE NICHOLAS OAK RIDGE PACIFIC PARKWAY PETER BURNETT SUSAN B. ANTHONY SCOE BOYS N GIRLS CLUB WOODBINE				
PLEG102:POS Serving Line POS Serving Line	125	\$450.00	\$56,250.00	\$12,375.00
PLEG900:eTrition Migration Discount eTrition Migration Discount	1	(\$34,595.00)	(\$34,595.00)	\$0.00*
TOTAL SOFTWARE PRODUCT(S)			\$34,595.00	\$36,602.28

Page 3 of 8 March 01, 2013

N. Harris Computer Corporation - Confidential SACRAME



\*Current annual support and maintenance fees remain in effect until the current annual support term ends. Immediately thereafter, annual support and maintenance fees will be calculated at the then current Harris rate.

#### PROFESSIONAL SERVICE(S)

DESCRIPTION	QTY	PRICE	ESTIMATED PRICE
PSIF100:eTrition Installation Fee (per Server)	1	\$1,100.00	\$1,100.00
PSRS100: Remote Services, hourly Remote Services, hourly (services are estimated - if additional time is needed, it will be invoiced in 15 minute increments at the hourly rate)	20	\$150.00	\$3,000.00
PSOS100:On-Site Services, Daily Onsite services, per day; (services are estimated - if additional time is needed, it will be invoiced at the current daily rate).  Train-the-Trainer	30	\$625.00	\$18,750.00
Train-trainer	A CONTRACTOR OF THE CONTRACTOR		
TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICE(S)			\$22,850.00

All charges are exclusive of out of pocket expenses for Professional Services performed. Charges for actual and reasonable out-of-pocket expenses including, but not limited to, travel and lodging expenses will be billed monthly as incurred.

#### SUMMARY

ESTIMATED DELIVERY CHARGE (Ground)**	\$0.00
TOTAL SOFTWARE LICENSE FEE	\$34,595.00
TOTAL ANNUAL MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT	\$36,602.28
TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES	\$22,850.00
TOTAL HARDWARE	\$0.00
TAX**	\$0.00
GRAND TOTAL:	\$94,047.28

<sup>\*\*</sup>This Agreement excludes freight, state, local, and federal taxes. These are due and payable by the Purchaser where applicable.

# OPTIONAL ETRITION CLOUD SOLUTION(S)

CIRCLE BELOW	PRODUCT NAME	QTY	ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION FEE
Accept or Decline	PLOA010:Online Applications 501-1,000 Annual Usage Fee (0-1000)	1	\$750.00
Accept or Decline	TLTN100:Voice Notification (per student) Annual subscription fee, per enrolled student. Allows outbound telephone notification.  .50 per student, per year  ENTER TOTAL ENROLLMENT FOR QUANTITY	0	\$0.00

Page 4 of 8 March 01, 2013